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Wastescape

Chaichana Luetrakun
Acrylic on canvas
180 x 180 cm

Wastescape, the winning artwork for the 2019 UOB Painting of the Year (Thailand), Established Artist Category, is the design
inspiration for this Annual Report. Mr Chaichana’s artwork is a commentary on how innovation can result in scrap metal and
its lasting impact on the environment. It reminds us to consider carefully the consequences of our actions and the legacy we
want to leave for future generations.

At UOB, our values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment guide the decisions we make and actions we take.
We believe that for growth to be sustained, it must be balanced with responsibility. This approach enables us to meet
the immediate and long-term interests of our stakeholders.

By encouraging the appreciation of art in the region, we hope more minds will be open to imagining new realities and
to creating new paradigms for the good of all. The UOB Painting of the Year competition, in its 38" year in 2019, is the
Bank's flagship art programme held across four Southeast Asian countries.
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About United Overseas Bank (China)
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB (China)) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of United Overseas Bank Limited
(UOB), a leading bank in Asia. UOB (China) is headquartered
in Shanghai and was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China on 18 December 2007.

From our first representative office in Beijing in 1984, we have
grown our network to 17 branches and sub-branches in major
Chinese cities.

We have also been building on our strengths. In 2006,
UOB was the first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to
settle capital accounts in Shanghai. We received a retail
RMB licence and Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE) trading
membership in 2008 and 2011 respectively. In 2012, we were
awarded a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors licence,
and were one of four foreign banks to participate in bullion
trading on the SGE interbank platform.

UOB (China) is one of the first foreign banks to obtain a local
mutual fund licence in China in 2013. The following year, we
established a sub-branch in the Shanghai Free Trade Zone,
and obtained a trial market maker licence for interbank
gold bilateral transactions and a market maker licence for
direct trading between RMB and the Singapore dollar in the
interbank foreign exchange market. We also obtained the
gold import and export licence in 2015. In 2018, UOB (China)
became one the first market makers do execute direct
trading between the RMB and the Thai Baht. The Bank also
successfully priced its three-year onshore RMB financial bond
through the China interbank market and the Bond Connect
scheme (BCS), which is the first onshore financial bond
issued by a Southeast Asian bank through the BCS. In 2019,
UOB (China) became the first Southeast Asia-headquartered
bank to be a member of the Shanghai Futures Exchange and
the first foreign bank to be a Fixing Member for the Shanghai
Silver Benchmark Price. These achievements have enabled us
to widen our product and service offering to our customers
operating in China.

In 2015, UOB Group increased the registered capital of UOB
(China) by RMB2.5 billion to RMB5.5 billion.

UOB (China) is rated ‘A+" with a stable outlook by Fitch
Ratings and ‘AAA" with a stable outlook by China Chengxin
International Credit rating.

We believe in being a responsible financial services
provider and we are committed to making a difference in
the lives of our stakeholders and in the communities in
which we operate. Just as we are dedicated to helping our
customers manage their finances wisely and to grow their
businesses, UOB (China) is steadfast in our support of social
development, particularly in the areas of art, children and
education.

For more information about UOB (China), please visit www.
UOBChina.com.cn or follow the UOB (China)’s public account
on WeChat.
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About United Overseas Bank Limited
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Who We Are

United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in Asia
with a global network of more than 500 branches and offices
in 19 countries and territories in Asia Pacific, Europe and
North America. In Asia, we operate through our head office
in Singapore and banking subsidiaries in China, Indonesia,
Malaysia, Thailand and Vietnam, as well as branches and
offices across the region.

In 1935, amid the economic uncertainties following the
Great Depression, UOB opened its doors to provide banking
services for the merchant community in Singapore.

Since then, UOB has grown organically and through a series
of strategic acquisitions. Today, UOB is rated among the
world’s top banks: ‘Aal’ by Moody’s Investors Service and ‘AA-’
by both S&P Global Ratings and Fitch Ratings.

Over more than eight decades, generations of UOB
employees have carried through the entrepreneurial spirit,
the focus on long-term value creation and an unwavering
commitment to doing what is right for our stakeholders.

At UOB, we believe in being a responsible financial services
provider and we are committed to making a difference in the
communities in which we operate. Just as we are dedicated
to helping our customers manage their finances wisely and
grow their businesses, we are steadfast in our support of
social development, particularly in the areas of art, children
and education.

What We Do

UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally
through our three core business segments — Group Retail,
Group Wholesale Banking and Global Markets. Our offering
includes consumer banking, private banking, commercial
banking, transaction banking, investment banking and
treasury services. Through our subsidiaries, we also provide
asset management, private equity fund management and
insurance services.
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Financial Highlights

2019 2018 mgﬁﬁ
ZERR Operating result ARt RMB'000 %
ZlNEIT Total operating income 1,360,564 1,229,470 107
EEA Total operating expenses 1,083,036 1,009,475 73
BEpEihk Impairment charges 141,314 53,211 165.6
BLATFE Profit before tax 136,729 168,992 (197
Rk Balance sheet AR HTFIT RMB00O %
#rE&St Total assets 71,856,288 74,206,681 (32)
W & HEHR Financial indicators % % o
AR 2R Return on equity 1.8 22 (04)
RFEFEE Return on average total assets 02 02 -
5%:3 9N Expenses/income ratio 78.6 811 (2.5)
FUEE B AL BN L SN :;‘]i:);e:} and commission income/total operating 6 106 20
FHl (AR™) Loan-to-Deposit ratio (RMB) 881 85.8 23
ATFFZR Leverage ratio 77 74 03
FRERE Non-performing loan ratio 0.6 07 (o)
HEBEEE Non-performing loan coverage 3485 288.5 60.0
W EER Provision-to-loan ratio 2.2 21 01
RARFEREIERR Capital adequacy ratio
ZIh—RRARFTRE Core Tier 1CAR 135 131 04
—RARKRE Tier 1 CAR 135 131 04
REFTRE Total CAR 16.5 14.0 25
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EMNBL—NMEEREETHMNK, THHNTHEEMENE, &
ERFHEFERKEMARNBERAEELEERXZNER. B
MRRHSERTHIHEZRESTANPEERTARX ST, fiE
HEMREFLCHALKEENES, REAAEER . LUS,
ERTIHMEFERBPER T —ER ML,

ERTUTRREET, BEMRERNFH TRESER, RIFLE
RERHE, FEEFHMIILREBIR, AT AFERGEN, &
MKFREREME, FELW. ARATMEES, BE, EH—
FAEMRILH 80 REM B, KERITHET HBF. SRBIINER
SEEXYW, NFRETERHNER,

ERKEERES, RINBLEIRE, IREARNHTFER, B
THAEHRE, " ERFEENRER, FBHRAMIERKE
ERHNEMESIENER “FER" .

HMEZIREACAARABRETF®E, MAZEREER. ENSE
FERHBEER (EFHR) FRL2NEE-—HZRMSBHFR
F, Mix5AERIT—RNOMERSHEE, EA—FKE TREH
FEIFEMNE THEI S, FRBHZREF 8K T3 HAIEGR
EXEER, BAKEFEFHEFHKPHRE, SRNEHEER,
FHIMPRBRNE, ARBUHERRBFES,

ESKEH

Chairman’s Statement

Ours is an era that is marked by immense change. Uncertainty
and volatility shape markets, diverse and divergent economic
and political beliefs challenge international relations, while
advances in technology propel how businesses are run
and lives led. At the moment, the whole world is focused
on grappling with the contagion of COVID-19. The virus is
altering the course of life, business, markets and economies
as we know it today.

As unsettling as change can be, change can also bring
about positive outcomes if we know our purpose, focus
on the fundamentals and persevere towards attaining our
goals. Navigating well through choppy seas also requires
experience, discernment and agility. UOB, with more than
eight decades of presence in Asia, has been through and
taken learnings from past storms, be they wars, financial
crises or epidemics.

Storms will pass. We stay the course. This is because we take
seriously our duty of care to our customers, our colleagues
and our communities, as we strive to be their trusted
financial partner and steward for the long term.

We are mindful of the unintended consequences of taking
the short-term view. The painting on the cover of this year’s
Annual Report, Wastescape, illustrates the impact of myopic
thinking and immediate gratification. This is not for UOB.
Thinking ahead on behalf and in support of our stakeholders
is core to us given our entrepreneurial roots and the
ownership mentality rooted in our origins. Our long-term
approach and commitment enable us to weather the storms,
to emerge stronger each time and to be better equipped to
grow sustainably.
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Chairman’s Statement

BN RE AT R R R

2019 &, RERITERTEERR=THAF, RMNFEHEIEL
BIFFARBAHAEFMEEMRSMTIFHNAN, AINERBELTS
MEREFRZETRIMENZFHEREEKAEAEZNE KA, “—
TR BNE-—SRUTHIESFETEEERE. AHMEM
REFEESEENR, XEMARERTRETEPHERTEXD
BEtlo

ERERERITETNKEPH U SREMTZKENE, UEILRE
& EXTIAHRNIERE, BAOIBER A EH BT BIEXLEH,
BALWSEHBRERR, AEERENERSHMBEEERMENE
HERBRT R,

HATH@ESSIEILAA BRI, SSBUX—B, XEHEAEaE.

o MERIEHRENLZME ., BITISENBRTRMERLSE
WHES, HEEFIBERIEE;

o EEBRNMNEANRNER. TUERAMSERGFESRE,
AEPFREFRENTRIRS, £EEEMNNEPER;

o BRFEMBEMATHRBEN; AR

s MRBESHMBRERLEE,

e E PREREE

HEFRBI, KERITEERED LAWY SHEIEK, #i1
TRzl M, ERE, RITETREY K, SBHRUEE
WEH/ 2019 F, RERITEERBXERNE LRSS
WHTERXF L, ESFARLRKEZNRGCRE, HYRiA
BB, BRFERNL. ERLMMRITILRS. FEHLST
S5HMER AL XIS, BHESHHLIBEERERERX
M itegis FAR T BRI EIE, ATRITERKER KRR
%58, 2019 ERRITAE X T PER PR SRS RFRAHUE
Ko

TR ZH AN SNE B R 510 R S F A F A KR ITEL M
H— LM%, EalFRFTHNEE, HHRERMTITRE,

W EETHMEFHCHERMBRAR, B 201 Bk, KERITE
R IHEE B 2,600 R4 ZE T #R Bl 55, o p i [E £l #8133 500 2K
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Driving strategic and sustainable growth

2019 marks UOB's 35" anniversary in China. During the years,
we have seen China taking unprecedented steps to liberalise
its financial sector with multiple development plans to create
more growth drivers for the economy. The Belt and Road
Initiative, as one of the country’s most important initiatives,
is continuing to deepen the collaboration between China
and Southeast Asian countries on trade, investment and
infrastructure projects, presenting tremendous opportunities
for both our customers and us.

With our established Asian heritage and franchise, coupled
with the Group’s longstanding presence in and understanding
of China, UOB (China) is well positioned. We connect our
corporate clients to regional opportunities and provide
financial solutions to our retail customers as their needs
evolve with rising affluence.

We fulfill our purpose by pursuing a strategy based on the
following pillars:

» Deepening our regional connectivity through our network,
sector solutions and cross-border advisory capabilities;

« Offering the complete customer experience with best-in-
class products and services enabled by our in-depth local
knowledge and expertise and ecosystem partnerships;

« Investing in people and technology for the long term; and
» Ensuring regulatory compliance and robust risk management.

Deepening our regional connectivity

In ASEAN, UOB has built the most extensive network among
our peers through a series of strategically-timed acquisitions
and organic growth over the past decades. In China, we
have also been growing organically by strengthening our
network. In the Greater Bay Area (GBA), we established our
seventh branch in Zhongshan, Guangdong, a transportation
hub set to support the ASEAN-GBA trade flows arising from
the manufacturing, information technology and logistic
sectors. In riding on the development of the GBA, in 2019, we
saw double-digit growth in the number of our Commercial
Banking clients in South China.

Our bankers and Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Advisory
team harness the strengths of our integrated franchise and
provide local insights, market entry support and customised
banking solutions to help businesses expand into new
markets. Since 2011, we have helped close to 2,600 clients,
including 500 Chinese companies, in their expansion across
Asia.

ATHBEREFBERSTERXANFHTRARE, RITS5LE
HREZRITHEEENT “OMLE K FR" vz, RIZRE “—
w—B ATMNHRFTRARS, ARG TESTSZI L
iR, BN, RITBXE-RIIUBREAFECHNEMBRARENE
F_RTEERHEOFERESR, #H5SEN THEABTRENSEM
PR

ABAPELUHERLER, KERITESHMFERZZHAAHE
ERESAREETAEETR. EEEESRIERT, PEEFR
A+ /\FHRERE, TEZRERTEMHESHMRSNER
BRI,

EHRAEPEE

BITREUERFIRABL, RANTHROMNBOREHAE, HiREE
EHERATEUBREL E/ER,

2019 &£, FAVEH T AATHH AR ARE (1PU) HEERBE RS . %R
SEERMPEAMEE LS, SRR KR/MEM, AR
RRE, BEMERE, BHX—RSES, RITEPEBUAERER
FREEMNELEHE, AUEARER, EAELEFESLHFRME
EXERER, ETESSHEEZ BMHNREEIEXRR,

ATHBREVSHAHLZZFEBBRER, RITREATPRERE
THEm“ - REURENEERERRARZ BN SR,
EESIMZHUESHERTNHERFHESN, RITRALBEEXRHMA
EBRE—SMIRITENHR, BELBEESXBANEERRE
REMEITZE,

BEEEMFESRSE, RNATPREESHARRNKRS,
2019 £, RMEXMEBRSBERLXFEITSEDRW, A LBHE
HARBANRERBEZ LA T —GULHEIHEAEMMBRAR, &
TRERPESANEETARMAEIHGEZITGESETR, B
FAM AR EZ AR - ERMRS

To assist our clients in navigating the complexities of the
diverse landscape in Southeast Asia, we held the ASEAN
Connect Seminar with the Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank to discuss the investment outlook and sector-specific
trends benefitting from strengthened connectivity across
Asia. We also participated in the China International
Import Expo for the second consecutive year to share our
insights into the challenges and investment opportunities in
Southeast Asia.

To facilitate Chinese enterprises’ internationalisation efforts,
we also signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with
the China Chamber of International Commerce (CCOIC) and
Singapore Exchange Limited in 2019. Our collaboration will
open up access to UOB's banking expertise and integrated
ASEAN network for more than 180,000 Chinese enterprises
under the CCOIC.

Offering the complete customer experience

With our customers’ needs always at the centre of what we
do, we are committed to deepening our understanding of
their challenges and to addressing their pain points with our
comprehensive solutions.

For our corporate clients, we launched the Irrevocable
Payment Undertaking supply chain financing solution.
It was designed to help our clients’ suppliers, which are
typically small- and medium-sized enterprises, overcome
their challenges in accessing quality financing. Through the
solution, we can help our clients strengthen their supplier
relationships as their suppliers benefit from more stable
cash flows, thus lowering their financing costs and reducing
business risks.

To meet our clients’ diverse risk hedging and trading
requirements, we continued to offer them one-stop
solutions for Southeast Asian currencies, as well as bullion
and commodity solutions for the major exchanges in China.
Backed by our trading licences and capabilities, we were the
first and only foreign bank to become a Fixing Member of the
Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE)'s Shanghai Silver Benchmark
Price Trading. In 2019, we achieved the highest trading volume
among the foreign banks on the SGE.

Our partner ecosystems are an extension of our capabilities
to serve our customers better. In 2019, we started our
collaboration with Shanghai Gas (Group) Co. Ltd to provide
its more than six million household customers with access
to retail financial solutions. We also signed an MOU with
UCommune, China’s largest co-working space provider, to
offer financial and workspace solutions jointly to help start-
up companies run their business cost-effectively.
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LR XS R AN A R BN

2019 £, BITHEH A TFRNTESFEEL, IEFATZ AR
KE,

BEERARELN—FUIRERETES, RITEPTURSE R
EZRERKEL, —FUIREECRNEEHBRA RN, &
EHSIANTHBREMBSE AAE, ANEHMERRE, RTE
R TREERXGTFAFARTRERITRSE, UEFRHRET
BITER,

WEIEEBAL, HBHETRERIARERRERT (FE) BEELR
Rz —o BEit, BITHNTERFHE LT AR BRI
MBTRUEFHAL . £F, RNEETHELEEERR, HEXT
BERRIANAZRIE, AHREHRLMEEE, [, HOZ
FREIALIREMRYE, ARRKHNESEAAE, TUSEAN
WEEREIZE, RIMEFEZRTHEBEERKATG, MEXEAR
LB FE R, Bk, 2020 &£, KERT (HE ) B35 #HEHE
2019 SFHEH HY Better U ML EF IR RITRI X—IT RGBT
RIBEFMREFEBHIES, EREHFOH. AAAEXHRRER
TR AL

RREESIFERARG SR

2019 &, RITERRAEEANX—THEER, FTEFRFEA
RBITEBHTHARTFH LETXABEERFIETHIP TIELEH S
RS, AEERIMFELERTHEERRRES, BEZFMNLEE
BHRERDEESERITHEERESZ—EERETE,

BRIMNBENXRUMAHERRRS, ILRITRBREPEEEFN
R EIRF K, RELZBHREFMAREED,

A SRS E ST 8K

2019 £, HATEWMANREILLIERK T 107%, EZB ART 136 27T,
FERHET R B RIRALXBHHIKIEE K,
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Investing in people and technology for the long term

In 2019, we continued investing in the right capabilities and
infrastructure for the long term.

As part of UOB Group’s integrated network, we are backed
by a standardised platform which gives our customers a
seamless experience within and across borders. The Group’s
integrated network enables us to achieve scale and speed to
market in rolling out solutions locally while ensuring robust
risk management. Our continued investments in information
technology in 2019 also included our new Precious Metals
Trading System Platform and the upgrading of existed
banking systems to serve our customers more efficiently.

Attracting the right talent and preparing our people to be
future-ready are part of our business strategy. At UOB (China),
we foster a work culture which enables us to attract and to
retain the best talents. Last year, we enhanced the robustness
of our performance management process and established
accelerated career development programmes for our top
talents. We believe in growing our own timber and creating
a cohort of future industry leaders with a regional mindset
to carry our business deeper and further. We want our
people to ride the technology wave and to remain relevant
for our customers always. As such, in 2020, we will roll out
in China our Better U programme, a Group-wide learning
and development programme to equip our colleagues with
knowledge and skills in complex problem-solving, digital
awareness, human-centred design and data storytelling.

Ensuring regulatory compliance and robust risk management

Regulatory compliance has always been our priority. In 2019,
for the second consecutive year, we were recognised as
a leading institution by the People’s Bank of China (PBoC)
Shanghai Branch for our best practice in implementing
PBoC'’s online payment and interbank clearing systems. We
also migrated and integrated the State Authority of Foreign
Exchange reporting into our Unified Platform for Regulatory
Reporting system.

Given our holistic approach and focus on sustainable growth,
we will continue to maintain our strong risk culture and to
uphold the strength and quality of our franchise.

Achieving responsible growth in 2019

In 2019, we achieved operating income of RMB1,360.6 million,
an increase of 10.7 per cent from last year, mainly driven by
the improvement in trading and investment income.

ZHTREEFERIMNCFRNREFRI, RTXSREELRKE
MNEEEMART12ZTEEARM351Zt, AIRBHFEEET
B, SBFBMNELL T 148% EART 831Z7T,

BHFRITHEMATAAF=REN, UEFHRSER, Bk
RIEAMRSHEAERBFRGK, ELXHEL EHT 72%
EARM1071Z5T, Xt R THRITRIFEEKPEANERHA
o Bk, FH1T2019 ERFEFEAIARTM 12125, %2018 F£H
PE TP 17.4%

HITHATRERIFRE, FRERENLERE 07% /MMETHEE
2019 FRH 0.6%, HMEMLERZEHE, FMRITHHETREM
REZRERERIHE .

2019 FEEHMELFH 6.8% ZEARM 351127, RRKRITEEFRFEH
—HFFE, FEWKT 6.0% ZEART 395127T, ZITHESEFE
FEATAART 27125,
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Trading and investment income rose to RMB352.6 million
from RMB117.9 million a year ago, driven by improved gains
from precious metals and foreign exchange products.
Meanwhile, our net interest income decreased by 14.8 per
cent from a year ago to RMB834.1 million, due to narrowing
interest margins.

Operating expenses grew by 7.2 per cent to RMB1,069 million,
largely driven by higher staff costs and business-related
expenses as we invested in talent and product capabilities
to improve our customer experience. This reflects our
continued commitment to our investment and growth for
the long term in China. As a result, we registered net profit
after tax of RMB124.4 million, decreased by 17.4 per cent from
2018.

Our asset quality remained stable. The non-performing loan
ratio declined slightly to 0.6 per cent from 0.7 per cent a year
ago. We monitor our portfolio vigilantly and are confident
of the resilience of our asset quality and adequacy of our
provisions.

Loans grew by 6.8 per cent to RMB351 billion in 2019. We also
continued to improve our funding base by issuing RMB2.7
billion in securities and increasing deposits by 6 per cent to
RMB39.5 billion.

As at 31 December 2019, our Common Equity Tier 1 and Total
Capital Adequacy Ratios stood at 13.5 per cent and 16.5
per cent respectively, well above the regulatory minimum
requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and AAA by China
Chengxin International Credit Rating with a stable outlook.

Connecting with our communities

Alongside strong financial results, we are committed to
being a responsible member of the communities in which we
operate.

In 2019, we collaborated with our customers and business
partners to contribute more than RMB600,000 to the
community. Our people devoted close to 5,300 hours in
activities aligned to our corporate social responsibility focus
areas of art, children and education. Our heartfelt efforts
have been recognised through accolades such as Top 10
Public Welfare Partner Company of 2019 Shanghai Public
Welfare Selection.

We also expanded our community outreach efforts through
our collaboration with the 2019 Art and Design Education:
FutureLab, an international exhibition that promotes the
cross-cultural exchange of ideas and expression among art
institutions. Through such events, we helped to open minds,
especially of the young, to the creative possibilities of art.
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Balancing growth with stability

2020 is proving to be a year of immense change and
transformation for all. While there is a saying that the only
constant is change, the new reality is that the only constant
is accelerated change.

We are already seeing increased macroeconomic and
geopolitical uncertainties and heightened market volatility.
Such an environment only reinforces the need for our
measured stance. UOB (China) must be resolute in deepening
our customer relationships and focusing on the fundamentals,
even as we stay nimble in seizing opportunities.

We maintain our balance sheet strength so we can continue
to support our customers and to weather the volatilities. We
continue to invest in our people and infrastructure for the
long term and to ensure increased productivity and efficiency
through integrated teams and optimised technology
systems. We will continue to deepen relationships as China’s
financial market continues to liberalise, to sharpen our sector
expertise and to forge more partner ecosystems for the
benefit of our customers and to ensure sustainable business
growth.

We will continue to operate with prudence and discipline,
guided by our values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and
Commitment, to balance growth with stability and
opportunity with responsibility. This will ensure we continue
to generate sustainable value for our stakeholders through
trying times and business cycles.
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Dr Wee, 91, was appointed as Supervisor
of United Overseas Bank (China) on 30
October 2007.

A distinguished banker with more than
60 years’ experience, Dr Wee is a veteran
in the banking, insurance, real estate and
hospitality industries. He was conferred
numerous awards and accolades at
the national and regional level for his
business achievements and support of
education, community welfare and the
business community.

Dr Wee is the Chairman of United
Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company
and the Chairman Emeritus and
Honorary Adviser of United Overseas
Bank, Singapore and also of United
Overseas Bank (Malaysia).

He is the current Chairman of United
Overseas Insurance, UOL Group, United
Industrial Corporation and Haw Par
Corporation all of which are public
companies listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange. He also serves as Chairman of
Pan Pacific Hotels Group, Marina Centre
Holdings and Wee Foundation.

Dr Wee is an alumni and Chairman of
Chung Cheng High School. He has served
on numerous school management
committees and the Councils of the
Nanyang University and National
University of Singapore (NUS). He
is currently a Pro-Chancellor of the
Nanyang Technological University (NTU).
Both NUS and NTU have conferred on him
their Honorary Doctor of Letters degree.

BELTHHEMRSEERMEFEZEHS.
HFMERISEREERRIMEEES
EHEESK,
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Besh, BRI RS E RAEH N
RS RERI I E X “ZRIHE" (20m
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His other commitments include
appointment as the Honorary President
of the Singapore Chinese Chamber
of Commerce & Industry, Singapore
Federation of Chinese Clan Associations
and Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan.

Dr Wee was named Businessman of the
Year twice at the Singapore Business
Awards in 2001 and 1990. He received
the inaugural Credit Suisse-Ernst & Young
Lifetime Achievement Award in 2006 and
The Asian Bankers Lifetime Achievement
Award in 2009. In recognition of his
business achievements in the region, Dr
Wee was conferred the Legacy Award for
Singapore at the Asean Business Awards
2017.

Dr Wee received the Distinguished
Service Order, Singapore’s highest
National Day Award for 2011 from the
President of Singapore in recognition
of his outstanding contributions to
the economic, education, social and
community development fields in
Singapore.
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Prof Cham, 80, was appointed as the
Deputy Supervisor of United Overseas
Bank (China) with effective from 1
January 2017. Prof Cham was a non-
executive and independent director of
the Bank from 2008 to 2016.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL,
Soup Restaurant and Singapore Rail
Academy. He is a former director of
MFS Technology, WBL Corporation and
United Overseas Bank, Singapore and
its subsidiary, Far Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore
education scene, Prof Cham is the
former Chancellor of Singapore
University of Social Sciences (SUSS)
and Chairman of its Board of Trustees,
and was the founding President of
Nanyang Technological University.
For his outstanding contributions
to education, he was conferred
the Distinguished Service Order,
Singapore’s highest National Day
Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham
holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil,
Hons) from the University of Malaya,
a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics
(Hons) from the University of London
and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of
Cambridge, UK. He is also a Fellow of
the Institution of Engineers, Singapore,
Academy of Engineering, Singapore,
Royal Academy of Engineering, UK and
Institution of Mechanical Engineers,
UK and a foreign member of Royal
Swedish Academy of Engineering
Sciences.
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Mr Wee, 67, was appointed as Director
and Chairman of the Bank on 5
December 2007. A non-executive and
non-independent director, he is the
Chairman of the Executive Committee
and a member of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee.

A career banker with 40 years’ experience
in the UOB Group, Mr Wee joined United
Overseas Bank, Singapore (UOB Singapore)
in 1979 and has been a director of UOB
Singapore since 1990. He is currently the
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of UOB Singapore.

He also holds directorships in United
Overseas Insurance, United Overseas
Bank (Malaysia) (Deputy Chairman) and
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company (Deputy Chairman). He is the
President Commissioner of PT Bank
UOB Indonesia. He was also formerly a
director of Far Eastern Bank.

Active in industry and community
development, Mr Wee serves as council
member of The Association of Banks
in Singapore, The Institute of Banking
& Finance and Visa AP Senior Client
Council. He is also a member of the
Board of Governors of the Singapore-
China Foundation, Indonesia-Singapore
Business Council and Honorary Council
Member of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry.
He was previously deputy chairman
of the Housing & Development Board
and a director of the Port of Singapore
Authority, UOL Group and Pan Pacific
Hotels Group.

A keen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the
Patron of the Nanyang Academy of Fine
Arts. He is also a director of the Wee
Foundation.

In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore
Public Service Star by the Singapore
Government for his contributions to
the financial industry.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science
(Business Administration) and a Master
of Arts (Applied Economics) from
American University, Washington, DC.
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Mr Foo, 57, was appointed President
and CEO on 19 December 2016 and a
director of the Board of UOB (China) on
18 January 2017. An executive and non-
independent director, he is a member
of UOB (China)’s Executive Committee.
Mr Foo is also a member of UOB Group
Management Committee.

Mr Foo joined UOB in 2011 as the Head of
the Group’s Treasury and Global Markets
business for its overseas subsidiaries and
branches. He also served as President and
CEO of UOB (Thai) from 2012.

Mr Foo has more than 30 years of
experience in banking and financial
markets. Prior to joining UOB, he served
for 11 years at Fortis Bank, S.A./N.V.
Singapore, where he assumed many
management roles including the CEO,
Asia Pacific Management Board member,
Managing Director of Private Banking and
Head of Global Markets.

Mr Foo's previous professional experience
also includes holding various executive
positions at Bank Austria Creditanstalt,
Bank of America, and Chemical Bank
between 1988 and 2000. Mr Foo embarked
on the career as management associate
with Shell Singapore in 1987.

Mr Foo is the Chairman of UOB Property
China Co.Ltd, the Director of United
Asia Diversifier Program and AllF Capital
Partners Limited, the general partner
of Asia Impact Investment Fund I L.P.
He is also a Council Member of Capital
Markets Policy Council (CMPC) of
CFA Institute. Previously, he served as
the Executive Committee Member
and Regional Representative of South
East Asia of ACI-The Financial Markets
Association, Board Member of CFA
Singapore, Council Member of the
Association of Banks in Singapore and
an Independent Director of SGX listed/
Temasek’s CitySpring Infrastructure
Investment Trust.

Mr Foo holds a Bachelor of Estate
Management (Hons) from the National
University of Singapore and is a
Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Mrs Ip, 56, was appointed to the Board
on 22 August 2011. A non-executive
and non-independent director, she
is the Chairman of the Bank’s Board
Risk Management Committee and
a member of the Bank’s Executive,
Audit, Nominating and Remuneration,
and Connected Transactions Control
Committees.

A veteran banker with more than 30
years' experience in both consumer and
corporate banking, Mrs Ip joined UOB
in 2011 and was appointed as CEO of
UOB Hong Kong Branch in December
2011. Mrs Ip was appointed as CEO
for UOB Greater China with effect
from 1 July 2016, and is responsible for
developing UOB's business in Greater
China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held
several senior management positions
in product and sales management,
customer segment management and
risk management in Hong Kong, the
United States, Canada, Singapore and
Mainland China.

She is also an independent non-executive
director of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited.

In recognition of her achievements,
Mrs Ip received the Asia Retail
Congress' Best International Retail
Banker award in 2008 and was named
as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater
China region in 2012 by the China
Outstanding Female Entrepreneurs
Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from
the University of Hong Kong and a
Master of Business Administration from
the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology.
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Mr Liu, 61, was appointed to the Board
on 20 January 2017. A non-executive
and independent director, he is the
Chairman of the Audit and Nominating
and Remuneration Committees,
and a member of the Connected
Transactions Control and Board Risk
Management Committees.

Mr Liu is currently the founding
partner and Chief Executive Officer
of Asia Investment Capital. He also
serves as a director of Cindat Capital
Management Limited, as well as an
independent director for CMB Wing
Lung Bank Limited.

Mr Liu was formerly the Chairman
of Merrill Lynch China and Country
Executive of Bank of America Merrill
Lynch. He had previously worked as
head of Asia or China for Goldman
Sachs, Morgan Stanley, Smith Barney
and Indosuez.

He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics
and International Relations from
Brandeis University, and a Master of
Business Administration from Harvard
Business School.
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Prof Wu, 61, was appointed to the
Board on 29 August 2018. A non-
executive and independent director,
he is the Chairman of the Connected
Transactions Control Committee, and
a member of the Audit, Nominating
and Remuneration and Board Risk
Management Committees.

Prof Wu is currently Executive
President of Shanghai Zhangjiang High-
tech Park Development Company
Limited, Executive President of
Shanghai Yangtze River Delta Sci-tech
City Development Company Limited,
and Vice Chairman of Shanghai Huaxia
Culture and Economy Promotion
Association.

Prof Wu formerly served as Chief
Representative for Europe and Africa
Regions and Director of Investment
and Consulting Management, Planning
and Finance for China Baosteel
Group. He took senior positions in
Siemens, including Vice President of
Siemens (China) Company Limited,
Vice President of Siemens Real Estate
Investment China and President of
Siemens Expo Programme Centre
(SEPC). He also held senior position
in ALSTOM. Prof Wu assumed the
position of Director of Executive
Committee of the first session of
Foreign Invested Companies (ECFIC) of
China Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment (CAEFI).

Prof Wu is a Certified Senior Economist
in China. He holds a Master’s Degree
in Economics from German Siegen
University, and was appointed as
the guest professor of Shanghai
International Studies University in 2019.
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Retail

Against the headwinds of market volatilities and
increasing competition in 2019, UOB (China) focused on
continually transforming our retail banking business to meet
the changing needs of our customers.

Our retail revenue grew by close to 30 per cent compared
with the previous year while our wealth fee income grew
more than 50 per cent year on year, driven by the quality of
our comprehensive banking products.

Offering integrated financial solutions

In 2019, we continued to optimise our branch network and
to enhance our digital channels to create a seamless and
engaging omni-channel experience for our customers.

We continued to pioneer digital initiatives for our customers.
We were one of the first foreign banks to enable non-
residents to sign up for WeChat Pay using their overseas
mobile number. Visitors and short-term residents are able to
make digital payments in China by simply adding their UOB
(China) debit card to WeChat Pay.

We are committed to offering financial services that
are integrated into consumers’ daily lives. In September
2019, we signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
with Shanghai Gas (Group) Co. Ltd. so that more than six
million household customers of Shanghai Gas can access
our financial solutions to meet their needs in wealth
management, their children’s education and overseas asset
management.

Creating a tailored banking programme to meet the lifestyle
needs of women

To help affluent women achieve their lifestyle priorities,
UOB (China) launched its Lady Programme, the first such
programme offered to women customers by a foreign bank in
China. Under the programme, we provide wealth advisory as
well as exclusive rewards and benefits from premium lifestyle
brands.

BREA: RITXEERZBSERHREZD L.

Our female customers were invited to join exquisite flower arranging course.
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Growing and preserving wealth for the long term

In support of our high-net-worth customers’ long-term
financial goals, UOB (China) partnered with a local trust
investment company to launch new trust products for
accredited individual investors.

Through the trusts, our customers have more options to seize
investment opportunities and to grow their wealth using a
range of professionally managed products.

Planning ahead for the next generation

As our customers take great interest in their children’s future,
we continue to offer dedicated programmes to help them
discover and nurture the talents of the next generation. We
assist them to plan and to save for their children’s education
and provide cross-border financial services for overseas
study.

We also run educational programmes such as Junior Banker,
Art Camp, Future Leader Singapore Camp, Future Leader 2-day
Course and Youth'’s Elite Programmes suitable for children
from six to 22 years old. These programmes are designed to
nurture the potential of the next generation, to encourage
creative and critical thinking and to foster in them a spirit of
teamwork, entrepreneurship as well as social responsibility.

B R 2019 REMTHRIMBE S BTN, EHFMBEELRFET
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Our customers’ children joined Future Leader Programme for a summer camp in

Singapore to experience selected courses in National University of Singapore.
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The opening ceremony of UOB (China) Zhongshan Branch
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Mr Chan Chun Sing, Singapore’s Minister for Trade and Industry, and Dr Koh Poh
Koon, Singapore’s Senior Minister of State for Trade and Industry, joined UOB,
CCOIC and SGX in commemorating the MOU to help Chinese enterprises expand
into ASEAN through Singapore.

Wholesale Banking

UOB (China) helps companies and financial institutions
optimise their business operations and cash flow, manage
their capital needs and market risks and expand into new
markets by providing tailored advisory, solutions and sector
insights.

Deepening regional connectivity and customer engagement
to help companies realise their growth potential

In 2019, through the Belt and Road Initiative (BRI), China
and Southeast Asian countries continued to foster closer
collaboration on trade and investment. China also launched
the Greater Bay Area (GBA) Development Blue Print and
Yangtze River Delta Integration Plan, which are national
strategies to create more economic growth drivers. To
help our clients tap the opportunities arising from these
initiatives, we continued to deepen our presence, to
strengthen our capabilities and to broaden our impact by
capitalising on UOB Group’s network and through forging
partner ecosystems.

In September, UOB (China) opened the Zhongshan Branch
in Guangdong Province. The first branch in Zhongshan
City opened by a foreign bank, our new Zhongshan Branch
affirms our long-term commitment to China and reflects
our confidence in China’s GBA development plan. It also
strengthens our presence in South China and enables us to
expand our services into the west of the GBA. Together with
our other branches and offices in the GBA, Zhongshan Branch
will assist more companies in the area to seize regional
business opportunities. Riding on the development of the
GBA, we maintained double-digit growth in the number of
our Commercial Banking clients in South China in 2019.

#UOB
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Mr Wee Ee Cheong, Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, UOB and

Chairman of UOB (China), making his opening address at the ASEAN Connect
Seminar

To help more Chinese enterprises use Singapore as a
launchpad to expand into Southeast Asia, in 2019, UOB
signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
China Chamber of International Commerce and Singapore
Exchange Limited (SGX). Under this MOU, more than 180,000
Chinese enterprises under CCOIC can benefit from UOB's
banking expertise and integrated ASEAN network, as well as
from SGX's trusted capital market infrastructure and deep
liquidity to venture into Singapore and Southeast Asia.

With the support of UOB Group, our Structured Trade and
Commodity Finance team also established strategic client
relationships during the year. As their key banking partner, we
will continue to support their growth in China and overseas.

To assist our clients in navigating the complexities of
Southeast Asia’s diverse landscape, we held nine investment
workshops, forums and seminars with government agencies,
professional service providers and business partners
across six cities. At the events, participants gained a better
understanding of the different operating environments,
opportunities and challenges across Southeast Asia, and
learnt about the financial solutions that could facilitate their
investments and expansion.

One such event was the ASEAN Connect Seminar, organised
jointly with the Shanghai Pudong Development Bank in
Shanghai. The seminar saw the attendance of more than
200 corporate representatives, who gained insights into the
impact of and opportunities arising from China-US trade
negotiations, as well as the investment outlook and industry
trends arising from Asia’s growing inter-connectivity.

We also led a delegate of 60 Chinese companies to Thailand
in May, during which they learnt more about the investment
environment in Thailand and connected with local business
partners.

2019 marked the second year we participated in the China
International Import Expo (CIIE). There, we showcased
our comprehensive cross-border banking solutions and
contributed to the Singapore Business Federation’s efforts
to help expo attendees understand the investment

opportunities and challenges in Singapore. ,
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Mr Chan Chun Sing, Singapore’s Minister for Trade and Industry, leading Singapore
delegates to visit the UOB booth at the CIIE

Offering enterprises tailored solutions to support their
evolving business needs

We continued to be mindful of changes in policies and
market trends, leveraging UOB Group’s extensive network and
expertise in the region to offer our clients comprehensive
solutions in cash management, supply chain financing,
hedging and trade to support their expansion plans within
and across borders.

Our cash management business has always been one of our
priorities to support our clients’ business needs. In 2019,
China issued multiple policies on domestic and cross-border
cash pooling structures. To help our clients benefit from
such policy updates, we developed customised solutions
aimed at helping them optimise their liquidity management.
Our efforts enabled us to double the number of clients using
domestic and cross-border cash sweeping in 2019 compared
with the year before.

For example, in our close monitoring of China’s new policy on
a value-added tax exemption on interest-free loans between
entities under the same parent company, we launched
quickly a zero-interest rate domestic cash pooling solution
in May. The solution was aimed at helping our clients reduce
overall financing cost for their intra-group financing activities
and improve the efficiency of their overall working capital
management.

For clients with a regional footprint, we developed regional
cash and treasury management solutions to help them have
greater connectivity across their operations in different
markets. For example, we assisted a leading international
conglomerate to set up a domestic cash pool for its China
headquarters. Our solution helped improve the payment
efficiency of the client’s more than 50 subsidiaries, enhance
its internal risk control and optimise its funding management.

In addition, tapping the Group’s strong network and wide
client base in Southeast Asia, we successfully conducted the
first account receivable financing for a Chinese state-owned
enterprise (SOE) Group in Thailand. We also offered to the
SOE a regional interest rate optimisation scheme that helped
to consolidate the cash positions of its subsidiaries in China
and Southeast Asia for enhanced cash yield.
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Ms Adaline Zheng, Head of Wholesale Banking, UOB (China) (right), and Mr
Qinpeng Chen, Chairman of Shenzhen Comix Group Company Ltd (left) signing
the Bank’s first IPU supply chain financing agreement

In 2019, we also expanded our suite of financial supply chain
management solutions to assist our clients and their value
chain suppliers in improving their liquidity management.

We launched the Irrevocable Payment Undertaking (IPU)
supply chain financing solution. Our IPU solution helps our
clients and their suppliers, which are typically small- and
medium-sized enterprises overcome challenges in accessing
quality financing. In addressing such challenges, we help our
clients strengthen their supplier relationships. We signed our
first service agreement with Comix Group which enjoyed
greater flexibility in its payments to suppliers. They in turn
benefitted from more stable cash flows, lower financing
costs and reduced business risks.

In 2019, our financial supply chain management business
revenue grew by 55 per cent over the previous year. This was
largely attributed to an increase in the number of supply
chain financing programmes we offered and our deep
understanding on our client’s industry value chains.

Supporting financial institutions in their regional
expansion

At UOB (China), we combine local market knowledge and
the Group’s expertise in support of our financial institution
clients, which include banks, non-bank financial institutions
and global property funds and financial sponsors.

We have more than ten dedicated bankers and analysts
in Shanghai, Beijing and Shenzhen. They help our clients
grow their business in China and overseas by offering
comprehensive solutions in financing, cash management,
trade financing, hedging for interest rates, currencies and
commodities, as well as the capital markets.
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Against the backdrop of a volatile market and disruption
from financial technology players, we focused on our
comprehensive support of our clients to stay ahead of the
competition. The connectivity of China to other markets and
the immense opportunities arising from the BRI remained
a strategic priority for our clients. We capitalised on our
network coverage and differentiated solutions to help our
clients to manage their risks effectively across China and
Southeast Asia. As a result, we grew our financial institution
client base by 18 per cent year on year and deepened our
relationships with leading financial institution groups in
China.

UOB (China) also supported the Group in a green club loan
facility of US$200 million to Agricultural Bank of China
Limited (ABC), Singapore Branch. UOB acted as Joint Green
Structuring Advisers and Coordinators for the deal, which
was the first green club loan facility established under ABC
Singapore Branch’s Sustainable Financing Framework. Through
our seamless collaboration, UOB Group provided advisory
on deal structuring, jointly developed the ABC Singapore
Branch’s Sustainable Financing Framework and completed the
facility documentation within a tight timeline.

Collaborating with ecosystem partners to accelerate the
growth of start-ups

UOB (China) have been actively building ecosystem
partnerships and tapping UOB Group's extensive network
and FinTech ecosystem to provide start-up companies with
access to co-working spaces, business resources and cross-
border investment advisory and financial solutions.

In August 2019, we signed an MOU with China’s largest co-
working space provider, Ucommune, to provide financial and
workspace solutions for start-ups operating across Greater
China.

We also continued to collaborate with InnoVen Capital to
offer comprehensive banking services to start-up companies.
In addition, we partnered InnoVen Capital to host two
Finance Training Camps in Beijing and Shanghai for more than
30 technology start-ups. The camps aimed to address the
issues start-ups face in foreign exchange settlement, cross-
border cash management and public listing planning by
facilitating the sharing of best practices and recommended
solutions for better financial management and to help them
realise their growth ambitions.
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Global Markets

In 2019, China continued to open its financial sector to
foreign investors and to strengthen its links to global and
regional markets. We tapped our established networks across
ASEAN and Greater China to help businesses understand and
seize the opportunities arising from the region’s diversified
markets.

UOB (China) achieved 25 per cent year-on-year growth in
our trading revenue as we continued to deepen our trading
capabilities and to broaden our suite of solutions.

Expanding our suite of one-stop solutions for Southeast
Asian currencies

To support our clients’ needs, in 2019, we remained focused
on enhancing our suite of one-stop solutions for Southeast
Asian currencies in areas such as direct exchange, fundraising
and hedging. Our solutions also helped to increase the
liquidity of Southeast Asian currencies in the domestic
market.

In addition to offering direct currency exchange services in
the Singapore dollar (SGD), Thai baht and Malaysian ringgit,
in 2019 we included more currencies such as the Philippine
peso and Indonesian rupiah to our currency basket for non-
deliverable forward. This enables us to offer greater support
for our clients’ offshore foreign exchange (FX) transactions in
China.

Tapping our expertise in Southeast Asian FX markets,
we helped companies to widen their overseas financing
channels. For example, we developed an innovative
solution to provide offshore Singapore-dollar loans with a
complementary onshore SGD-renminbi currency swap, which
helps clients to lower their funding costs, without increasing
FX and interest rate risks. The solution was well received by
our clients.

In 2019, UOB (China) was among the top 40 traders in China’s
interbank FX market and the top 10 traders on China Foreign
Exchange Trade System on an Executable Streaming Prices
basis for the second year.

Providing comprehensive bullion and commodity trading
solutions

In 2019, the range of bullion and commodity solutions
we offered for the major exchanges in China was one
of the most comprehensive among foreign banks, as we
stayed committed to meeting our clients’ diverse trading
requirements.

We also became the first Southeast Asia-headquartered
bank to be a member of the Shanghai Futures Exchange and
completed our first exchange of futures for physicals*.

* An exchange of futures for physical (EFP) allows for one party to swap a
futures contract for the actual underlying asset. EFPs are traded OTC and
are often used by commodities producers to hedge positions or regulate
production.
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Mr Peter Foo, President and Chief Executive Officer, UOB (China) (first from right)
jointly officiating the launch of the Shanghai Silver Benchmark Price
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Our Bank held a seminar jointly with SGE for companies in the gold industry.

We were also appointed by the Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE)
as a Trial Market Maker for gold price. In addition, we were
the first and only foreign bank to become the Fixing Member
of the SGE’s Shanghai Silver Benchmark Price Trading. Backed
by our trading licences and capabilities, we achieved the
highest trading volume among the foreign banks on the SGE.

In 2019, we also launched our over-the-counter (OTC)
commodity swap trade solutions with the completion of our
first OTC swap trade in iron ore on the Dalian Commodity
Exchange.

Helping clients seize cross-border business opportunities
In 2019, we ran various events and programmes to keep
clients abreast of market developments and cross-border
business opportunities.

In June, we partnered SGE to host a seminar for 40 companies
in the gold industry. At the seminar, participants exchanged
views on topics such as gold production, consumption and
tax in China and Southeast Asia and discussed potential
collaborations. In November, we assisted the World Gold
Council and China Gold Association in arranging a delegation
of mining companies to visit Singapore and Malaysia to learn
more about the gold industry in these markets.

We made our inaugural transaction for the SGE's Gold Road
Project by helping a Thai client on gold leasing through the
SGE International Board and connecting our client with
a renowned Chinese jeweller to manufacture jewellery
with the leased gold for export to Thailand. Through the
project, we established a new model to engage our clients
along the gold industry value chain and to facilitate cross-
border collaboration opportunities under the Belt and Road
Initiative.
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Technology

In 2019, UOB (China) stepped up our efforts to develop
new and to integrate our existing technology and systems
to enhance customer experience and to drive greater
productivity.

In November, we launched a Precious Metals Trading
System Platform. This system provides a direct interface link
between both the Shanghai Gold Exchange and Shanghai
Future Exchange and the Bank’s Global Markets Platform
(GMP). In connecting GMP to the exchanges, we enabled
auto-trading of gold and silver and are also able to monitor
the transactions in real time, thereby enhancing our risk
management processes.

We also integrated equity-linked and structured note
product capabilities into our Local Retail Investment
System for faster processing of retail transactions. With this
expanded system, we are able to execute transactions such
as order management and settlement for our new products.
Both can enrich our product shelf and enable us to serve our
customers in a more automated and efficient manner.

We also enhanced the UOB Business Internet Banking Plus
Payment System (BIBPlus), extending the cut-off time for
customers’ payment requests and raising the threshold of
high-value payment instructions. This provides customers
with more flexibility in managing their cash flow.

Ensuring regulatory compliance remained a key focus in
2019 as we continued to optimise our regulatory reporting
systems. For example, we migrated and integrated the State
Authority of Foreign Exchange reporting into our Unified
Platform for Regulatory Reporting system.
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The participants of UOB (China)’s Leadership Right By You — Leading Team
programme
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Colleagues

Developing Our Colleagues for Future

We are committed to investing in our people and to developing
them personally and professionally. We believe this starts
with a thorough understanding of and planning around the
needs of talent. As part of our talent management approach,
we run numerous training and development programmes
to prepare our colleagues for the roles of the future and to
serve our customers’ needs better.

we also continued to enhance the leadership capabilities of
our colleagues at all levels, to digitalise our human resources
(HR) management process, and to lead organisational
changes. Other areas of focus included resource planning,
refining our key personnel selection criteria and standardising
HR procedures to ensure that we are optimally organised to
achieve business objectives.

In 2019, we launched a new digital learning system called
SuccessFactors to provide a more intuitive and engaging
learning experience for our colleagues. The system features
articles, videos, learning paths and workshops which are
easily accessed through mobile devices or desktops. We also
collaborated with a professional learning resource provider
to offer quality online courses to equip colleagues with
relevant skills.

To support our colleagues’ career development, we
developed the Leadership Right By You - Leading Team
programme. Launched on 14 November 2019, the programme
was specially designed for senior managers and aims to
develop their leadership and communications skills. Since
the programme’s launch, 48 UOB colleagues from Greater
China have completed a two-month learning journey and
strengthened their leadership capabilities.

EFit: RENSERRAPERASHERTE RIRE

Colleagues participating in the 2019 Greater China Leadership Academy Programme
Level One Module
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In 2019, we also rolled out the Greater China Leadership
Academy, a suite of leadership development programmes
to impart practical leadership skills in digital era. Courses
are delivered through a next-generation learning model on a
digital learning platform. Participants went through intensive
and unique learning experiences, for example, by visiting
financial technology companies and exchanging insights on
digital transformation and leadership with one another.

In 2019, 46 existing and emerging leaders from Greater China
completed the programme.

In 2019, our high-performing colleagues also had the
opportunity to join the Group-wide Development
Acceleration Initiative, which offers them the opportunity
to accelerate their personal and professional development.
As part of the Programme, participants were required to
complete cross-country, cross-function assignments to
develop their strategic thinking skills and to sharpen their
leadership capabilities.

To groom young talent, our Management Associate (MA)
programme continued to attract high-calibre and early-
career talent from Greater China. In 2019, 14 MAs completed
the programme and commenced their careers with us. We
also had 16 new MAs start their job rotations at different
branches. In 2019, we adopted a new rotation practice by
placing each of the MAs at a dedicated home branch to
boost their sense of belonging and to help them develop a
deeper understanding of operations at their home branch.

Caring for Our Colleagues

In caring for the well-being of our colleagues, we continued
to offer a series of programmes in 2019 to help them achieve
better work-life harmony. For example, we hosted health
and parenting talks to encourage our colleagues to focus
on their families” and their personal health. Our Staff Club
partnered wellness companies to offer complimentary gym
access, as well as benefits and discounts on food, travel and
entertainment to all colleagues across the country.

To foster the unity and a sense of belonging among our
colleagues, we organised festive and cultural activities. Some
of these activities included Lo Hei Meets the Lantern Festival,
hands-on mooncake-making workshops and Christmas tree-
making classes. We also offered outdoor excursions and
recreational activities such as cycling, mini marathons, hiking
and museum visits to promote healthier lifestyles.
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Mr Wee Ee Cheong, Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, UOB and

Chairman of UOB (China) (fourth from right), with management and guests at the
opening ceremony of the UOB Art in Ink exhibition
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Community

Keep the Good Going through UOB Heartbeat

The UOB Heartbeat corporate social responsibility (CSR)
programme reflects our long-term commitment to enrich
lives, to open minds and to strengthen bonds in the
communities where we operate. We aim to help create
sustainable good and more caring and inclusive societies
through our efforts in corporate philanthropy, stakeholder
partnerships and employee participation.

We focus on three areas which we believe are essential
for the quality and progress of society: art, children and
education.

Raising art awareness and appreciation through UOB Art
Gallery

Since its launch in November 2018, our UOB Art Gallery
has been a main channel for us to connect with the local
community through art. It is where we showcase UOB’s art
collection from across Asia, organise art-related events and
facilitate cross-cultural dialogue with regional artists.

In 2019, we hosted two art exhibitions at the UOB Art
Gallery. The first was the UOB Art in Ink exhibition, which
kicked off on 29 August 2019 and displayed diverse and
vibrant contemporary Asian ink art paintings. The second is
contemporary artist, Mr Zheng Chongbin’s “What the Space
Wants to Be” ink painting and installation art exhibition
launched on 8 November 2019.

The ink painting exhibits were grouped into three categories
based on their style and content. The first section comprised
selected traditional ink artworks from the UOB Art
Collection. Also on display were selected award-winning
works from the UOB Art in Ink Awards as well as a highly-
acclaimed interactive art installation, the Huge Brush Ink.

Our UOB Art in Ink exhibition was also part of the Shanghai
Urban Space Art Season 2019, which aimed to foster stronger
awareness and appreciation of art among local residents.

MEREREE 77x2.8 KB ERIER (FRIRERAAL ) BT RMKHIRE
ks

Mr Zheng’s 7.7 x 2.8 m painting titled Tracing the Undulating Contours was the
centrepiece of his exhibition at the UOB Art Gallery.
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Professor Juan Cruz, Principal, Edinburgh College of Art, shared his experience of
establishing an art school at one of the UOB Art Talks.

To mark its first anniversary, the UOB Art Gallery presented
its first solo exhibition by contemporary artist Zheng
Chongbin. Titled “What the Space Wants to Be”, the
exhibition displayed a selection of Mr Zheng’s signature
acrylic ink paintings, light-and-space installations and a video
installation.

In 2019, UOB Art Gallery also welcomed its second artist-
in-residence, Mr Eric Lai, a winner of the UOB Art in Ink
Awards. Mr Lai immersed himself in the local art community,
visiting art museums and galleries, meeting local artists and
attending art events. Upon completing his one-month stint,
Mr Lai created two new artworks for the gallery.

In 2019, UOB Art Gallery received more than 5,600 visitors at
its exhibitions and workshops.

Extending our reach through partnerships

We extended our community outreach through partnerships
with art institutions and events to help open minds,
especially of the young, to the creative possibilities of art.

We were the lead partner of the 2019 Art and Design
Education: FuturelLab, an international exhibition which
promotes the exchange of cross-cultural ideas and
expression.

We set up a 200 square-metre UOB Art Space at the
exhibition to showcase artworks and host events focused on
environmental protection and sustainability, multimedia and
digitally creative design.

At the week-long FuturelLab exhibition, the UOB Art Space
held eight interactive Art Talks with some of the most
outstanding artists, educators and professionals from China
and from around the world who shared their insights into art
and design. We also organised four workshops for students
of different ages to gain a hands-on learning experience
of creating art. More than 400 visitors participated in the
workshops and Art Talk series.

BERHEE: —AFEESSERTEY, REEKNRGHBRNEREY

A budding artist focused on her finishing touch at a food painting workshop at
the UOB Art Space.
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Mr Eric Lai guiding the handiwork of a student in ink painting
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EREMA: MERREERIFARITRIEB S EEENNE
A beneficiary of the Folk Art Sponsorship programme explaining her folk art
creation to UOB (China) colleagues at the UOB Heartbeat Art Exhibition

Inspiring the next generation of artists

In 2019, we continued holding our junior artist workshops
to develop children’s interest in art and to inspire their
imagination.

To nurture young artistic talents, we invited artist, Mr Eric
Lai, to run an ink painting workshop for the underprivileged
children from Meihao Linfen Community Development
Foundation. Under his guidance, the children created
paintings inspired by the stars and mountains.

We also held a junior artist workshop that focused on
Dunhuang art. Participating children learnt from Ms Guan
Yanru from the Dunhuang Academy China about the history
of the Mogao Grottoes, a UNESCO World Heritage site in
Dunhuang, Gansu, and its wall paintings and sculptures.

In our ongoing Folk Art Education Sponsorship programme,
we continued to raise awareness of and to preserve the
practice of Chinese folk art. We have been sponsoring
students in Sichuan and Yunnan provinces to learn Yi
Minority lacquerware painting, thangka painting and wool
felting.

In June 2019, we organised a UOB Heartbeat Art Exhibition
that featured 23 artworks by beneficiaries from the UOB
(China)’s Folk Art Sponsorship programme. Some of the
artworks were purchased by our colleagues and the proceeds
were used to fund the Folk Art Sponsorship programme.

We also invited eight beneficiaries of the programme to
participate in the exhibition and other fundraising activities
to help them gain exposure to art from different cultures.
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Leading the way at the UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk
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Students at the Malie Village Central School, Hanyuan County in Sichuan Province
in their new attire donated by UOB (China)
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UOB (China)'s management presenting the cheque to the representatives from the
Amity Foundation and YesKids

Laying the foundation for the future

In 2019, we continued to support underprivileged children
and those with special needs through our UOB Heartbeat
programmes, providing them with art and education resources.

2019 marked the eighth year of UOB (China)'s UOB Heartbeat
Run/Walk, which is the Group’s flagship employee volunteerism
and fundraising event. More than 2,200 people participated in
the event across 12 cities in mainland China.

We also invited our customers, associates from UOB Group,
business and charity partners as well as our WeChat fans to
join us to #keepthegoodgoing through UOB Heartbeat Run/
Walk activities. More than 4,400 people joined the Walk for
Good competition, an online game we ran using the WeChat
mini programme, to donate their steps and to raise funds for the
UOB Heartbeat programme.
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Mr Peter Foo, President and Chief Executive Officer of UOB (China) (middle)
and Ms Yang Zi, Supervisor of Yicai Foundation and TV Anchor of CBN TV (left)
serving coffee to the visitors at the pop-up shop
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The students from Ping’An Zhai School in Yunnan Province keeping their eyes on
the interesting online courses

In total, UOB (China) raised RMB460,000 to help underprivileged
and special needs children from the Amity Foundation
and YesKids. The funds were used to purchase school
supplies and necessities, to provide financial assistance and
scholarships and to sponsor the UOB Folk Art Education
programme. Close to 3,500 students in 14 schools in West
China have benefitted from the programmes.

We also continued our UOB Brings the World to Me
programme, a joint initiative with the Yicai Foundation
to provide education resources and online courses to
two schools in the remote mountainous areas of Yunnan
province. In 2019, we installed a live video booth at the
ground floor of UOB Plaza, our headquarters building in
Shanghai, for volunteers to conduct remote video courses at
the booth for the school students. The courses helped close
to 500 students learn more about the world beyond their
community.

In June 2019, we opened a two-day UOB Heartbeat pop-
up coffee shop to the public at UOB Plaza. We offered
free samples of the UOB Heartbeat coffee, produced in
collaboration with the Fuxing Coffee Cooperative, which is
made up of 102 Lisu Minority families from Yunnan province.
We encouraged visitors to buy the coffee to support
UOB Heartbeat programme beneficiaries. More than 500
colleagues and customers patronised the coffee shop and
raised close to RMB10,000 in support of the initiative.

The pop-up coffee shop was the first of its kind launched by
a foreign bank in China and our new approach to help local
businesses thrive and to make long-lasting positive impact
on the local community.
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Seeing the big picture - our volunteer with a beneficiary at the Rainbow Pen Child
Development Centre in Hongkou District of Shanghai
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UOB (China) volunteers brought books and school supplies to the students at
Central Primary School of Pian Ma Yi Minority Village in Sichuan Province.

Volunteering for good

At UOB (China), our colleagues regularly give back to the
community. In 2019, they contributed more than 5,300
volunteer hours at community outreach programmes.

As part of their annual Lunar New Year community outreach
efforts, in 2019 our Commercial Banking colleagues celebrated
the festival with children from underprivileged backgrounds
or with special needs and had an art therapy course with
them.

Our colleagues also answered the call from our Human
Resource team for book donations with more than 700 books
given to the students at Central Primary School in Pian Ma Yi
Minority Village, Hanyuan County, Sichuan Province.
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A student taking a closer look at a British Pound note
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The interface of the online game

Promoting financial literacy and enhancing consumer
protection and fair dealing

In 2019, we continued to roll out financial education
programmes and activities to promote consumer rights
protection and facilitate a strong fair dealing culture. We
invested about RMB42,200 to host 129 educational activities
with 796 colleagues and 16,776 customers taking part in these
activities.

For the World Consumer Rights Day on 15 March 2019, UOB
(China) developed a fun and interactive online game on
WeChat. By answering a few questions, participants could
find out if they might be easy targets for scammers. We
helped more than 1,252 financial consumers who took part
in the game to understand their risk exposure and to raise
consumer rights awareness.

As part of our financial education efforts, we continued to
teach children financial literacy, especially to those from
underprivileged backgrounds and with special needs. In
November 2019, our colleagues held a “Junior Banker” class
for the students at Pian Ma Yi Minority School to learn about
the basic knowledge of banking, saving and currencies.

B3R KRERT (HE ) ARFREEENHERIPELRES

Roadshows to promote consumer awareness on financial safety and security
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Mr Peter Foo, President and Chief Executive Officer, UOB (China) shared his views
on building customer confidence at the first UOB Consumer Protection Talk.

To engage customers further on the topic of consumer rights
protection, we developed new initiatives and programmes
in 2019, including the Consumer Protection Talk and UOB
Consumer Rights Protection Points System.

Written by members of the UOB (China) Consumer Rights
Protection Committee, Consumer Protection Talk is a
contributed column that is published quarterly through
employee email and our internal WeChat channel. The
column aims to share insights and advice with our colleagues
and to reinforce their understanding of fair dealing practices.

We also launched the UOB Consumer Rights Protection
Points System to encourage colleagues to learn more
about consumer rights protection and best practices in an
interesting and engaging way. It is an online system that
tracks and rewards our colleagues for actively participating
in different consumer protection activities. By completing
different tasks such as a monthly online quiz or attending
seminars, our colleagues can collect points with which they
can claim prizes.

We have in place a dedicated team to address customers’
concerns and feedback and to resolve serious complaints
in a fair and effective manner. In 2019, UOB (China) had no
consumer complaint about severe violation of consumer
rights. There was also no negative media coverage picked up
in relation to consumer rights breaches.
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UOB won second Financial Institution of the Year for the Belt and Road Initiative
award and Mr Brian Zhu, Chief Financial Officer of UOB (China) (third on the right)
received the award presented by Yicai Media Group.

etaitbanking

Awai® Ceremony

=T PR il
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Mr Paul Zhou, Head of Sales and Distribution, Personal Financial Services of UOB

(China) received the Best Retail Digital Bank Award on behalf of the Bank at Asia-
Pacific Retail Banking Summit 2019.
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Awards and Accolades

Excellent Finance Awards - Shanghai United Media Group,
Jiemian
« Foreign Bank of the Year

2019 China Financial Value Ranking - Yicai Media Group
e Financial Institution of the Year for the Belt and Road Initiative

2019 The Most Trusted Financial Institutions by Zhejiang
Entrepreneurs - Zhe Shang
e The most trusted foreign bank for the Belt and Road Initiative

The Triple A Awards 2019, Treasury, Trade Supply Chain and
Risk Management - The Asset

» Best Supply Chain solutions (Kohler case and Shell case)
 Best Service Provider — Distribution Finance

:.;-:""" o ™Y
¥
.

L2+ mgsef x| 2¢

L - T

THE ASSET 17 EA AN 5

TREASURY, T,

SUPPLY CHAIN

Bt KERIT (HE ) 7 (MH) Triple A RS, B5, BAUHERKE
EERITE S, FR=NRI, HITXHMBEERRCE L FEMRZATL

UOB (China) won three awards in Treasury, Trade Supply Chain and Risk
Management at the Triple A Awards 2019. Mr Albert Yuan, Head of Transaction

Banking attended the award ceremony to receive the awards.
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Mr Andy Zhang, Head of East Region and General Manager of Shanghai Branch, UOB
(China) (fifth from right) receiving the award from the ZheShang Magazine
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Mr Brian Zhu, Chief Financial Officer, UOB (China) (second from right) with other
winners of the Top 10 Public Welfare Partner Company at 2019 Shanghai Public

Welfare Selection award ceremony

Advanced Unit Award Recognition for the Shanghai Municipal
Clearing System - People’s Bank of China Shanghai

First Prize Award for Technology Article on Cloud Computing
- People’s Bank of China, Shanghai

China Retail Banking Innovation Summit 2019
 Best Consumer Digital Banking Award

IFPI Asia-Pacific Retail Banking Summit 2019
 Best Retail Digital Banking Brand

2019 China Best Employer Awards - Zhaopin.com
» Top 100 China Best Employers
 Best Employers for female employees

Excellence China Awards 2019 - 5ljob.com
100 Employer Excellence of China
« Excellence in Organisational Innovation

Work Different Awards 2019 - liepin.com
« Different Geek Employer (Shanghai)

2019 Shanghai Public Welfare Selection
« Top 10 Public Welfare Partner Company

Philanthropy Innovation Summit 2019
» Amity Foundation Partnership Award

2019 Yicai Foundation CSR Awards
 Annual partnership award

2019 Shanghai Banking Associations Annual Award
» Best Public Relations Case awards of Shanghai Banking Industry

BElFiiiE: KRERIT (PE) —FBEANFREAH =K FEHAXRLI,
HPaRESEERFMRKEHRER “PERERT” FRX—KM]

UOB (China) received five human resources awards from three prestigious

organisations, including winning the Top 100 China Best Employer Award for the
fifth year in a row.
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UOB (China) is committed to upholding good corporate

governance and is guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People’s Republic of China (PRC) Company Law,

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded
Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations
on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks; and

d) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors (Board), Board Committees, the
Supervisors and Senior Management perform their respective
duties according to the laws and regulations of the country and
the provisions in the Bank’s Articles of Association.

Board of Directors

a) Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong retired from the Board on 30
April 2019.

Following his retirement, the Board comprises five
members, two of whom are independent directors. The
size and composition of the Board comply with regulatory
requirements and the provisions in the Bank’s Articles of
Association. The five Board members are:

=4 147 £k RS AIEEH

Name Gender  Age Position Current Term of Office

BN 5 7 BEER/AFBUTIFYESR 201949 A17H E202249 16 B

Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman/Non-executive and non-independent director From 17 September 2019 to 16 September 2022

BATERIEEITKREFHITE)

TR 5 20194£10 A28 H 2022410 27H
® i 57 Executive and non-independent director (President and Chief

Peter Foo Moo Tan Male From 28 October 2019 to 27 October 2022

Executive Officer)

4515 IR E:S 5 FEPITIRMIES 20174 7A12H £2020%7A1H

Christine Ip Female Non-executive and non-independent director From 12 July 2017 to 11 July 2020

XM=k 2 6 MW IEHUTES 2019411 A16 A E20224E1A15H

Liu Erh Fei Male Non-executive and independent director From 16 November 2019 to 15 November 2022
RE# L) 6 MW AEITES 201858 A29H £2021%F6 A5H

Wu Yu Hua Male Non-executive and independent director From 29 August 2018 to 5 June 2021
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The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

* provide strategic directions, approve strategic business initiatives,
and approve the business plans and annual budget and KPIs;

» review and monitor the financial performance of the Bank, and
approve true and fair financial statements;

» determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

« set dividend policy and declare dividends;

e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior
Management and review the remuneration framework;

» putin place an effective management team;

« approve the organisational structure;

* oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk management
policies, processes and infrastructure to manage various types
of risk (including outsourcing risk);

» determine the risk profile of the Bank and approve credit
discretionary limits;

e review and monitor the risk management, internal audit and
compliance functions and ensure that these functions are
adequately resourced;

o evaluate the performance of the President and CEO and Senior
Management;

e establish appropriate procedures and processes to avoid
situations that may give rise to improper personal gains or
conflicts of interest;

* review and approve the Bank’s system of controls relating to
connected transactions;

e set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

e review the Bank’s information disclosure policy and be
responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the
information disclosed;

e report to the shareholder; and

e exercise such other power as authorised by the shareholder
and perform such other functions as required by the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association.

The Board shall meet at least four times a year. Additional
Board meetings shall be convened whenever necessary.

The Bank’s Articles of Association also provide for the Board
to make decisions by way of circular resolutions.

In 2019, the Board held five meetings, including four regular
meetings and one additional meeting. The quorum for each
meeting was met.

The Board passed two resolutions by way of circulation in
2019.

The procedures for convening a Board meeting, the quorum
required for constituting the meeting, the proceedings at
the meeting, and the procedures for voting and passing of
resolutions were in compliance with the requirements of
applicable PRC laws and regulations and the Bank’s Articles
of Association. The minutes of all Board meetings and the
circular resolutions are properly maintained by the Company
Secretary.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board
Committees, namely, Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC), Audit
Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC).

(1) Executive Committee

a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman), Mr
Peter Foo Moo Tan and Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

e the Bank’s business operations, including formulating internal
policies and business strategies, monitoring the execution of
business plans and approving relevant credit limits; and

» human resource matters, except for those pertaining to the
President and CEO and Deputy President.

c. The EXCO held four meetings in 2019.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a. The CTCC members are Mr Wu Yu Hua (Chairman with effect
from 30 April 2019), Mrs Christine Ip (member with effect
from 30 April 2019) and Mr Liu Erh Fei (who relinquished his
chairmanship on 30 April 2019 but continued to serve as a
member of the CTCC).

b. The CTCC’s main responsibilities are to:

e establish the framework for managing connected transactions;

» oversee the management of connected transactions and risks
therein;

e review non-material connected transactions; and

» review and submit material connected transactions to the Board
for approval.

c. The CTCC held one meeting in 2019.

d. The CTCC passed one resolution by way of circulation in 2019.
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(3) Audit Committee

a.

C.

The AC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman), Mrs Christine
Ip and Mr Wu Yu Hua.

The AC’s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all matters
relating to:

financial statements, and internal and external audit plans and
reports;

the adequacy of internal accounting controls and material
internal controls;

the scope and results of internal and external audits;

the quality of, and any significant change in, accounting policies
or practices;

the adequacy of internal audit resources;

significant findings from internal audit investigations;

the approval of external auditor’s fees; and

the nomination of the external auditor and the head of the
internal audit function.

The AC held four meetings in 2019.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a.

The NRC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman with effect
from 30 April 2019), Mr Wee Ee Cheong, Mr Wu Yu Hua (who
relinquished his chairmanship on 30 April 2019 but continued
to serve as a member of the NRC) and Mrs Christine Ip
(member with effect from 30 April 2019).

. The NRC'’s main responsibilities are to:
recommend nominees for appointment to the Board and Board
Committees;
recommend a framework for the remuneration of directors and
key senior executives (including the President and CEO and
Deputy President) for the Board's approval; and
put in place a system for assessing the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole, the contribution of each Board Committee
and director, and the performance of the President and CEO.

The NRC held one meeting in 2019.

. The NRC passed two resolutions by way of circulation in 2019.
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(5) Board Risk Management Committee

a. The BRMC members are Mrs Christine Ip (Chairman with
effect from 30 April 2019), Mr Wu Yu Hua and Mr Liu Erh Fei.

b. The BRMC's main responsibilities are to:

e review and recommend risk management strategies, policies
and risk tolerance of the Bank for the Board's approval;

e oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent with
the strategies and policies approved by the Board;

» review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s
risk management framework (including frameworks, policies,
methodologies, human resources, processes, information,
infrastructure and systems) for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling various types of risks;

» review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk
portfolio composition and the management and monitoring of
such exposures and portfolio composition; and

e report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk
event or trend for the Board’s attention.

c. The BRMC held four meetings in 2019.

Supervisors

The Bank has two Supervisors who were nominated by the
shareholder and appointed in accordance with regulatory
requirements and the Bank’s Articles of Association. They
are Dr Wee Cho Yaw (Supervisor) and Prof Cham Tao Soon
(Deputy Supervisor).

The main responsibilities of the Supervisors include:

» inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Management to ensure that
the Bank is run in a prudent manner and that the Board and
Senior Management take corrective actions where necessary;

« safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank,
the shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the
depositors; and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant to the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association, and as may be
authorised by the shareholder.

In 2019, the Supervisors duly discharged their responsibility
of supervising the Board and Senior Management strictly,
in accordance with relevant requirements, including the
provisions under the PRC Company Law and in the Bank’s
Articles of Association. In discharging their responsibility,
the Supervisors received and reviewed regular reports on
the Bank’s operations and risk management, and conducted
supervision of the operations and financial position of
the Bank and the performance of the Directors and Senior
Management. The Supervisors also met with directors and
Senior Management, and attended Board meetings.
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Performance of Independent Directors

There were two independent directors on the Board in 2019,
namely Mr Liu Erh Fei and Mr Wu Yu Hua. Mr Liu Erh Fei is
the Chairman of the NRC and AC, as well as a member of
the CTCC and BRMC. Mr Wu Yu Hua is the Chairman of the
CTCC, as well as a member of the NRC, AC and BRMC.

For the year under review, both independent directors
discharged their duties diligently and responsibly. They
contributed to the decision-making and oversight by the
Board and Board Committees and safeguarded the rights and
overall interests of the Bank and the shareholder.

1) Independent Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings
P 8
(including Interim Board Meeting) in 2019

RSN HiE BRIE
MITEEMZ (&) (&) (%) i
Name of Independent Director No. of Board Meetings No. of Board Meetings Absent with Remarks

Held Attended Apologies
o —
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Liu Erh Fei
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business commitments
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RITHERESZRAHSEERHITHBARBIRITER. RITH
MEER. RNEEE, ZEEESEENRAEFEREFRESHRN
HREAEEMEE—THRITE, RITHREREEANS AT
MHHEITHE, N TERERFNEATURARREFENLER
o BEREFERTEREMATMREFEMIIKRELER,
B ERZER, BHERITHRIE,

(2) Dissent of Independent Directors

In 2019, Management did not give cause for the independent
directors to record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisors’ and Directors’ Access to Information

The Supervisors and directors have unfettered access
to information and Management, and are provided with
timely and comprehensive financial, risk management and
operational reports to facilitate informed discussions during
meetings. They also have access to the Company Secretary
whose responsibilities include advising the Supervisors
and directors on regulatory changes and best practices in
corporate governance. The Supervisors and directors may
seek independent professional advice in the course of
discharging their duties at the Bank’s expense.
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) 1970 Doctor of Finance 16
XIONG Da Yong Head, Compliance Male Aug 2017 o
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WANG Hong Xia ) . 1971 Bachelor of International Business Management 26
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WRE e - kST HEEML
o Hl 201
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YE Yan 1971 Bachelor of Electrical Engineer 25
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Beicy Harbin Engineering University
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CHUA Hock Yew BRATITR ) - 1972 %1 Bachelor of Commerce, Honours 22
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Alexander University of Toronto, Canada
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Patrick Chinese Culture University, Taiwan
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ZHENG You Fan RS TR ) > 1970 019485 Master of Management in Accounting 20
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June National Taiwan University
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CHEN Xiao Ling Branch Manager of Xujiahui Sub-Branch  Female Jun 2018 The University of Shanghai for Science and
Technology
tict s g 1 LLFMBEARFRERATIHEEML
o EEHRITTR % 201645 AT P BT i M
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Steven National University of Singapore
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YANG Rui Qi 1973 Master of Applied Finance 18
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. X 1958 Bachelor of Commerce 38
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate Credit Male Sep 2008 o
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YEOH Kian Soon A ) 1970 Bachelor of Science 24
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Benedict Carnegie Mellon University, USA
SRR T FE A2 THEEMET
HONG Xiao Yan ANRBHAER = 1977 20074123 Master of Business Administration 22
Head, Human Resources Female Dec 2007 o
Amy Fudan University
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Sarah State University of New York at Buffalo, USA
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Remuneration

Remuneration Policy and Management

The remuneration policy of UOB (China) aims to provide
competitive remuneration package and ensure the bank
is able to appropriately attract, retain and motivate high
quality talents who not only fit the Bank’s culture and share
the same values but also meet the competencies that the
positions require. Meanwhile, the remuneration policy
outlines how our remuneration entitlement links to the
Bank’s performance, long-term benefits and risk management.
This remuneration policy applies to all of the full-time
employees with the Bank.

According to the Bank's remuneration policy, the employee’s
salary is mainly linked to the individual performance, the
Group’s and function’s performance. The performance target
setting clearly shows the requirements and expectations of
the Bank for risk management and long-term and short-term
performance of the function and the individual. In addition,
the compensation review of the employees who are taking
compliance and risk management’s roles is independent with
the performance of the business lines they supervise.

The Bank's variable pay includes performance bonus and
restricted shares, which links the staff variable pay to the
Bank's performance and current and future risks. In line
with the Supervisory Guidelines on Sound Compensation in
Commercial Banks issued by China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission, senior management and employees
whose roles have material impacts on the Bank’s risk
exposure would have a portion of their variable pay deferred.
Under the Bank’s latest deferral framework, the 50% deferral
rate will be applied to the variable pay for key senior
managements whereas for other senior managements and
employees whose roles have material impacts on the Bank’s
risk exposure, the 40% deferral rate will be applied to the
variable pay. This deferral will be in the form of deferred
shares or deferred cash (where applicable).

To maintain sound corporate governance practices and
an effective remuneration management, UOB (China) has
established a Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC), which consists of four Board Directors. The chairman
of NRC is an independent director. During the reporting
period, the committee held one meeting in total.

EE, UENSREEAN R
2090 ERITEARBRFHERSARZMNNEETELRITAART
769,500 JT, MMEZ{THMEREZSITAART 400,000 JT,

HE209512A3H, AT 27 E25LBEARRMNEEE
EY¥MRMLEMRAT, 72019 FRITHEIMFHNFHETAARD
81,845435 5T, EHEEHHZE A ANRT 47,694,548 JT, FIEZHEN
EEiA AR 34,150,887 Tt

ATEMLEEHMH. BEHMNBEEEMEERE,

PRI AN A ER B TR UL

PR B

KRERIT (PE ) KiIBEPERHEREAMBEZRIFESRERT
HREELE, BHSEI. TEEMRITILSEZRINIRGER
FEIE, FRAREAREEETIEEA KR,

RITEFLBEIEHEASWUREXABERS WL, HEETX
BERMAFHRE EERRSMESTERREMABHITIRE
B, AERWEZBTRESTHEN, EEIT-HRITRTRRRER.

HATHITH M BB Sk R AN G E AR E AABE R IR A EE I T8
FRIEENE., SEMMANYE, SRETRRTEEXKIRA . Eil
MiTfhEES. RENEEHEE. TEEEIREREVE. BL
BN S IENS, Z AR R F0H E R E R A B AR
TAEHENRPUTRESERIE,

Compensation for Board Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

In 2019, the Bank paid a total of RMB769,500 director fee
to the members of NRC, and paid a total of RMB400,000
supervisor fee to the supervisors.

As of 31 December 2019, there are total 27 senior executives
and material risk takers whose roles have material impacts on
the Bank’s risk exposure. The total compensation for these
executives and material risk takers in 2019 was RMB81,845,435,
including RMB47,694,548 fixed pay and RMB34,150,887
variable pay.

The Bank currently has no explicit and/or implicit adjustments
to the deferred pay and/or remained pay.

Internal Control and Internal Audit

Internal Control

UOB (China) has a well-established internal control system
that adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and
the Group’s policies and guidelines. This provides a robust
framework and systems that enable the Bank to set strategic
and practical objectives to support its business development.

The Board assesses the Bank's internal control framework and
systems through the review of risk management reports and
analysis, operational and budget reports, internal audit reports
tabled at regular meetings, discussions at various internal
committees and from the exchange of insights with industry
peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is a result of the continuous improvement on the
internal control environment, including, but not limited to,
strengthening of risk identification/assessment, monitoring
processes and risk mitigation techniques; and constantly
reviewing communication/feedback as well as evaluation/
correction mechanisms. The internal control framework and
systems are able to provide a reasonable level of assurance on
the implementation of legal statutes and regulations.
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Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports
functionally to the Audit Committee (AC) and Group Audit,
while administratively reporting to the President and Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of UOB (China).

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board and
management to discharge their legal and executive obligations
by providing independent, objective assurance and value-
added services to improve the Bank’s operations. It helps the
Bank to accomplish its objectives by having a systematic and
disciplined approach to provide an independent assessment of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal financial
controls, operational and compliance controls, and to improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes.

It performs its internal audit function according to the Internal
Audit Guidelines for Financial Institutions as governed by
the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission and
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Internal Audit adopts
a risk-based prioritisation approach to develop its strategic
audit plan to determine audit frequency. This approach
also adopts a comprehensive assessment of inherent risks,
controls, management concerns and regulatory hotspots. The
audit scope covers all businesses, operations as well as the
infrastructure and applications of systems across UOB (China)’s
headquarters and branches. The strategic plan is reviewed
annually.

Internal Audit conducts audits in accordance with the internal
audit plan approved by the AC, and carry out investigations
or reviews that may be ad hoc requested by the CEO, senior
management or the AC. All internal audit reports are provided
to relevant management, the CEO, the AC and the Board (where
required) with significant issues highlighted. Internal Audit is
responsible for closely monitoring and assessing the follow-up
actions taken by the management team on the issues raised by
Internal Audit, external audit and regulators, with reporting to
the AC and the regulator on quarterly basis.
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Risk Management

Risk Mangement

Managing risk is an integral part of our business strategy. Our
risk management approach focuses on ensuring continued
financial soundness and safeguarding the interests of our
stakeholders, while remaining nimble to seize value-creating
business opportunities in a fast changing environment. We
are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance, sound risk management principles and business
practices to achieve sustainable long-term growth. We
continuously strive towards best risk management practices
to support our strategic objectives.

2019 Highlights

In 2019 we continued our efforts to promote and inculcate
the Group’s desired risk culture, and stepped up risk culture
communication efforts bankwide to emphasize the Tone
from the Top and Tone from Above. To gauge the results of
the various risk culture initiatives, we enhanced our Employee
Engagement Survey, and conducted a self-assessment
exercise of our risk culture based on the Financial Stability
Board guidelines. Overall the assessment indicated that the
Bank had the appropriate practices in place to promote the
desired risk culture, to espouse our values and to shape the
right risk-taking behaviour.

In January 2019 we implemented Expected Shortfall (ES)
limits monitoring. ES has the advantage over the traditional
VaR measure in that it reflects the extreme losses beyond
the set confidence level. It provides a more accurate picture
of the risk as it takes into account the spread of the tail
losses in the process of historical simulation. Thus it captures
the large movements in the event of financial market stress
which the VaR measure does not.

Addressing Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
issues remained a key focus for UOB. In recognition of the
rising threat posed by climate change and in line with the
Group’s policy, we tightened the local Responsible Financing
Policy in relation to the financing of carbon-intensive sectors.
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Maintaining a Sound Risk Culture

We believe that a strong risk culture is vital to the long-term
sustainability of the Bank’s business franchise. It ensures that
our decisions and actions are considered and focused on our
customers, and that we are not side-tracked by perceived
short-term gains. Specifically, risk culture refers to the norms,
attitudes and behaviours related to risk awareness, risk-taking
and risk management, and controls that shape decisions on
risks'. At UOB, our risk culture is based on our values.

UOB’s Risk Culture Statement

Managing risk is integral to how UOB creates long-term
value for our customers and stakeholders. Our risk culture
is built on four principles: enforcing robust risk governance;
balancing growth with stability; ensuring accountability for
all our risk-based decisions and actions; and encouraging
awareness, engagement and consistent behaviour in every
employee. Each of these principles is based on UOB’s
distinctive set of values that guides every action we take. In
entrenching our risk culture further across our franchise, we
uphold our commitment to financial safety and soundness;
fair outcomes and appropriate support for our customers;
sustainable and prudent approach to business and
performance based on integrity, ethics and discipline.
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1 Guidelines, Corporate Governance Principles for Banks, Basel Committee
on Banking Supervision, July 2015.

Safeguarding our reputation in creating long-lerm value for our stakeholders
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UOB (China)’s risk management structure, as shown in the
following diagram, underpins the Group’s risk culture. Under
the structure, the various risk and control oversight functions
work with business and support units to identify their risks
and to facilitate their risk and control self-assessments.

Risk Culture
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Capital Management
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Risk Governance Frameworks,

Risk Assessment
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Risk Monitoring
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Risk Reporting
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Our risk management strategy is targeted at embedding our
risk culture so as to facilitate ongoing effective risk discovery
and to set aside adequate capital efficiently to cater for
the risks arising from our business activities and external
factors. Risks are managed within levels established by the
senior management committees and approved by the Board
and its committees. We have put in place a framework of
policies, methodologies, tools and processes that will help
us identify, measure, monitor and manage material risks faced
by the Bank. This allows us to concentrate our efforts on the
fundamentals of banking and to create long-term value for
all our stakeholders.

The Bank’s risk governance frameworks, policies and appetite
provide the overarching principles and guidance for the
Bank’s risk management activities. They help to shape our
key decisions for capital management, strategic planning and
budgeting, and performance management to ensure that the
risk dimension is appropriately and sufficiently considered.
We also take into consideration the Bank’s risk appetite in
the development of risk-related key performance indicators
(KPIs) for performance measurement. This serves to embed
a risk management mindset and culture throughout the
organisation.

Our risk identification, assessment, monitoring and reporting
processes are governed by applicable risk management
frameworks, policies and appetites. Risk reports are regularly
submitted to management and the Board to keep them
apprised of the Bank’s risk profile.

Risk Governance

UOB (China)’s responsibility for risk management starts at the

top with our Board overseeing a governance structure that is

designed to ensure that the Bank’s business activities are:

» conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with
the highest standards of professionalism;

» consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and
risk appetite; and

e subjected to adequate risk management and internal
controls.

In this regard, the Board is assisted by the Executive
Committee (EXCO) and Board Risk Management Committee
(BRMC) in the oversight of risks. The Board also reviews the
overall risk appetite and level of risk capital to maintain for
the Bank.

The CEO has established senior management committees to
assist in making business decisions with due consideration to
risks and returns. The main senior management committees
involved in this are the Management Committee (MC),
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), In-Country Credit
Committee (ICCC), Operational Risk Management Committee
(ORMC), Consumer Rights Protection Committee (CRPC) and
the Risk and Capital Committee (RCC). These committees
also assist the Board committees in specific risk areas.

BAEEENSRAEEZRSEBEIGT IS &£E&M / LEZH~H
£BAETE R R IFIRER

REEEHRBRITHSIRINEE, REZIRFIERRET—/ 6
EMEZEBRNB RN AL, HRIEDRITHSTHEELY
REFREHEE, XRETM TR “ZERL” ARERLE
AT

Senior management and the senior management committees
are authorised to delegate risk appetite limits by business
lines and/or broad product lines.

Risk management is also the responsibility of every employee
within the Bank. Risk awareness and accountability are
embedded in our culture through an established framework
that ensures appropriate oversight and accountability for the
effective management of risk throughout the Bank and across
risk types. This is executed through an organisation control
structure that provides three lines-of-defence as follows:

XU TR TR 2544
Risk Governance Structure . EHERS
Audit Committee
& - BEREQRREERERS
K E Board Risk Management Committee
EH2 y | £ E | marwmzas
Board of Directors ﬁ!ﬂ: % Nominating and Remuneration Committee
w3 | PTERZ
Executive Committee
- KRZZEHERS
Connected Transactions Control Committee
- RESREERS
Risk & Capital Committee
9 - ERERS
n ;E In-Country Credit Committee
K £ |- AFamERS
HEHITE > téﬂ“ S Asset & Liability Committee
CEO fw £ | - BEERS
ﬁ %o Management Committee
g - EPARERIPERS
& Consumer Rights Protection Committee
- BERREEZERS
Operational Risk Management Committee

A S5ERI] SFFEBIT]
Business Functions Support Functions

&R SMED
Hit it

Internal External
Audit Audit

SE—JEBH%Z First line of defence

28 ZiEBh%k Third line of defence
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First line of defence - The Risk Owner:

The business and business support functions have primary
responsibility for implementing and executing effective
controls for the management of risks arising from their
business activities. This includes establishing adequate
managerial and supervisory controls to ensure compliance
with approved risk policies, appetite, limits and controls and
to highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes
and unexpected risk events.

Second line of defence - Risk Oversight:

The risk and control oversight functions (Risk Management
and Compliance Function), and the Chief Risk Officer (CRO)
provide the second line of defence.

The risk and control oversight functions support the Bank’s
strategy of balancing growth with stability by establishing risk
policies, frameworks, risk appetite and limits within which
the business functions must operate. The risk and control
oversight functions are also responsible for the independent
review and monitoring of the Bank’s risk profile and highlight
any significant vulnerabilities and risk issues to the respective
management committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions
from business functions ensures the necessary checks and
balances.

Third line of defence - Independent Audit:

The Bank’s internal and external auditors conduct risk-based
audits covering all aspects of the first and second lines of
defence to provide independent assurance to the CEO, Audit
Committee and the Board, on the effectiveness of the risk
management and control structure, policies, frameworks,
systems and processes.

XU 4 5F
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Risk Appetite

UOB (China) has established a risk appetite framework
to define the amount of risk we are able and willing to
take in pursuit of its business objectives. The objective of
establishing a risk appetite framework is not to limit risk-
taking but to ensure that the Bank’s risk profile remains
within well-defined and tolerable boundaries. The framework
was formulated based on the following key criteria:

» relevance to respective stakeholders, with appropriate
levels of granularity;

« practical, consistent and easy to understand metrics for
communication and implementation;

» alignment to key elements of the Bank’s business strategy;

» analytically substantiated and measureable metrics.

The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds and limits across
key areas including but not limited to credit risk, country
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and reputation
risk. Our risk-taking approach is focused on businesses which
we understand and are well-equipped to manage the risk
involved. Through this approach, we aim to limit earnings
volatility and concentration risk and ensure that our high
credit rating, strong capital and funding base remain intact.
This allows us to be a stable partner of our customers
through changing economic conditions and cycles.

UOB (China)’s risk appetite framework and risk appetite
are reviewed and approved annually by the Board. The
Management monitors and reports the risk limits to the
Board and BRMC.
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Material Risks

UOB (China)’s business strategies, products, customer profiles
and operating environment expose us to a number of financial
and non-financial risks. Identifying and monitoring key risks are
integral to the Bank’s approach to risk management. It enables
us to make proper assessment and to mitigate these risks
proactively across the Bank. The table below lists the key risks
which could impact the success of achieving the Bank’s strategic
objectives.

BEXXE EX XUB B
Material Risk  Definition How risk is managed
A 55 XU WEREHER T SSHNETE, flmilssE, FEMRANEL RIBEEXESEERETUSREER, Fh5Y

Business Risk

T Xof i i B 8 A 7 A AN S

The adverse impact on earnings or capital arising from changes in

EEEZERSHRKE,

Through overall risk governance framework and

business parameters such as volumes, margins and costs.

oversight by senior management committees.

BARKE EX XU B
Material Risk  Definition How risk is managed
=X FEREREEHFERASLLZSXNFRERTIPRNSHIEANE FMTHETEEREEEELR. B3R, XEERFX
5| B R KU o W BR &R T XUBE B
Credit Risk The risk of loss arising from any failure by a borrower or counterparty Through the Bank's credit risk management framework,
to meet its financial obligations when such obligations are due. policies, probability of default/loss given default/
exposure at default/portfolio models and limits.
Gz WIFREIE R FRXAFNTIHNEES (FlWmFER, LR, RE XMTEIETHHRNEEEELR. BK. NEMEER
g, BRMEFMEREENTN ) BRITERRKIRMKE, TR PREHIT KB B
Market Risk  The risk of loss to the Bank from movements in the market rates or Through the Bank's market risk management framework,
prices (such as changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity policies, Value-at-Risk models and limits.
prices, commodity prices and credit spreads) of the underlying asset.
MEERE  RHEREREBRITEERBREREHLEUSERERERE FTHETRFAGNEEEERFITREER, €
RE N R B KB AR E T ARIRE, BB TIEURFIXU R &R
Liquidity Risk The risk that arises from the Bank's inability to meet its obligations or Through the Bank's balance sheet risk management
fund increases in assets as they fall due. framework, liquidity risk management policies, ratios
and limits.
BRIEXUR RIEREZIERATESARNEMNBERF. RAINESRK RS, XNMTEIETIREXNLEEELR, BK. SEIAHET

Operational
Risk

R SMEREHPTIE R IR R R RIERB RS IRITEIERE . B
ERE ., AR, BESHRE., FERE. SMERE SRR,
EREER BT SR,

The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and systems or from external events. Potential loss may
be in the form of financial loss or other damage, for example, loss
of reputation and public confidence that will impact the Bank's
creditability and ability to transact, to maintain liquidity and to obtain
new business. This includes banking operations risk, fraud risk, legal
risk, outsourcing risk, regulatory risk, reputational risk and technology
risk but excludes strategic and business risks.

BIERKEEE, SERBRIRZIFEHBERITMG,. X
BRIERBEIEIR. RIERREAHRE. EERBREIRM
BRI,

Through the respective risk management frameworks,
policies, and operational risk management programmes
including Key Risk and Control Self-Assessments,
Key Operational Risk Indicators, Incident Reporting,
Management Risk Awareness and Scenario Analysis.

SR XL

Strategic Risk

REE KBS BT AR BRI, RRBUT AT, 25
M TURZ MR T XU, AT EIEM A RS S E

=218

The current or prospective negative impact on earnings, capital
or reputation arising from adverse strategic decisions, improper
implementation of decisions or a lack of responsiveness to industry,
economic or technological changes.

RIBEAE R GIEIERBITRIENEEE, FHSR
EERERSHTEE,

Through overall risk governance framework and
oversight by senior management committees.
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(EMRE) 5
- R g AT RERKRRRE R ( R EEER ) .
Model Risk  This is the risk arising from:

- the use of a model which cannot accurately evaluate market prices, or

Managed under the respective material risk types for
which there is a quantitative model.

which is not a mainstream model in the market (pricing models); or
- inaccurately estimating the probability or magnitude of future losses

(risk measurement models).

KRERIT (hE ) RN T EERIEZE R ET P EBRITRERL
BEEHERERS (CBIRC) MM RITHERSIELE, RNBEXA
EEMEBEEN T EEATELNEERERIKRER, BA
EESREEERNIES TIREMSELSER,

RITERANTALT B ITMIERF (ICAAP), FRETMTRREAILS
FENEREH, RNEPFANBAETRITEERF, UHRE
ERIFAEARKBIER TRITRFRIFREANR, HITEIFRE
ENMAHEEENFHTHREERREE,

UOB (China) has adopted the Basel Framework and observes
capital management measures on commercial banks by
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC).
We continue to adopt a prudent and proactive approach
in navigating the evolving regulatory landscape, with
emphasis on sound risk management principles in delivering
sustainable returns.

We have adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) to assess on an ongoing basis the amount of
capital necessary to support our activities. We review the
ICAAP periodically to ensure that the Bank remains well-
capitalised after considering all material risks. Stress testing
is conducted to determine capital adequacy under stressed
conditions.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a
borrower or counterparty to meet its financial obligations
when such obligations are due. Credit risk is the single
largest risk that we face in our core business as a commercial
bank, arising primarily from loans and other lending-related
commitments to retail, corporate and institutional borrowers.
Treasury and capital market operations, and investments also
expose the Bank to counterparty and issuer credit risks.

The Bank adopts a holistic approach towards assessing
credit risk and ensures that managing credit risk is part of an
integrated approach to enterprise risk management. Integral
to the management of credit risk is a framework that clearly
defines policies and processes relating to the identification,
measurement and management of credit risk, within the
Bank.

Credit Risk Governance and Organisation

The RCC and ICCC are the key oversight committees for
credit risk and support the CEO and board level committees
in managing the Bank’s overall credit risk exposures. The
committees serve as executive forum for discussions on all
credit-related issues including the credit risk management
framework, policies, processes, infrastructure, methodologies
and systems. Particularly, ICCC holds the responsibility of
approving credit facilities and exposures to borrowers and/or
counterparties of the Bank within the Risk Appetite Limit set
by the Board and the discretionary limits delegated by the
EXCO. RCC discusses and proposes credit risk management
framework for the Board approval, and reviews and assesses
the Bank’s credit portfolios and credit risk profiles.

The Credit Risk Management Division under Risk Management
Function develops bank-wide credit policies and guidelines
and focuses on facilitating business development within a
framework that results in prudent, consistent and efficient
credit risk management. It is responsible for the reporting,
analysis and management of all elements of credit risk to
relevant management committees, with comprehensive
credit risk reports cover business segments at the overall
portfolio level by various dimensions including industry,
product and country.
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Credit Risk Policies and Processes

We have established credit policies and processes to manage
credit risk in the following key areas:

Credit Approval Process

Credit origination and approval functions are clearly
segregated to maintain the independence and integrity of
the credit approval process. Credit approval authority is
delegated to officers based on their experience, seniority
and track record. All credit approval officers are guided by
credit policies and credit acceptance guidelines which are
periodically reviewed to ensure their continued relevance to
the Bank’s business strategy and the business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review and
monitoring, credit stress testing, limits setting, pricing and
collections. The models are independently validated before
they are implemented to ensure they are fit for the purpose.
The robustness of these rating models is monitored on an
ongoing basis, and all models are subject to annual reviews
conducted by model owners to ascertain that the chosen risk
factors and assumptions continue to remain relevant for the
respective portfolios.

Counterparty Credit Risk

Unlike normal lending risk where the notional amount at risk
can be determined with a high degree of certainty during
the contractual period, counterparty credit risk exposure
fluctuates with market variables. Counterparty credit risk is
measured as the sum of current mark-to-market value and
an appropriate add-on factor for potential future exposure
(PFE). The PFE factor is an estimate of the maximum credit
exposure over the remaining life of the foreign exchange
(FX) / derivative transaction and is used for limit setting and
internal risk management.

Exposures arising from FX, derivatives and securities financing
transactions are typically mitigated through agreements
such as the International Swaps and Derivatives Association
(ISDA) Master Agreements, and the National Association of
Financial Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII) Agreement.
Such agreements help to minimise credit exposure by
allowing us to offset what we owe to counterparty against
what is due from that counterparty in the event of a default.
The Bank has also established policies to address wrong-way
risk, i.e. where the counterparty credit exposure is positively
correlated with its default risk.

In addition, derivative transactions are cleared through
Central Counterparties, where possible, to reduce
counterparty credit exposure further through multilateral
netting and the daily margining process.
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Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large
exposure or from multiple exposures that are closely
correlated. This is managed by setting exposure limits
on obligor groups, portfolios, borrowers, industries and
countries, generally expressed as a percentage of the Bank’s
eligible capital base. Regular assessments of emerging
risks and reviews of industry and country outlooks are
also performed to provide a forward-looking view on
developments that could impact the Bank’s portfolio.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress-testing is an integral part of the Bank’s credit
portfolio management process. It involves identifying
possible events or future changes in economic conditions
that may have unfavorable effects on the Bank’s credit
exposures, and assessing the Bank’s ability to manage its
financial resources through adverse circumstances. Likewise,
business credit stress test or sensitivity analysis are also
conducted to assess designated loan portfolio’s quality and
capital impact under the stress scenario and test parameters
prescribed by the Regulator.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Our potential credit losses are mitigated through a variety
of instruments such as collateral, derivatives, guarantees and
netting arrangements. The Bank would generally not grant
credit facilities solely on the basis of the collateral provided.
All requests for credit facilities are assessed based on the
credit standing, source of repayment and debt servicing
ability of the borrower.

The Bank takes collateral whenever possible to mitigate the
credit risk assumed. The value of the collateral is monitored
periodically and the frequency of valuation would depend
on the type, liquidity and volatility of the collateral value.
The collaterals are mostly in the form of properties, cash,
and bank guarantees. Appropriate haircuts that reflect the
underlying nature of the collaterals, quality, volatility and
liquidity would be applied to the market value of collaterals
as appropriate.

When extending credit facilities to small-and-medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs), we also often take personal guarantees
to secure the moral commitment from the principal
shareholders and directors.

Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management

The Bank regularly monitors credit exposures, portfolio
performance and emerging risks that may impact our credit
risk profile. The Board and senior mmanagement are updated
on credit trends through internal risk reports. An early alert
process has also been put in place whereby vulnerable
accounts are escalated by the business units to senior
management for discussion on account strategy and remedial
actions.
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Delinquency Monitoring

We monitor closely the delinquency of borrowing accounts
as it is a key indicator of credit quality. An account is
considered as delinquent when payment has not received
on the payment due date. All delinquent accounts including
revolving credit facilities with limit excesses, are closely
monitored and managed through a disciplined process by
officers from business units and risk management function.
Where appropriate, such accounts are also subject to more
frequent credit reviews.

Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

We classify our credit portfolios according to the borrower’s
ability to repay the credit facility from their normal source
of income. There is an independent credit review process to
ensure the appropriateness of loan grading and classification.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into ‘Pass’, ‘Special
Mention’ or ‘Non-Performing’. ‘Non-Performing’ or impaired
accounts are further sub-divided into ‘Substandard’, ‘Doubtful’
or ‘Loss’ in accordance with the guidelines of CBIRC. Any
account which is delinquent (or in excess for a revolving
credit facility) for more than 90 days will be categorised
automatically as ‘Non-Performing’. In addition, any account
that exhibits weaknesses which are likely to adversely affect
repayment on existing terms may be categorised as ‘Non-
Performing’. The accounting definition of impaired and the
regulatory definition of default are generally aligned.

Upgrading and declassification of a Non-Performing account
to ‘Pass’ or ‘Special Mention’ status must be supported by
a credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows
and financial position of the borrower. We must also be
satisfied that once the account is declassified, the account is
unlikely to be classified again in the near future.

A credit facility is restructured when a bank grants concessions
(usually non-commercial) to a borrower because of
deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or
the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment
schedule.A restructured account is categorised as ‘Non-
Performing’ and placed on the appropriate classified grade
based on our assessment of the financial condition of the
borrower and the ability of the borrower to repay under the
restructured terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBIRC guidelines
after careful consideration of the future recovery value
including liquidation of collateral of the Non-Performing
account. A non-performing account is written off when
the prospect of a recovery is considered poor or when all
feasible avenues of recovery have been exhausted.
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Special Asset Management and Retail Credit Management
Special Asset Management and Retail Credit Management
are independent units that respectively manage the
restructuring, workout and recovery of Bank’s corporate
and retail mortgage non-performing portfolios. The primary
objectives are to nurse non-performing accounts back to
financial health whenever possible for transfer back to
business unit for management; and to maximise recovery of
such accounts that the Bank intends to exit.

EOES AR (BAT) = b
Loans by Classification Outstanding (RMB' m) (%)
IE# Pass 35,3104 98.8%
XiF Special Mention 0.6%
2% Substandard 224.0 0.6%
A[%E Doubtful -
5k Loss -
&1t Total 35,7489 100%

(RRATU S HIMEESHRERES RETHITM SRENAXERFTS )

(For Loans by Industry Distribution and by Geographical Region, please refer to relevant note of the audited financial report)

2019 £ JE, ARWHEIHTART 224 27T, HREHREEALLFIH 0.6%,
WEBERM85%, W EEN 22%, HHE T 140% K 21% K

RIBEEER,
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As at 31 December 2019, total non-performing loans amounted
to RMB224 million, representing 0.6 per cent of the Bank’s total
loans portfolio. Non-performing loan coverage ratio was 348.5
per cent and provision-to-loan ratio was 2.2 per cent, above
the regulatory minimum requirement of 140 per cent and 2.1 per
cent respectively.
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Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss to the Bank from
movements in the market rates or prices (such as changes
in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices,
commodity prices and credit spreads) of the underlying asset.
Market risk is governed by the ALCO, which meets monthly
to review and provide directions on market risk matters.

The Market Risk Management and Product Control (MRPC)
and Balance Sheet Risk Management (BSRM) Divisions
support the BRMC, RCC and ALCO with independent
assessment of the market risk profile of the Bank.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk
policies, practices, and the control structure with appropriate
delegation of authority and market risk limits. We employ
valuation methodologies that are in line with sound
market practices and validate valuation and risk models
independently. In addition, the Product/Service Programme
process ensures that different risks, including market risk
issues, are identified and adequately addressed prior to
launch.

One of the Bank’s main objectives in undertaking trading
activities is to provide customer-centric products and
services to support our customers’ business and hedging
needs. We continually review and enhance our management
of derivatives risks to ensure that the complexities of the
business are appropriately controlled.

Our overall market risk appetite is balanced with targeted
revenue at the Bank and business unit levels and takes
into account the capital position of the Bank. This ensures
that the Bank remains well-capitalised, even under stress
conditions. The risk appetite is translated into risk limits
that are delegated to business units. These risk limits have
proportional returns that are commensurate with the risks
taken.

Market risk appetite is provided for all trading exposure
within the Bank and the Bank’s non-trading FX exposures.
The Bank is mainly exposed to market risk in its trading
portfolios that arises from changes in interest rates, FX rates
and commodity prices from the Bank’s client-driven market
making and product structuring activities as well as trading
activities.
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Trading Backtesting Chart

Standardised Approach

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for the
calculation of regulatory market risk capital but uses Internal
Models Approach to measure and control trading market
risks.

Internal Model Approach

The Bank estimates a daily Expected Shortfall (ES) within
a 97.5 per cent confidence interval over a one-day holding
period, using the historical simulation method, as a control
for market risk. The method assumes that possible future
changes in market rates may be implied by observed
historical market movements. ES is the average portfolio loss,
assuming that the loss is greater than the specified percentile
of the loss distribution.
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For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR within a 99 per
cent confidence interval over a one-day holding period, based
on the historical simulation method. As VaR is the statistical
measure for potential losses, the VaR measures are backtested
against profit and loss of the trading book to validate the
robustness of the methodology. The backtesting process
analyses whether the exceptions are due to model deficiencies
or market volatility. All backtest exceptions are tabled at the
ALCO with recommended actions and resolutions.

To complement the ES measure, we perform stress and scenario
tests to identify the Bank's vulnerability to event risk. These
tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible extreme losses
for which proactive management of market risk is taken.

The Bank’s daily ES on 31 December 2019 was RMB6.8 million.

Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

Interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) is defined as the
risk of potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings due
to changes in the interest rates environment.

In the course of our core banking activities, the bank
strives to meet customers’ demands and preferences for
products with various interest rate structures and maturities.
Mismatches in repricing and other characteristics of
assets and liabilities give rise to sensitivity to interest rate
movements. As interest rates and yield curves change over
time, these mismatches may result in a change in the bank's
economic net worth and/or a decline in earnings. Our
primary objective of managing IRRBB is to protect and to
enhance capital or economic net worth through adequate,
stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings under a
broad range of possible economic conditions.

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the
interest rate risk management structure including approval
of policies, controls and limits. The BSRM Division supports
the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the
banking book. Behavioural models used are independently
validated and governed by approved policy. Management
and mitigation of IRRBB through hedging instruments and
activities are governed by the Bank's IRRBB policies which
are subject to regular review. Monitoring of positions
against mandates, limits and triggers approved by relevant
committees and delegated to relevant business units provide
alerts for timely discussions to control potential risks.

The Bank’s banking book interest rate risk exposure is
quantified on a monthly basis using dynamic simulation
techniques .The Bank employs a holistic approach towards
balance sheet risk management, using an in-house enterprise
risk management system to integrate liquidity risk and IRRBB
into a single platform for the Bank’s reporting in a timely
manner.
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Interest rate risk varies with different repricing periods,
currencies and embedded options and interest rate basis.
Embedded options may be in the form of loan prepayment
and time deposit early withdrawal. In Economic Value of
Equity (EVE) sensitivity simulations, we compute the present
value for repricing cash flows, with the focus on changes in
EVE under different interest rate scenarios. This economic
perspective measures interest rate risks across the full
maturity profile of the balance sheet, including off-balance
sheet items. We estimate the potential effects of interest
rate changes on Net Interest Income (NII) by simulating
the possible future course of interest rates and expected
changes in business activities over time. Mismatches in the
longer tenor will experience greater change in EVE than
similar positions in the shorter tenor while mismatches in
the shorter tenor will have a greater impact on NII. Interest
rate scenarios used in simulations include the six standard
scenarios prescribed by Basel including positive and negative
tilt scenarios.

We also perform stress tests regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme
interest rate movements on the balance sheet. Such tests
are also performed to provide early warnings of potential
extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management of
interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial market
changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates,
FX rates and equity prices are managed and controlled under
the market risk framework.
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises from the bank’s inability
to meet its obligations or fund increases in assets as they fall
due. The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund our day-
to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner to
address known as well as unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO. These
policies, controls and limits enable the Bank to monitor and
to manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources
of funds are available over a range of market conditions.
These include minimising excessive funding concentrations
by diversifying the sources and terms of funding as well as
maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable debt
securities.

We take a conservative stance in the Bank’s liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring
that liquidity limits are strictly adhered to and that there are
adequate liquid assets to meet cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is managed actively to ensure a
balance between cost effectiveness, continued accessibility
to funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing,
proactive management of the Bank’s core deposits and the
maintenance of customer confidence.

Our liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk
management framework and is measured and managed on
a projected cash flow basis. The bank is monitored under
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the bank’s liquidity exposure.
We also employ liquidity early warning indicators and
trigger points to signal possible contingency situations. Our
Liquidity Ratio (LR) and High Quality Liquid Asset Adequacy
Ratio (HQLAAR) are above the regulatory requirements.

We have contingency funding plans in place to identify
potential liquidity crises using a series of warning indicators.
Crisis management processes and various strategies including
funding and communication have been developed to
minimise the impact of any liquidity crunch.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events. Operational risk includes banking operations
risk, fraud risk, legal risk, regulatory compliance risks,
reputational risk, outsourcing risk and technology risk, but
excludes strategic and business risk.

Our primary objective is to foster a sound reputation and
operating environment.

Operational Risk Governance, Framework and Tools
Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies
and procedures by which business and support units properly
identify, assess, monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The
ORMC meets monthly to provide oversight of operational
risk matters in the bank.

The Operational Risk Governance structure adopts the three
lines-of-defence model. The business and support functions,
as the first line of defence, are responsible for establishing
a robust control environment as part of their day-to-day
operations. Each business and support unit is responsible for
implementing the operational risk framework and policies,
embedding appropriate internal controls into processes and
maintaining business resilience for key activities.

The Operational Risk Management Division, as the second
line of defence, provides overarching governance of
operational risk through relevant frameworks, policies,
programmes and systems. It also monitors key risk self-
assessment results, outsourcing matters, key operational
risk indicator breaches, self-identified operational risks and
incidents and reports these to senior management, the
relevant senior management committees and the Board.

Internal Audit acts as the third line of defence by providing
through periodic audit reviews, an independent and
objective assessment on the overall effectiveness of the risk
governance framework and internal control through periodic
audit reviews.

A key component of the operational risk management
framework is risk identification and control self-assessments.
This is achieved through the Bank-wide implementation of
a set of operational risk programmes. Several risk mitigation
policies and programmes are in place to maintain a sound
operating environment.

We have business continuity and crisis management
programmes in place to ensure prompt recovery of critical
business and support units should there be unforeseen
events. The senior management provides an annual
attestation to the Board on the state of business continuity
readiness of the Bank.
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The Bank’s insurance programme covers civil and crime
liability, cyber security, property damage, terrorism, public
liability, as well as directors’ and officers’ liability. The
programme reduces operational losses through adequate
insurance coverage.

Technology Risk

Technology Risk is defined as any potential adverse outcome,
damage, loss, violation, failure or disruption arising from
the use of or reliance on information and communication
technologies. The governance of technology risk rests with
the ORMC to enable a holistic oversight of operational
risk matters across the Bank. The Bank’s technology risk
management framework ensures that technology and cyber
risks are managed in a systematic and consistent manner.
The Technology Risk Management team has governance and
oversight of technology risk management across the Bank.
The team works closely with business and support units to
oversee, to review and to strengthen their current practices
in technology risk management.The Bank has implemented
the Technology Risk Appetite in 2019. A set of technology risk
management programs are in place to manage technology
risks within the Bank.

Regulatory Risk

Regulatory risk refers to the risk of non-compliance with
laws, regulations, rules, standards and codes of conduct. We
identify, monitor and manage this risk through a structured
governance framework of Compliance policies, procedures
and guidelines maintained by the Bank. The framework also
manages the risk of regulatory breaches relating to Sanctions,
Anti-money Laundering and Countering the Financing of
Terrorism.

Legal Risk

Legal risk arises from unenforceable, unfavourable, defective
or unintended contracts, lawsuits or claims, developments
in laws and regulations, or non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. Business and support units work with
the Bank’s both internal and external legal counsels to ensure
that legal risks are managed.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings,
liquidity or capital arising from negative stakeholder
perception or opinion of the Bank’s business practices,
activities and financial condition. The Bank recognises the
impact of reputational risk and has developed respective
framework and policy to identify and to manage the risk in
the Bank.
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Outsourcing Risk

Outsourcing risk is the risk of adverse financial, operational,
and reputational, legal and compliance impact arising from
the failure of a service provider to provide the outsourced
service or to comply with legal and regulatory requirements,
or a service provider’s breaches of security. The Bank has in
place the Outsourcing Risk Management framework, policy,
procedures and guidelines to manage outsourcing risks.

Fraud Risk

Fraud is defined as an act, with an element to deceive or to
conceal facts; and is not restricted to the gain of monetary
or material benefits.

UOB (China) actively manages fraud risks. Integrated Fraud
Management (IFM) Division under Risk Management in the
second line of defence, drives strategy, governance and
oversees the framework for fraud risk management which
covers Anti-Fraud tasks in accordance with our regulatory
requirements. The corporate governance of fraud risk is
provided by the Audit Committee at the Board level, and
primarily by the ORMC at the Management level.

All employees are required to uphold the UOB (China)
Code of Conduct, which includes anti-bribery and anti-
corruption provisions. The UOB (China)’s fraud hotline to IFM
ensures independent fraud investigation. The division also
works closely with business and support units to strengthen
their current practices across the five pillars of prevention,
detection, response, remediation and reporting.

o B RURG 0l 55 KU

REGMIEHE B F AR B EEREK, RRPUTAHZTA, ZFH
PR TURZ WA, MxWE, FAREE SN YR HAN |
FE, SRAGRE W A S BT %L RITHIER G B iR,

A5 KBTS BTl S SR EW, Gl S8, FEMEREEL
X s B B A= A FI RN Al 55 RUBSE Y SR TR BLIE 7= M A R
ZRES, NIRRT UARSEL SRR, Glanmiakds
HEPHPEMFRWEL, WS SB T iESIRITHIEH
A 55 HRo

RITEFSNEREEERRSATERITUSHEXNREEE,
HERITHRINEEPLEXRIER, EFLTHITERSHBE
EQNEREBRRNBAVSKEEEEE, SAEEEERSAER
ITEEERE, FERTHREHEETFAHTLSRE, EEERSH
REERAZRSHRINRBEREL ZREERHITEE, £F
REIEMEFHERERT, TROLXESUSEFERITH SR
R REPZTEME, FHRITRBENAEEMSBIR, W]
AEANGEHEMKER HIER L S ITRE, FHERSEERR
ITHBE R —E,

Strategic and Business Risk

Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective negative
impact on earnings, capital or reputation arising from
adverse strategic decisions, improper implementation of
decisions or a lack of responsiveness to industry, economic
or technological changes. It is the risk of not achieving the
Bank’s strategic goals.

Business risk refers to the adverse impact on earnings or
capital arising from changes in business parameters such
as volumes, margins and costs. The sources of business
risk include uncompetitive products or pricing, internal
inefficiencies, and changes in general business conditions
such as market contraction or changes in customers’
expectations and demand. It is the risk of not achieving the
Bank’s short-term business objectives.

The Board of Directors and senior management committees
are responsible for managing risks associated with the Bank’s
business activities and play a critical role in the successful
operation of the Bank. The Executive Committee assist
the Board in relation to the management of strategic and
business risks. The senior management committees oversee
the day-to-day management of the Bank and make business
decisions within the Bank’s risk appetite. The MC and the
RCC have oversight functions relating to strategic and
business risk management. CEO Office works closely with
Finance on the Bank’s strategic planning process and on the
translation of the Bank’s strategy into annual financial targets,
taking the macroeconomic environment into account. The
business segment heads are responsible for developing and
implementing segment-specific business strategies and for
ensuring alignment with the overall Bank strategy.
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(1) Shareholder Status Update

Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) During the reporting period, there were no split or merger
activities or other major corporate developments during
the reporting period.

(3) None of the Banks directors, supervisors or top management
was penalised by the regulatory authorities during the
reporting period.

(4) Highlights during the reporting period:

- In May 2019, Shanghai Bund Sub-branch was closed.
- In May 2019, Shanghai Xujiahui Sub-branch opened.

- In September 2019, Zhongshan Branch opened.

- In December 2019, Guangzhou Branch was relocated.
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BR%R: 200120

FEiE: (86) (21) 60618888
fEH: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

P11t: www.uobchina.com.cn
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HR4: 200120

FEiE: (86) (21) 6061 8176

£ H: (86) (21) 6886 0906

Head Office

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Room 102,

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing’an Sub-branch (Shanghai)
Room 1P01-02, 201-203,

United Plaza,

No. 1468 Nanjing Road West,
Jing'an District,

Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9366

Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xujiahui Sub-branch (Shanghai)
Unit 01-03, 30 Floor,

Grand Gateway Tower |,

1 Honggiao Road,

Xuhui District,

Shanghai 200030

Tel: (86) (21) 6091 5788

Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3015

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch (Wholesale Banking
Only)

Room 602, 6 Floor,

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,

Pilot Free Trade Zone,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8176

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0906
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FEiE: (86) (28) 6879 2888
1£E: (86) (28) 8653 1878

T 4T (3325 )
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HB4R: 510620

FEiE: (86) (20) 28813688

£ H: (86) (20) 8755 8830

TEPAS 1T
BRI X L is 615
BRSO TR B AR 21E
06/075

BR4%: 110013

FEiE: (86) (24) 3121 2168
fEH: (86) (24) 3116 2078

E ﬂ M l§‘
Our Network

Beijing Branch

Unit 102 First Floor and
Unit 01-03, 05-09 25 Floor,
Tower C Office Park,

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Lufthansa Centre Sub-branch
(Beijing)

S105 and C806./C807

No. 50 Liangmagiao Road,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100125

Tel: (86) (10) 8489 3888

Fax: (86) (10) 6461 5750

Chengdu Branch

Unit 8,910, 21 Floor,

Office Tower 1, Chengdu IFS,
No. 1 Section 3, Hongxing Road
Jinjiang District,

Chengdu 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 6879 2888

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Guangzhou Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Suite 3801, TaiKoo Hui Tower 1

385 Tianhe Road,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou 510620

Tel: (86) (20) 28813688

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 8830

Shenyang Branch
Unit 06/07, 21 Floor,
Tower A Fortune Plaza,
No. 61 Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3121 2168
Fax: (86) (24) 3116 2078
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Shenzhen Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 6001-03, Tower A,
KingKey100,

No.5016 Shennan Road East,
Shenzhen 518001

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688

Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor,

United Overseas Bank Building,
No. 19 Hubin Bei Road,

Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 2-1-2207, 2208, 2209,
RongHui Plaza,
Changliang Road,

Nankai District,

Tianjin 300100

Tel: (86) (22) 8701 7070
Fax: (86) (22) 873 80500

Hangzhou Branch

Room 201 and 203,

No. 181 Tian Mu Shan Road,
Xihu District,

Hangzhou 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619

Chongging Branch

Unit A, 31 Floor,

HNA-POLY International Centre,
No. 235 Min Sheng Road,

Yu Zhong District,

Chongging 400010

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788

M SIT (ZFT %)
0 Tl | X 4 it #5788 5
L& A1E801E

Hil4s: 215000

FEiE: (86) (512) 6298 5200
fEH: (86) (512) 8686 2006

BT (A5 )
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fik4s: 650000

FEiE: (86) (871) 6555 0777

fEE: (86) (871) 6361 6191
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HB4R: 528400

HEiE: (86) (760) 8770 7666
fEH: (86) (760) 8989 2900

Suzhou Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 1801, Tower 1Jinghope Square,

No. 88 Huachi Street,
Suzhou Industrial Park (SIP),
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200
Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006

Kunming Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 2105 & 2106, 21 Floor,

East Tower MASTER,

No. 1 Chongren Street,

Wuhua District,

Kunming 650000

Tel: (86) (871) 6555 0777

Fax: (86) (871) 6361 6191

Zhongshan Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 1,2 and 12, 37 Floor,

Zhisan International Financial
Centre,

No.16 Zhongshan San Road,
Zhongshan 528400

Tel: (86) (760) 8770 7666

Fax: (86) (760) 8989 2900

A&7 (PE ) AR2A
20912 A31H

United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
31 December 2019
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Auditors’ Report

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2020) Shen Zi No 60658622 BO1
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited:

(1) Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited(hereinafter referred
to as “the Bank”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 December 2019, the income statement, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, United Overseas Bank
(China) Limited’s financial position as at 31 December 2019 and
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“ASBEs”).

(1) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China
Standards on Auditing (“CSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited in accordance with China
Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

(111) Responsibilities of the management and
those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The management of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with ASBEs, and
for designing, implementing and maintaining such internal
control as the management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management
is responsible for assessing United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting, unless the management
either intends to liquidate United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing United Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s financial
reporting process.

(V) Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are generally
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control.
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(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on United Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, Shanghai Branch

Shanghai China
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(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yan, Shengwei

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Wang, Wenyan

3 April 2020

"R ER

Balance Sheet
2019 ££ 12 A 31 H 31 December 2019

( BREFAERSS, SRBMHIIARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

B EZS 2019512 A31H 2018512 A31H

Notes 6 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
RrE: ASSETS:
WM& RIFHM P RFITRIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 1 6,477,543,250 6,304,237,398
=2EE Precious metals 162,708,344 470,469,280
TERL R M FRT Due from banks and other financial institutions 2 1,852,438,902 1,834,782,799
FHEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 7,499,846,222 13,970,656,375
THMERATT Financial assets held-for-trading 4 1,425,658,377 1,472,009,402
fTEERR~ Derivative financial assets 5 433,777,889 6,332,656,875
INBREERE Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 3,253,748 361 3,289,256,524
btk Loans and advances to customers 7 35,144,414,612 32,922,090,260
HA AR g:;rr:::;;:j::::r:te atfair value through other 8 10,145,887,936 6,970,584,932
BlE& = Fixed assets 9 32,665,882 36,483,950
1EARAF Right-of-use assets 10 72,213,755 -
TR Intangible assets mn 102,639,668 103,322,284
BT RR T Deferred tax assets 12 14,246,41 129,728,621
Hi &~ Other assets 13 438,498,808 370,401,834
ARt TOTAL ASSETS 71,856,288,417 74,206,680,534
ffk: LIABILITIES:
[ Ml B E Ath & R TE FR SR IR Due to banks and other financial institutions 15 492,069,878 571,731,380
FEANEE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 16 13,458,952,435 16,764,294,274
ZHEERMAR Financial liabilities held-for-trading 17 383,176,624 2,720,495,215
TEEmMAE Derivative financial liabilities 5 4,137,215,590 6,171,917,029
SEHEIMERE = Repurchase agreements 18 720,292,241 270,207,863
g Customer deposits 19 39,506,088,328 37,254,638,032
Rz A ER T e Payroll payables 20 121,660,708 125,647972
MR Tax payables 21 62,852,082 116,916,752
N fHEE Debt securities issued 22 2,745,552,507 2,652,640,383
it s Provisions 23 37150,266 25,364,243
HERR Lease liabilities 24 70,937,706 -
Hit s Other liabilities 25 335,476,250 698,305,800
fEAIt TOTAL LIABILITIES 64,871,424,615 67,372,158,943
FrBEENE: EQUITY:
KW FE A Paid-up capital 26 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
BAEAR Capital reserve 27 14,562,830 1,191,697
Hithr Gl Other comprehensive income 28 42,888,850 20,281,719
ARAR Surplus reserves 29 127,512,353 115,075,958
—RRIXUBE General reserves 30 816,675,492 826,398,940
FRATELFNE Retained earnings 31 483,224,277 361,573,277
REEWMEat: TOTAL EQUITY 6,984,863,802 6,834,521,591
ERRIAENEAT TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 71,856,288,417 74,206,680,534
L F 5 94 TUE 180 TUHI W SRR MITE A AR S5 R T M E B ED 5>
The notes on pages 94 to 180 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FliER

Income Statement

2019 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2019
( BR4FRERRSS, ETRMAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

lfiis/_; 2019 2018
—. BN 1. OPERATING INCOME
RN Interest income 32 2,372,005,854 2,237995,099
FEZH Interest expense 32 (1,537,936,819) (1,258,795,984)
F 2 HBN Net interest income 2 834,069,035 979199115
FEBERASEN Fee and commission income 33 239,478,508 188,701,612
FERRAETH Fee and commission expense 33 (67,569,057) (58,388,023)
FEHEREBEES SN Net fee and commission income 33 171,909,451 130,313,589
FitdcLgd Investment income 34 50,986,287 137,575,039
NRNET ISR Gain/(Loss) from changes in fair value 35 168,226,620 (293,485,843)
LR Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 36 133,411,374 273,794,755
Hitrzx Other income 37 1961,460 2,073,449
B ANEIT TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 1360,564,227 1,229,470,04
Z. BlxH 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
B KM Business tax and surcharges (14,074,366) (12,468,305)
&R EEE General and administrative expenses 38 (1,068,961,788) (997,006,726)
ERBERK Credit impairment losses 39 (141,313,827) (53,211,435)
ElZHET TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (1,224,349981) (1,062,686,466)
=, BlAE 3. OPERATING PROFIT 136,214,246 166,783,638
fm: ElSMEN Add: Non-operating income 108,361 3,072,736
W BT Less: Non-operating expenses (593915) (863,967)
M. FEiFE SR 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 136,728,692 168,992,407
B FEHMEHR Less: Income tax expense 40 (12,364,745) (18,497,889)
&, EFE 5. NET PROFIT 124,363,947 150,494,518
N HittE S m e 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
HA SR AN R NHEED Zi'}:evrai;;}:zzg;isz T;::niebt instrument at fair value through g 22,550,516 26,617,839
HnfENEREARBREES Credit impairment losses of other debt investments 28 56,615 519,293
Hit Others 28 - (316,140)
t. GERELZH 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 146,971,078 177315,510
T 94 TR 180 T SRR M A AR M SR T M E R EB S
The notes on pages 94 to 180 form an integral part of these financial state;n*gqts:.:m?‘\
AMSHREEUTALES. P A
The financial statements have been signed by: "
i '. .
TREERIITE. HH: 0% / P S S

President and CEO, Director: Peter Foo Moo Tan
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FiEERNm TR
Statement of Changes in Equity

2019 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2019
( BRsALERSH, EMBEMHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

SRR TALNR Hftgzalsd BALAR —RRKEES KOEFAE &it
Paid-up  Capital Other Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserves comprehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
NEEMEH Opening balance 5500,000,000 11,191,697 20,281,719 115,075,958 826,398940 361,573,277  6,834,521,591
REMBRTHEE Movements during the year - 337133 22,607,131 12,436,395 (9723,448) 121,651,000 150,342,211
(—) ZEWELEE (i)Total comprehensive income - - 22,607,131 - - 124363947 146,971,078
( = ) BREHEBRNFUR (i)injection of ﬂ-Jnds by and distribution C aaams ) ) i ) 3371133
% 7N of funds to the investor
1LROZHNREE
- 1. Share-based payment - 3,371,133 - - - - 3371133
TR pe
(=) ®iEaHEe (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 12,436,395 (9723,448) (2,712,947) -
LIRIARAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 12,436,395 - (12,436,395) -
23RN — AR KRS B 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - (9,723,448) 9723448 -
EEFERKH Closing balance 5,500,000,000 14,562,830 42,888,850 127512353 816,675492 483,224,277 6984,863,802
2018 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2018
( BR¥sAERS, EBBNHAIARTT)
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
SRHRAEA BERAR HEEWRE ARSR —BREEE ROEFHE &it
Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserves  comprehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
TEEREH Closing balance at last year 5,500,000,000 9,975,150 (7477,010) 100,026,507 708458438 482,534,898 6793517983
SITBRETE Changes in accounting policies
(—) RA#HEMIAE
N ) Impact of adopting IFRS9 - - 937,737 - - 138,466,186) (137,528,449
R P Ping ( a :
KEFNEH Opening balance 5,500,000,000 9,975,150 (6,539273) 100,026,507 708,458,438 344,068,712 6,655989,534
AEEBHTEHEE Movements during the year - 1,216,547 26,820,992 15,049,451 117,940,502 17,504,565 178,532,057
(—) BARWEEE  (i)Total comprehensive income - - 26,820,992 - - 150,494,518 177315,510
— By g I
( = ) FREHEBRNFUR (i)injection of ﬂ.Jnds by and distribution ) 1216,547 i ) i i 216,547
% ¥ of funds to the investor
LRSI NEE
. 1. Share-based payment - 1,216,547 - - - - 1,216,547
M 2 i
(=) ®iEsEe (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 15,049,451 117,940,502 (132,989,953) -
LIRRZESEAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 15,049,451 - (15,049,451) -
23R BN —RR XUBS 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - 117,940,502 (117.940,502) -
KEEREH Closing balance 5500,000,000 11,191,697 20,281,719 115075958 826,398,940 361,573,277 6,834,521,591

T E 94 TTEE 180 TN S MR MIEH AW ZMRA AR A S
The notes on pages 94 to 180 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

2019 £ E For the year ended 31 December 2019
( BR4FRIERRSN, EFRMAHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

B - o8 . RAEDFENTLRE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Notes 6
W ERRR BN Cash received from maturity of investments 18,390,000,000 17,530,000,000
—. BEBRHFENAERE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
HEHRARFKEINIE Cash received from investment income 374,785,155 412,915,933
TR RBITRIUE R ER Net decrease in due from the Central Bank - 580,545,268
RBEERFEMKIE~WEINIE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term assets 26,005 11,009
TEH ) M SR04 8 D B Net decrease in due from banks and other financial institutions 244,712,024 -
BAFTHUERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 18,764,811,160 17,942,926,942

Net decrease in placements with banks and other financial

FHAEFE D o 6,251,367,730 -
institutions
MRS 7 R ) ol B H Ath & RAALMITE I FATUSE  Net increase in customer deposits and due to banks and other BREMZAHRE Cash paid for investment 21,670,000,000 20,590,000,000
X P 2,158,568,038 6,439,553,841
fnER financial institutions
s Net increase in placements from banks and other financial W EE R ME MK R=Z RIS Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term assets 34,553,117 39,176,322
FNE & FIE G o - 359,827,032
institutions
WRFEDME RN Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 21,704,553,117 20,629176,322
R E, FEHERALSHRE Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 2,463,442,433 212,899,459
o . R ENTENNERE ST Net cash flows from investing activities (2,939,741957) (2,686,249,380)
ARG BHNmMFENERE SR D Net decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 516,201,154 -
=, ERBEFTENAERE 3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
WEHMEZERIEENUE Cash received from other operating activities 371,490,999 502,938,357
RITRFWENAE Cash received from debt securities issuance 2,854,361,510 2,610,108,700
ZKEBHUEHTNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 12,005,782,378 9,995,763,957
ERFHMETRNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 2,854,361,510 2,610,108,700
TE L R R SR T RIS B N R Net increase in due from the Central Bank 157,790,958 -
. ERESIANRE Cash repayments for debts 2,830,000,000 -
TE R E] b FRIT 4 1 I & Net increase in due from banks and other financial institutions - 493,360,915
SERRRF . RS A RS S S Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit and interest 49300,000 .
R £ 1 &R Net increase in placements with banks and other financial institutions - 3,874,675918 expenses
T .Net.dec.rease in placements from banks and other financial 25784510 ) YRHEMESEREFDEXNRE Cash paid to other financing activities 38,737,081 2,676,427
institutions
) ) EREHUWET A /NT Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 2,918,037,081 2,676,427
KBS IR0 B TS AN ER Net increase in loans and advances to customers 2,363,699186 5,771,338,330
ERENTENINEREST Net cash flows from financing activities (63,675,571) 2,607,432,273
FAWFE., FERRFELSHWINE Payments made for interest, service fee and commission 1,425,366,437 1,235,165,989
M, CREHNNERAE SN 4. EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND 62653795 123573341
FHARIEARIZARNE Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 699,749,712 610,982,741 A CASH EQUIVALENTS T B
- 5. NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
A, AERAEEMWEEM (R ) & ( ) f 415,270,402 (3.773.916,061)
SR HETR# Cash paid for all types of taxes 231,748,862 95,313,711 EQUIVALENTS
m: EMRERRESNHYRE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 10,552,816,870 14,326,732,931
AR5 BRGNS RE = S gt Net increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 551,754,386
N EXRUERAESENYIRE 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 42 10,968,087,272 10,552,816,870
IRHEMEEERDIFRNAE Cash paid for other operating activities 1,396,548,578 1181,844,262
ZEFRHMERH T Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 8,649,748,243 13,814,436,252
ZERNFEPNRERE L Net cash flows from operating activities 41 3,356,034,135 (3,818,672,295) HTFE 94 MESE 180 WM KR RIEA AU KB RPA KI5
The notes on pages 94 to 180 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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B EiRFTMHE

Notes to the Financial Statements
2019 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2019

(B RIERSN, STALHHARTI )

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

—. REMNERFRL

RERIT (HE ) BRAF ( LUTER “FAR” F “KERIT (&
)7 ) REXRERITAERLE (UITER “KERT” ) EHE
ARFIE _EBTR AN EIHFRIT,

SHERITRREEEERRS (UTHR “REESR” ) T 2007
4 A5 B, RERTIR (hEARLTESMIRITEEES )
(UATER “(EEEGD)” ) (PEARKMEINFRITER
SFBITHEAN ) (ATEFR “ (REAN) 7 ) WEXAE, £L
BHEEREAMHFHMERBIRIT—RERT (FE ) AR
AT, FAHEFERANKERITEEBST, ERD1T. RUST.
IS T, MESIT. BT, BESTRESHREZIT (UT
B EPERXSITRZIT )BHARERT( PE ) B9,

AANBAFERFUSTANESRFRIE, IHAHDBA:

BO308H131000001 5, ¥A LBETIHITHEERZEMEZ KA
EANELHR, s5—iS=EHREA: 913100006694147236, i Mt
HitAE ( £F ) BARSREXBHEE 16 5. 128 B KER
TREZE. AR50 E (ZREE) . +=ZB (XBRE+ZE) .

THEE (XBE+=ZE) . +RE (XBR+HE) . ++tE ( £
+HE) . tN\EB (EZBFE+RE) . AR (ZRFE+EE) . =+
B (ER+HNE) . FMERAART 551258,

RFAAREUHRHINE, *RXFZLEHRATAEHRR, =2
RAEENEZAXEENMHAERISMNILSZART LS, 2008
F£1R 2 BAFARAERFERMTHLSHRE,

BZ 2019512 A31H, BRELEZIMKRERIT (RE ) BRA
BRITIN, ZATRBELE. L=, R M. BT, BRER. LBH.
KiE, M, BER. HM. BRASHLIEIZIT BRMITR 4 RE1T.
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1. Corporate information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as The Bank or UOB (China)) is a wholly foreign-owned bank
established in Shanghai, People's Republic of China (PRC), by
United Overseas Bank (UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation), and the
Detailed Rules on the Implementation of Regulation of the PRC on
the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Implementation),
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Committee
(CBIRC) granted approval to UOB on 5 April 2007 to set up
a wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai
by converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen
Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Chengdu Branch, Xiamen Branch,
Shenyang Branch and Jing’an sub-branch (collectively known
as the Former PRC Branches).

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting financial
transaction from the CBIRC (Institution Code: BO308H131000001),
and obtained its business licence (Uniform Social Credit Code:
913100006694147236) from Shanghai Administration for
Industry and Commerce. The registered address is Floor 3,
Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor
12), Floor 15 (Actual Floor 13), Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor
17 (Actual Floor 15), Floor 18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19 (Actual
Floor 17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor 18), No. 116 and No. 128,
Yin Cheng Road, Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone, China. The
registered capital of the Bank is RMB5.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an
unlimited operating period. The main businesses of the Bank
are Renminbi and foreign currency businesses as approved
by relevant regulatory authorities. The date of business
conversion from former PRC branches to UOB (China) was on
2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2019, besides the Head Office incorporated
in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 13 branches and 4 sub-branches
respectively in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen,
Chengdu, Shenyang, Tianjin, Hangzhou, Chongging, Suzhou,
Kunming and Zhongshan.

=, #mHEA

AN SHREBPEARLMEUEE ( ATER “MBED” ) M
AR (WS HEN—EFEN ) URERHARETHREES
TN, AT BRUREMEXHE (ZR “ClSitEn” )
il

AW FHERAFFEEE R EMTIR,

RHAV SR, BRELERTEN, HHEREDITHE,
HAFNMREERE, WRREXAEHREMNREES,

=, BRSNS AN E A R

AMEBRRFELUSITENNESR, BEX, TEMRBTALR
2019 £ 12 A 31 BHM SRR K 2019 EEHNZER RN ERE,

M, EESTERMSIHETT

LR
ARSIt EERAAHRERE, ISE8 1A 1HEEZ12 A31 Hik,

2. 18K AR AL T
AATRICM A HFAGEFHIAM SRR RANETEAART, B
BHHEEAN, WANRTTHELTIR,

.IMERAEENY

N&, BEARXANEFAEARTURERBTIAHER; RE
MY, REAARFENHRE. RIME. ZTRRACHE
HHHE. METHKERNRE,

REENMYEEREIPETBI =N ANFERHRBITHIERE S
I, FREN R E & BRI, R E R H fth & B AR
Bl. INRERT, UAREIRENE. 5 TEENTAHTGNAE.
MEZFRE/N, MERBIEE=ANIBNRESERRE.

2. Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic
Standard and the specific standards, the implementation
guidance, interpretations and other relevant provisions issued
and revised subsequently by the Ministry of Finance of PRC
(MOF) (collectively referred to as Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on
an accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for some financial instruments. If the
assets are impaired, corresponding provisions should be
recognised in accordance with relevant standrds.

3. Compliance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position
of the Bank as of 31 December 2019 and the financial
performance and the cash flows for the year then ended.

4. Significant accounting policies and estimates

(1) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year.

(2) Functional currency

The Bank’s functional currency is Renminbi (RMB). These
financial statements are presented in RMB and all amounts
are stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

(3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits; cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due from
central banks, amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions, reverse repurchase agreements maturing within
three months, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
which have an original maturity date within three months.
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4. SpTHITE
AT FRENIITRS, BINHETIE N KR T EE,

SRS ENRBINN, RAXSZEBNNICEREIT SN
BHiEKACH W, TH~HHEERA, MFOmEMERE XA
HAFEREREMBCERTE, AN EEMETERBREE
Bt NS, UAEMRATERIMIEEHERE, NRAX
SREBNNPICETE, FUZHIEKACTEH, U2ANE
HEMITIESETERE, RAAANEREBHIBICERAHE,
B E M EBRFEFESE T ETE MRt AN S RRERE MRS
Wik o

5. BlERF=
EEAFRESEEXHNEFHERTERANRLT, BERAKEE
BRI EMITERN A FUHIN. SEEEFEXNEEXY, 6%
FIAEER, T ANBE R =R, FLIERIAE BRI S N ENE
BN, FEERITNLBPIRS,

BEE R RBHEAHITOHRITE, WEBER~HWREEEBIMN
. BEXBE, FEERFAHET ARSI ENTERE
HE T ZIR R EAM S BIEH =1 B R A ERFEETR,
BEREEATHERFD. TITEREZRREFRBRNT:

(4) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction date. Subsequent
to initial recognition, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of
monetary items or from translation of monetary items at
balance sheet date are recognised in the profit or loss. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the initial transactions; Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates when the fair value is determined,
the exchange difference thus resulted is recognised in the
profit or loss or other comprehensive income of the current
period.

(5) Fixed assets

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the
Bank, and the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.
Subsequent expenditure can be recognised as the cost of
fixed assets when the recognition criteria set above is met,
and the replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised.
Otherwise, such expenditure is to be charged to the profit or
loss in the period when it is incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of
a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price,
relevant taxes and any directly attributable expenditure for
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis. And the respective estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets
are set by the Bank considering the nature and usage of fixed
assets.

fERFEw Bt R ER EHIHER
Estimated useful | Estimated residual | Annual depreciation

lives value rate
BEERERERD 50 &£ 2%
Properties and buildings i °
PEEE 54 20%
Office equipment i 0
R B8 & & ] o
Computers
s 54 20%
Motor vehicles ) ’

ARFEBI AT RGERAONEERTHERSE®, TR E
TR RHITER, LERBETEE,
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Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial
reporting date.

6. EREITTE
ERIENARLRIESIHHE, EREEHILZENEINE
TRTHUREMEXERS,

EERIRELIFEAEARSHENBTE™., TREANEM
KHHE>,

7. KA =
R BFEESHEEMEFASRTERANELT, BEBA&EE
A ST BN A F B, HURAHTISEITE,

AR R RRBREREARLATREFHENHRBEERES, T
EBRE AR B EREFF HHRMIEAERFGAHENTR
#=

ARANERE=ARE, EERAERA2E10 £,
EREFHERNEHES, EEERFGANRAERERE, 70

AESIMAFAGRASMERFGERNERESHERSFGR
MEHTRRITER, LERBTEE,

8. KGR
KHARS I 2% PR P ELLR A R4

KEIRE 2R FRYE A B 2 il 5 32 s 8 PR BUE [R N W8 E PR SH HARR,
FH TR,

WMRKHMBHNE AT REEUESITHEZ 80, R
T H AR M EEMEN SRS,

9.&mTH
EMTE, BHEER— LI HEMET, HEREMEGHN SR
AESNBETENSE,

el TEMBIAFLZL EmIA
ARATHASMIESRN—HFRBIA-EMATHEMAR,

WRETIISER, ZIEMAERMES (SEMBEZN—87, S—4
LUSRETH—BS ), BNEKPAFZEZRGERATUEHE:

(6) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according
to the actual expenditure for the construction, including all
necessary expenditure and other related expenses incurred
during the construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets
or other long term assets when the asset is ready for its
intended use.

(7) Intangible assets

The intangible assets can be recognised only when the
economic benefits related to intangible assets are likely to
flow into the Bank, and the cost of intangible assets can be
measured reliably. While the intangible assets obtained in
a business combination under common control should be
measured at fair value if the cost of intangible assets can be
measured reliably.

The useful life of intangible assets is determined according
to the economic useful lives; those intangible assets with
unforeseeable economic lives can be classified as intangible
assets with infinite useful lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software
with 2-10 years’ useful lives.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation
is charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis. The useful
life and amortisation method for intangible assets with finite
useful lives are reviewed at each financial reporting date,
with proper adjustments made by the Bank when necessary.

(8) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised by the straight
line method.

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of lease period and useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged
to profit or loss if the expenditure does not bring benefits to
subsequent accounting periods.

(9) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a

financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instrument

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised when the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily

derecognised (i.e., removed from the Bank’s balance sheet) when:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
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have expired; or

(if) The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled, or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

A regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade date
accounting. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets
represents a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or convention
in the marketplace concerned. The trade date is the date that
the Bank committed to purchase or sell a financial asset.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets of the Bank are initially classified into three
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, financial assets at amortised cost, and financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income based on
the Bank’s business model for managing the financial assets
and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The Bank
reclassified the relating financial assests if and only if the
Bank changes the business model for managing the financial
assets.

Underlying fee of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are directly recognised in profit or loss, while those
of other classifications are attributed to the acquisition of
financial assets.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets are based on
their classification:

Debt instrument investment at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at
amortised cost when both of the following conditions are
satisfied: The business model is to collect contractual cash
flows; the cash flows on specific date are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
according to the agreement of the financial assets. Their
interest income is recognised using the effective interest
rate method. Gains or losses arising from derecognition,
modification or impairment are recognised in profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
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income

Financial assets are classified into Financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income when both of
the following conditions are satisfied: The business model
is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows
arising from the sale of assets; the cash flows on specific
date are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding according to the agreement
of the financial assets. Their interest income is recognised
using the effective interest rate method. A gain or loss
arising from a change in the fair value is recognised as other
comprehensive income, except for interest income, credit
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains or losses,
which are recognised in profit or loss. The gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income will be reversed
and recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are
derecognised.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Other than the financial assets at amortised cost and the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income mentioned above, financial assets are classified into
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value and
the gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value will be
recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, or other financial
liabilities. Underlying fee of financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are directly recognised in profit or loss,
while those of other financial liabilities are attributed to the
acquisition of financial liabilities.

Subsequentlg measurement of financial liabilities is based on
their classification:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading (including derivatives that
are liabilities ) and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities held for trading (including derivative
instruments attributable to financial liabilities) are
subsequently measured at fair value. All changes in fair value
of such financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except for the derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge. Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at
fair value and gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Bank’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income. If gains or losses arising from the Bank’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income will
lead to or expand accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the
Bank will include all the changes in fair value (including the
amount affected by changes in the Bank’s own credit risk) of
such financial liabilities in profit or loss.
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Other financial liabilities

Such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank recognises a loss for impairment of financial assets
at amortised cost, debt instrument measured at fair through
other comprehensive income, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts based on their expected credit
loss.

For receivable and contract assets without significant
financing components, the Bank uses the simplified approach
to calculate the credit impairment loss, based on lifetime
expected credit loss.

Other than the financial assets, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts using simplified approach,
the Bank evaluates whether the credit risk has significantly
increases since the initial recognition at each financial
reporting date. When credit risk hasn’t increased significantly
since the initial recognition, the financial instruments are
included in Stage I. the Bank calculate impairment allowance
at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial
instruments for the next 12 months, recognise the interest
income by using the carrying amount and effective interest
rate. When credit risk has increased significantly since
the initial recognition, but have no objective evidence of
impairment, the financial intruments are included in Stage II,
the Bank calculate the impairment allowance at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial
instruments, and recognise the interest income by using
carrying amount and effective interest rate. If the financial
assets have objective evidence of impairment, the financial
instruments are included in Stage Ill, the Bank calculates the
impairment allowance at an amount equivalent to the ECL
over the lifetime of the financial instruments, and recognises
the interest income by using amortised cost and effective
interest rate.
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At each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether the
credit risk on the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since initial recognition. The Bank compares the risk
of a default occurring of a single financial instrument or a group
of financial instruments with similar credit risk characteristics
as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default as at the
date of initial recognition, to determine changes in the risk of
a default occurring of the financial instrument in the expected
lifetime. If the credit risk of financial instruments is low at the
balance sheet date, the Bank assumes that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

The disclosure related to the criterion for whether the credit
risk has increased significantly, the definition of the impaired
financial assets and the hypothesis of the measurement of
expected credit loss refers to Note 10.1.

When there are one or more events that have adverse effects
on the expected future cash flows of a financial asset, the
financial asset is credit-impaired.

When the Bank no longer reasonably expects to collect part
or all of the contractual cash flows, the Bank writes down
the carrying amount of the financial assets.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the balance sheet when and only
when the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contract

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that
require issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are measured, on initial recognition, at fair value.
After initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are
subsequently measured at the higher of, (i) the expected
credit impairment loss determined on financial reporting
date and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the revenue principle.

Derivative financial instruments

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently measured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any profit or loss arising from changes in fair value of

derivatives are taken directly in profit or loss, except for
those related to the hedge accounting.

101

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019 MRS s



S R

ERATER

AR B HEMBFAEN ELFRENREFRMEBRENT
B, ZIEHINZERMET; RETEMAESFAENLILFRERX
AR, RLIEBINZERBAT,

ARA R AR ERBSMASAEN /L FREHREF
WENE, DA TIERLE: HFTIZEMB~RHH, £LI1EH
INZE BB HBIASTENRTMAE,; KBFIHZE B~
B, RRESKESNMERSHMASNEERAGXESRES, ¥
HERBINE X R,

B EBERATRAMSERAXNBESNG, RREMBE
FRKENENMSHERETAEZTNRRE, WIARSETNE
MBI, MESHEREH, SEMKEININE, BREREEDH

BaEi,

10. ENREFMEZHEIMZ S5
BEEMEAHENEMESER ( “SEHEM” ) FFLIEFIA,
MEEERERMEFRBEFIIR, MRS FAESE “SHEM
ERMAFTR HIIRIZEESAZINNEMESFNER “INERE”)
AFUHIA, MZSTFHENE “ENBREEREF" BIIR,

BRI E I B SN FOIR € B p ) = R AR BRF R IR S AR TR
AFER P EF RS HBFRUIN

Nn&2&RE

REEFEGARESAR, AXSENMRKRENEESEIRBIER
B RMEFITIRTIA, FULARNEHITRETE, BXTIT
NEE

12. BFERE
FATER SR PR AT ERAF=SMOR R, BT H %

rE:

KRR TFHRFAGERAFI R REFETREERENTSR, F&
BETRE, ZARBMATETREEE, #TRENL, XERZE
WARENERE, TRREHFERETR, 2O TEERHETHE
B TR AREEAEARSHERE, BEFHTRENL,

O EMRBEATHARMEREZLERBEHEHEH =Mt
AEAERENNEREZ ARSERE, KARILBIAE = AHEM
Ht R E &5,

102
KERT (FE) FRAF 2009 FERE

Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Bank has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset to the transferee. A financial asset is not
derecognised when the Bank retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of the financial asset.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, it
either (i) derecognises the financial asset and recognises the
assets and liabilities created in the transfer when it has not
retained control of the asset; or (ii) continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Bank's continuing
involvement, in which case, the Bank also recognises an
associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the
guarantee amount. The guarantee amount is the maximum
amount of consideration that the Bank could be required to

repay.

(10) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements
(“Repos”) continue to be recognised, and are recorded
as financial investments. The corresponding obligation is
included in “Repurchase agreements”. Securities and bills
purchased under agreements to re-sell (“Reverse repos”) are
not recognised. The receivables are recorded as “Reverse
repurchase financial assets’, as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised
as interest expense or interest income in the profit or loss
over the life of the agreements using the effective interest
method.

(11) Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and silver. Precious metals
acquired by the Bank for trading purposes are initially
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair value
are recorded in the profit or loss.

(12) Impairment of assets

The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for
financial assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an
asset is impaired at each financial reporting date. If any such
indication exists, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount and carries out impairment test. For
those assets with infinite useful lives, regardless of whether
the impairment indications exist, the impairment test is
made at least annually. For intangible assets that have not yet
reached their intented use status are also conducted annual
impairment test.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of estimated future
discounted cash flows, which is determined on an individual
basis.
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If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss and the carrying value of the asset reduced by the
amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be
reversed in the subsequent period.

(13) Provisions

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as

provision when all of the following conditions are satisfied

(except for contingent liability recognised in a business

combination not under common control):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(ii) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation.
Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks,
uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account
as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank reviews
the carrying amount of a provision at the balance sheet date.
The carrying amount of a provision will be adjusted when
there is clear evidence that the amount does not reflect the
current best estimate.

(14) Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense

“Interest income” and “interest expense” item in the income
statement of the Bank are the interest income and expense
calculated by using the effective interest method on financial
assets at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial liabilities at
amortised cost.

The effective interest method is used in the calculation of
the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability
and in the allocation and recognition of the interest income
or interest expense in profit or loss over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is that exactly discounts estimated
future cash flows through the expected life of a financial
asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset or the amortised cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Bank estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider expected credit losses. The calculation includes all
amounts paid or received by the Bank that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts.

For those purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Bank calculates the interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial asset to the amortised cost of a financial asset that
is a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.
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For those financial assets that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently
have become credit-impaired financial assets, the Bank
calculates the interest income by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset in
subsequent reporting periods.

Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse
range of services it provides to its customers. For those
services that are provided over a period of time, fee and
commission income is accrued in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the service agreement. For other
services, fee and commission income is recognised when the
transactions are completed.

(15) Leases (take effect since 2019/1/1)

Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of one or more identified assets for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time, the Bank assesses whether, throughout
the period of use, the customer has both of the right to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.

Identification of separate lease components

For a contract that contains multiple separate lease
components, the Bank separates the components of the
contract and accounts for each separate lease component.
The right to use an identified asset is a separate lease
component if both:

(i) the lessee can benefit from use of the underlying asset
either on its own or together with other resources that are
readily available to the lessee; and

(i) the underlying asset is neither highly dependent on, nor
highly interrelated with, the other underlying assets in the
contract.

Separating lease components and non-lease components
The Bank does not separate lease vehicles as a lessee
and instead accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component, except that the Bank accounts for the lease
components and non-lease components separately in
addition to the underlying assets above.
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Assessment of the lease term

The lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease for
which the Bank has the right to use an underlying asset. If
the Bank has an option to extend the lease, that is, the Bank
has the right to extend the lease, and is reasonably certain
to exercise that option, the lease term also includes periods
covered by an option to extend the lease. If the Bank has
an option to terminate the lease, that is, the Bank has the
right to terminate the lease, but is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option, the lease term includes periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease. The Bank reassesses
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, purchase option, or not to exercise a termination
option, upon the occurrence of either a significant event
or a significant change in the circumstances that is within
the control of the Bank and affects whether the Bank is
reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously
included in its determination of the lease term.

As lessee

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Bank mainly include buildings
and vehicles.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises
a right-of-use asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset
comprises: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liabilities; (ii) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date of the lease less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct cost incurred; and
(iv) an estimate of costs incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.
The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis subsequently by the Bank. If the Bank is reasonably
certain that the ownership of the underlying asset will be
transferred to the Bank at the end of the lease term, the
Bank depreciates the asset from the commencement date to
the end of the useful life of the asset. Otherwise, the bank
depreciates the assets from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the asset or the end of
the lease term.

The Bank remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value
of the changed lease payments and adjusts the carrying
amount of the right-of-use assets accordingly, when the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero,
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liabilities, the Bank recognises the remaining amount of
the remeasurement in profit or loss.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank measures
the lease liabilities at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. In calculating
the present value of the lease payments, the Bank uses the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. The Bank calculates the
interest expenses of the lease liabilities in each period during
the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest,
and recognises such interest expenses in profit or loss, except
those in the costs of the related asset as required. Variable
lease payments that are not included in the measurement
of the lease liabilities are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred, except those in the costs of the related asset as
required.

After the commencement date of the lease, if there is
a change on actual fixed payment, expected payable of
guaranteed residual value, the index or rate used to calculate
the lease payment, purchase option, the assessment of
option to extend the lease, option to terminate the lease or
actual option exercise situation, the bank will recalculate the
lease liabilities at the present value of the lease payments
based changes occurred.

Lease modifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the
consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original
terms and conditions of the lease, for example, adding or
terminating the right to use one or more underlying assets,
or extending or shortening the contractual lease term.

The Bank accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if both:

(i) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(ii) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, at the effective date of the lease modification
the Bank remeasures the lease liabilities by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
The revised discount rate is determined as the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the effective date of the
modicication.

For the above lease modification, the Bank makes a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank considers a lease that, at the commencement date
of the lease, has a lease term of 12 months or less, and does
not contains any purchase option as a short-term lease; and
a lease for which the value of the individual underlying asset
is not more than USD 5000 when it is new as a lease of low-
value assets. If the Bank subleases an asset, or expects to
sublease an asset, the head lease does not qualify as a lease
of a low-value asset. The Bank does not recognise the right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for buildings and vehicles
short-term leases and low-value assets. The Bank recognises
lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets in the costs of the related asset or profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(16) Leases (applicable to 2018)

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as
finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

As operating lessee

When the Bank is a lessee under an operating lease, rental
payments are charged to the profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

As financial lessee

When the Bank is a lessee under a finance lease, the leased
assets are capitalised initially at the fair value of the asset or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in “Other
liabilities” Finance charges are charged over the term of the
lease using an interest rate which reflects a constant rate of
return. Contingent rental payments are charged to the profit
or loss when incurred.
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(17) Government subsidies

Government subsidies will be recognised if the Bank can
receive government subsidies and meet the conditions
attached to government subsidies. If government subsidies
are monetary assets, they shall be measured in the light of
the amount received or receivable. If a government subsidy
is a non-monetary asset, it shall be measured at its fair value;
and if its fair value cannot be obtained in a reliable way, it
shall be measured at a nominal amount.Government subsidies
associated with income which are used as compensation for
future costs, expenses or losses are recognized as deferred
expenditures and shall be recorded in future profits and losses
to reverse the related costs where the relevant costs, expenses
or losses are recognized. Government subsidies associated
with income which are used to compensate the related costs,
expenses or losses incurred by the Bank are directly included
in current profit and loss or used to reverse the related costs.
Government subsidies associated with assets shall set off
the book value of related assets or be recognized as deferred
expenditures. Government subsidies related to assets are
recognized as deferred expenditures to be distributed over the
useful lives of the relevant assets and shall be recorded in the
profit or loss by stages in a reasonable and systematic manner.
Government subsidies measured in nominal amounts, shall be
directly recognized in current profits and losses. Where relevant
assets are sold, transferred, scraped or damaged before the end
of their lives, balance of the unallocated deferred expenditures
shall be recognized in current profit and loss on asset disposal.

(18) Share-based payment

The Bank’s share-based compensation programme is measured
as an equity-settled share-based payment.

The equity-settled share-based payment is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
Where the equity instruments granted vest immediately, the
Bank recognises the expense in full at the fair value on grant
date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve. Where
the equity instruments granted vest upon the fulfilment of
service period or performance conditions, the Bank makes
a best estimate at the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest, at each financial reporting date of the
vesting period, based on the latest information on eligible
employees and performance conditions, and recognise the
expense pertaining to the current period at the fair value on
grant date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.
The fair values of the equity instruments are estimated using
the Trinomial valuation methodology.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. An additional expense is recognised for
any modification which increases the total fair value of the
share—based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of the employees are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new compensation are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award.

(19) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration or
compensation given by the Bank in exchange for service
rendered by employees or for the termination of
employment, including short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-
term benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other
short-term employee benefits are accrued in the period in
which services have been rendered by the employees of the
Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)
Employees of the Bank participate in the retirement insurance
plan, and unemployment insurance plan administered by
the local government, and the contribution is recognised to
profit or loss of that period.

Employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity plan
established by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The Bank
contributes to the annuity at a certain percentage of
employees’ salary, and recognises the cost in the profit or
loss accordingly.

(20) Income tax

Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax. Current
income tax and movements in deferred tax balances are
recognised in profit or loss except that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case the tax is
recognised directly in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is
reviewed at each financial reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
income tax assets are reassessed at each financial reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
when fulfilling of the following conditions:

(i) A legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities.

(ii) The deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
related to the income tax levied on the same taxpayer by
the same tax administrative department or are related to
different taxpayers but, within each future period of reversal
of important deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,
the taxpayers involved intend to settle current tax assets and
current tax liabilities or acquire assets and liquidate liabilities
at the same time.

(21) Fair value measurement

At each financial reporting date, the Bank measures its
derivatives, Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, other debt instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the assumption that the orderly transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible to the Bank. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumption
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure the fair value. Use of observable inputs is
maximized and unobservable inputs will only be used when
observable inputs are not available or obtaining observable
inputs becomes unpractical.
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For assets and liabilities measured and disclosed at fair value,
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement: Level
1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; Level 3
inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the balance sheet
date that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Bank continues to make assessment as to whether there is
transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy.

(22) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do
not constitute related parties.

(23) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as
nominee, custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together
with related undertakings to return such assets to customers
are excluded from the financial statements.

(24) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but
disclosed in the notes to financial statements. In case the
condition changes, which led to the outflow of economic
resources is probable, provisions will be made.

(25) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has used its judgments and made estimates
and assumptions of the effects of uncertain future events
on the financial statements. The use of judgments, estimates
and assumptions will affect the amount of income, expense,
assets and liabilities presented and disclosed. The uncertainty
of such estimates and assumptions might have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the future.
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Judgment

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management make following judgments which has
significant impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Business model

Financial assets are initially classified based on the Bank’s
business model for managing the financial assets. The
Bank judges the business model, with the consideration
of enterprise evaluation, the reporting mode to key
management, related risk and corresponding risk management
method of financial assets performance, and the reward
system of related business personnel. The Bank analyse and
judge the reason, timing, frequency and value of selling
financial assets before maturity date when judging whether
the business model is to collect contractual cash flows or
not.

Characteristics of the contractual cash flows

Financial assets are initially classified based on their
contractual cash flow characteristics. When judging whether
the contractual cash flow are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, the
considerations contain: (i)judging whether there exists
significant difference compared with the benchmark cash
flow, when evaluating the modification of the time value
of the money, (ii) judging whether fair value of the early
repayment characteristics is immaterial for financial assets
with early repayment characteristics.

Uncertainty of estimates

The following items are the key hypothesis about the
future and other key source of uncertainty of estimates on
financial reporting date. It may cause significant modification
on carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the future
accounting period.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank uses the expected credit loss model to evaluate
the impairment of financial instruments since 1 January 2018.
Applying the expected credit loss model need to make
significant judgment and estimates with consideration of
all reasonable information with proper basis, including the
forward-looking information. When making those judgment
and estimates, the Bank deduces the expected changes
of obligor’s credit risk with consideration of the historical
repayment data combined with the economic policy,
macroeconomic indicators, industry risk and etc. Different
estimates may affect the impairment provision. The provision
for impairment may not equal amount of impairment losses
in the future.
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Impairment of non-current assets besides financial assets
Non-current assets other than financial-assets are reviewed
for impairment on financial reporting date. When the
carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. For intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives, the impairment test is made annually and when
impairment indications exist. For other non-current assets
besides financial assets, the impairment test is made when
there is an indication that their carrying amount is not
recoverable. When the carrying amount of an asset or a
group of assets is higher than their recoverable amount, i.e.
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the present value
of estimated future discounted cash flows, it is indicated that
the impairment losses have occurred. Fair value less costs
to sell refers to the selling contract price from fair trading
of similar asset or the observable market price, less the
incremental costing directly attributes to the asset disposal.
When estimating the present value of future discounted
cash flows. The management must estimate the future cash
flow of the asset or the group of assets, and choose a proper
discount rate to determine the present value.

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank establishes fair value of financial instruments with
reference to a quoted market price in an active market or, if
there is no active market, using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, observable prices for similar instruments,
discounted cash flow analysis using risk-adjusted interest
rates, and commonly used market pricing models. Whenever
possible these models use observable market inputs and
data including, for example, interest rate yield curves, foreign
currency rates and option volatilities. The results of using
valuation techniques are calibrated against the industry
practice and observable current market transactions in the
same or similar instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Bank assesses and judges on the extent to which it
retains the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
instruments for the transferred transactions entered into, and
make relevant accounting treatments accordingly.

Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

The Bank measures the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate. According to the economic environment, the
Bank takes the observable interest rate as the reference basis
for determining the incremental borrowing rate, then adjusts
the observable interest rate based on its own circumstances,
underlying assets, lease terms and amounts of lease liabilities
to determine the applicable incremental borrowing rate.
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H, AARBIAEE S EANRT 59179508 TTHEBNE = EEAR
M 60,690,271 T, XEAMBFERZHIMEEAART 0 T,

(1) FERBUTHZ ATHRRAE, KARIRRABHEN R~
R REERNRKENE, 23tEEREFEERE;

(2) X TFERNTHZANEERE, AARARERKEEARER
REXBIT IS EEFFEMUHAETEHEEAEK, FHRESH
HEERSEEHAGESNEH, HFREMMEESHTOERETE
ERRE;

(3) AR EIZRHHED, 25 XHEARGE =B TRE IR H 347 18 5L
¥ %i-l-&kigo

AARMERPUTEZAEERBTRNMER "NEEREIET
2AMANERNEERE, RAELLE, KHMERE~HEE

fifo
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(26) Change in accounting policy and estimates

The New Leases Standard

In 2018, the MOF issued revised Accounting Standard for Business
Enterprises No. 21 — Leases (the “New Leases Standard”). The
New Leases Standard introduces a single model similar to the
current accounting treatment of finance leases, requiring the
lessee to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for all the leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets, and recognise depreciation and interest
expense, respectively. The Bank has accounted for leases
under the revised leases standard since 1January 2019. For the
contracts which existed before the first implementation date,
the Bank chooses not to reevaluate whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. According to the New Leases Standard,
the comparative information is not restated. Instead, the
Bank measures the righ-of-use assets at an amount equal
to the lease liabilities, adjusted by any prepaid amount.
On the first implementation date, the Bank recognized the
lease liabilities of RMB59,179,508, the net value of right-of-
use assets of RMB60,690,271 and zero impact on retained
earnings at the beginning of 2019.

(1) for leases previously classified as finance leases, the Bank
recognised the right-of-use asset and the lease liabilities
at the carrying amount of the lease assets and lease
liabilities under the original standards applicable on the first
implementation date;

(2) for leases previously classified as operating leases,
the Bank recognised lease liabilities based on the present
value of the remaining lease payments discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate on first implementation date, and
measured right-of-use assets based on the amount equal to
the lease liabilities, adjusted by any related prepaid amount;
and

(3) the Bank applied Note 4.25 to perform impairment test
for right-of-use assets and to account for the impairment
loss identified.

For operating leases of low-value assets and operating leases
for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the initial
application date, the Bank applied a simplified approach
instead of recognising the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities.

3T 2018 EMEMERPENEALEHESRZMTHNRRBEEM
TER, ARAEIE 2019 £1 A1 BERAREARBEANRIEEETF RHR
MHIE, 52019 £1 81 BIFARFARRNEEARHEREE
HREMOT:

For the unpaid part of minimum lease payments for
significant operating leases as at 31 December 2018, the Bank
adjusted the differences between the present value of the
remaining lease payments discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate and the lease liabilities recognised in the
balance sheet as at 1January 2019 as following:

ARMRT
RMB
Minimum lease payments for significant operating leases as at 31
2018 N ANHEEHEREAEART pey 8 P 8 130,338,420
December 2018
Bl RAGHAENREKESMSM-SHESE Less: Short-term leases with lease term that ends within 12 months 67,848,131
_ o N . Less: Leases of low-value assets with lease term that ends in more than 12
W RAFHKAENSEESEARE-RNER=HE months -
B 20191818 EF RIF I = 4 B30 Less: The effect of incremental borrowing rate as at 1January 2019 3,310,781
fn: 2018512 A318 M {TEt ZFRES Add: Finance lease payables as at 31 December 2018 -
20191 ATHBEE AR Lease liabilities as at 1January 2019 59,179,508
20191 1B E ARE =% & Net value of right-of-use assets as at 1January 2019 60,690,271
BUTHREAENRS 2019 £1 A1 BEFEREMNEIEAT
The effect of implementation of the New Leases Standard
on the balance sheet as at 1January 2019 is as follows:
NRVEFEHER Balance Sheet
wRE RigIRE AN A
Carrying amount Under the original standard Effect
ERMUEF  Right-of-use assets 60,690,271 - 60,690,271
HEfE Lease liabilities 59,179,508 - 59179,508
BIE&E= Fixed assets 32,718,055 36,483,950 (3,765,895)
152,587,834 36,483,950 116,103,884
BUTHAE AN 2019 £ EHBRAZ M T :
The effect of implementation of the New Leases Standard
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:
AREF=fH{E% Balance Sheet
HwRE BRI R AN A
Carrying amount Under the original standard Effect
{ERMNEF Right-of-use assets 72,213,755 - 72,213,755
HERk Lease liabilities 70,937,706 - 70,937,706
ElE &= Fixed assets 32,665,882 36,315,903 (3,650,021)
175,817,343 36,315,903 139,501,440
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ANFEFIEFR Income Statement

WRH RigHREEN #

Carrying amount Under the original standard Effect

FEZH Interest expense 1,537.936,819 1,535,011,657 2925162
W EREIEE General and administrative expense 1,068,961,788 1,070,623,320 (1,661,532)
2,606,898,607 2,605,634,977 1,263,630

Ie5h, EXRBUTEFEEARBEREREARESTH B8
REEUEREBRPHANERFHASRE, IANHRAELLE
HEHEEAREMENMERAEATFEUARRANEE SR FIT
ENAEHEEMNRENATANEEENASRE,

F. B

KARKRFETERTREREITMT:

In addition, after intitial application, the cash payments for
the principal and interest of the lease liabilities are classified
within financing activities, and the payments for short-term
leases, leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments
not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are
classified within operating activities.

5. Taxation

The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the
respective tax rates for the current financial year are as
follows:

201944 A1 B Z BT R FE N 3216% 3 6% I FE R ITE S TRL, 201944 A18 &R U NIR13% 1 6% BTt R iT B H I
HER B, FIRINER YL F RN SN EFT S ER,

Value-added tax

The Bank is subjected to a Value-added output tax levied on 16 per cent or six per cent of taxable income deduct the input

tax before 1 April 2019, and levied on 13 per cent or six per cent of taxable income deduct the input tax after 1 April 2019.

BT AR IR A

City construction tax

BRI TREET A 7% 1T o

The Bank is subjected to a city construction tax rate of seven per cent on turnover tax.

HERMM

Educational surcharge

1R SE PR R B 3% 1 o

The Bank is subjected to an educational surcharge rate of three per cent on turnover tax.

TR E

Corporate income tax

1% B AT ET S B 25 %3 4o

The Bank is subjected to a corporate tax rate of 25 per cent.

RIS NFER ARRZMERRANEFE, HARAERRERNENAREH.
Withholding Individual In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual income tax on
Income tax salaries paid to its employees.
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1. & RAFH R SRIRITHIR

6. Notes to financial statements

(1) Cash and deposit with the Central Bank

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
EFRE Cash on hand 6,161,298 9105977
FHRRRITEEEZEE-ART Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - RMB 3,639,084,655 3,837,964,425
FHHRRBITEEEST S-S Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - foreign currency 286,104,723 294,752,887
TR RBITINCRR ESE Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank 975,437,764 610,118,872

FRPRIRITHE AR

Other deposits with the Central Bank

1,570,033,489 1,552,048,087

Rz F 2 Interest receivable 1,391,298 2,053,235
B TP RBITHRTUREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (669977) (1,806,085)
&it Total 6,477,543,250 6,304,237,398

REBFEARBITHEXRNE, AR ALAR—CELEZYAERESESTH
EARRIT. F209E 12 A3 H, ARAARTRINTEREZEHFE
543 818 11%(2018 ££ 12 A 31 B: 12.5%) K 5%(2018 ££12 A 31 B: 5%)o

MN205 10 AZ 207 £ 9 B, RE\EPEARBITHEXRNE, s27%A
HAMMCREESEE, SREEAEHECEATM 20% HIFIMNCXKE £ &
&, AEHTFHEARBIT—&F, 207 £ 9 B, RIBRT (hEARBITE
FiRAREMCREASESERAEMY ($RE 20171207 5 ) , BREEIEK
FifE T SERRINAMIMNIRE EZERIFEN 0%, 2085E 8 A3 H,
RIBRIT (X FRRIMNCREEESBRAEMY (REZ 20181908 ) , &
HNERMIMRZIZHE T L SEERIM MO £ 2 EFIFHEN 20%,

F209FE 12 A31HKE 2018512 A31H, ARTABERPRBITRIAN
MrEE—, RERRR2ZNMANTHERRRTEREES,

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People’s Bank of China (PBOC)
in accordance with relevant regulations issued by it. As at 31 December 2019,
statutory deposit reserves placed with the PBOC were calculated at 11 per cent
(31 December 2018: 12.5 per cent ) and five per cent (31 December 2018: five per
cent) of qualified RMB deposits and foreign currency deposits from customers
respectively.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the PBOC monthly in
accordance with relevant regulations from October 2015 to September 2017.
The foreign exchange risk reserve is calculated at 20 per cent of the contractual
amount of forward sales of exchanges in the preceding month and will be
reserved in the Central Bank for one year. Since September 2017, the foreign
exchange risk reserve is calculated at O per cent of the contractual amount of
forward sales of exchanges in accordance with Yin Fa [2017] No.207 “the Notice of
the People's Bank of China on adjustment of foreign exchange risk reserve policy” issued
by PBOC. Since 3 August 2018, the foreign exchange risk reserve is calculated at 20
per cent of the contractual amount of forward sales of exchanges in accordance
with Yin Fa [2018] No.190 “the Notice of the People’s Bank of China on adjustment of
foreign exchange risk reserve policy” issued by PBOC.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Bank included all deposit
with the Central Bank in Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based on
expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

n7z
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(2) Due from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
FHERNRITE R HE &5 Due from domestic banks and other financial institutions 937,724,434 1,086,698,658
TEFIESMRITR L Due from overseas banks 920,510,122 753,066,131
RHE Interest receivable 459,570 1,327,381
INTF Sub-total 1,858,694,126 1,841,092,170
R FEHELREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (6,255,224) (6,309,371)
TR E Al 4 55 Net amount of due from banks and other financial institutions 1,852,438,902 1,834,782,799

E1: EREMREAE D AR RBERER 201045 S (PERESXTF
& < SRITU S RVAESI R EERES > BB ) HAEMITRH~ERX
R B & AR 2R 12 D A E R K IHR B E#E &

F2019F 12 31 BR20184£12 A31 B, AAREEEHEME WL RITHAN
MrEE—, BEKRRK 2 PMARFBERARKITERELES,

Note 1: Impairment provisions for due from banks and other financial institutions
represented the country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No.
45 Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing the
Guidelines for Country Risk Management of the Banking Financial Institutions issued
by CBIRC, and the provision for impairment measured according to 12-month
expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Bank included all due from
banks and other financial institutions in Stage |, and measured the impairment
losses based on expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

S5.iTEERMTH

TEEMTEE—ME™n, ENERRTEMKMES—f “&
i RTINS EMTENNE, BEXE “EMiE” Fa
BERE. XAFRHM. GEHH. BETNHCERRMNESE, F
RIEAMNTEESMTREGREINHGY. E1. B,

TEEMTENE X EHIEERM N ERE" R=HE RN E,
FRFFREREREFNDS . ZERANERBRTSIHERERR
AARRITE SR TRENRESOMIER RN E.
AAREAERREBNTHIEEAEN TENTEEMT R,

AR TEFARRBMFENITESHMTRNT:

(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which
is derived from the value of another “underlying” financial
instrument, an index or some other variables. Typically, an
“underlying” financial instrument is a share, commodity or
bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest rate.
The Bank uses derivative instruments such as forwards,
futures, swaps, options and futures.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount
of underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative
is based. It indicates the unsettled volume of business
transaction at the balance sheet date. The amount of
underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at
the end of accounting period other than fair value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative
instruments are as follows:

.IfHES (3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions
31-12-2019 31-12-2018
T}ifiﬁ&{_‘étﬂiﬁmﬁﬁlﬁﬂk& Placements with domestic banks and other financial institutions 6,122,336,905 12,864,915,427
Hit&ria
/R HEIMRITE Placements with overseas banks 1,367,659,000 1,014,613,600
R F 2 Interest receivable 20,860,893 104,824,390
Nt Sub-total 7,510,856,798 13,984,353,417
Bl IREEACREER Less: allowance for impairment losses (11,010,576) (13,697,042)
IR A& S5 Net amount of placements with banks and other financial institutions 7,499,846,222 13,970,656,375

FE 1 ERENMCREE A AR FRBREE (201045 S (PERKESXT
& CRITIERmMAAERREEERES ) MEM) HREMTHRMERR
M B & R 2R 12 > AT E RRAIHRN B ERE S

F209512A31BK2018E 12 A3 H, ARRABEMIFHEEMNNE—,
BEKE 2 AR ERREAITEREES,

4. X HHEERME

Note 1: Impairment provisions for placements represented the country risk
reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45 Circular of the China
Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for
Country Risk Management of the Banking Financial Institutions issued by CBIRC,
and the provision for impairment measured according to 12-month expected
credit loss.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Bank included all placements
with banks and other financial institutions in Stage |, and measured the
impairment losses based on expected credit losses in the next 12 months
(12-month ECL).

(4) Financial assets held-for-trading

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
U EITEEETD) ) ) ) )
e e e iy Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
AN BIREASRA gnp
BURMERITES Bonds issued by policy banks - 409,350,760
R E A Placement with banks and other financial institutions 684,165,157 151,475,699
El7FE Negotiable certificates of deposit 740,087,700 894,193,800
R F 2 Interest receivable 1,405,520 16,989,143
&it Total 1,425,658,377 1,472,009,402
118
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31-12-2019 31-12-2018
A S E Fair Value A SR E Fair Value
BANET &= Ttk BNET &= &k
Notional Amount Assets Liabilities  Notional Amount Assets Liabilities

. Foreign exchange
SNLATETR: contracts:

IHAE Y Forwards 8,960,089,203 160,513,880 74,027,568 11,046,554,962 65,513,596 119,074,499

HHEY Swaps 276,786,396,744 2,512196,287  2,659,081,330 415,864,449724  4,874,531,221 4,610,794,899

HREY Options 46,643,484,190 196,570,680 240,972,343 25,370,373,062 545,806,880 520,277,847
INit Sub-total 332,389,970,137 2,869280,847  2,974,081,241 452,281377748 5485,851,697  5250,147,245
FRGTETE: Interest rate contracts:

HEEY Swaps 254,744.182,319 715,988,782 743,648,913 183,481,657,925 732,417,067 789,222,305
Nt Sub-total 254,744182,319 715,988,782 743,648,913 183,481,657,925 732,417,067 789,222,305
BFmNiRE#H TR Commodity contracts:

HHEY Swaps 3,464,077941 131,712,810 131,226,230 1,937,686,673 30,071,881 29,485,841
Nt Sub-total 3,464,077941 131,712,810 131,226,230 1,937,686,673 30,071,881 29,485,841

FEMIRIESITE: Equity contracts:

&Y Options 1,698,436,013 4,099,733 4,126,346 2,361,008,947 1,705,633 1,930,796

Nt Sub-total 1,698,436,013 4,099,733 426,346 2,361,008,947 1,705,633 1,930,796
- Precious metal

= 4 =.

REBITELR: derivatives:

ZHEY Forwards 18,735,007,298 325,787,753 226,100,612 5,953,179,822 43712,658 40,108,093

HEEY Swaps 3,029,411,240 71,990,336 57,797,623 2,735,599,206 38,897,939 61,022,749

BREH Options 17140767 234,681 234,625 - - -

HBa Futures 485371120 14,682,947 - - - -
it Sub-total 22,266,930,425 412,695,717 284,132,860 8,688,779,028 82,610,597 101,130,842
&it Total 614,563,596,835 4133,777,889 4,137,215,590 648,750,510,321 6,332,656,875  6,171,917,029

119

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019 MRS s



6. INIRELRASS (6) Reverse repurchase financial assets 72 4T 5% (7.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by industry
31-12-2019 31-12-2018 31-12-2019
BRI ENE. Classified by counter-party: T TET SR 00 AL
SRATRE) L Banks 3,246,540,000 3,283,790,000
Amount Percentage
R F 8 Interest receivable 7,561,612 7,850,1M
Bl Real estates 9,571,546,438 27%
B BEES Less: allowance for impairment losses (353,251) (2,383,587)
e ) N
&t Total 3253748361 3.289,256,524 HliE Manufacturing 7,602,150,185 0%
BRSNS Classified by type of pledged assets #ERFMFEW Wholesale and retail 6,252,272,902 18%
&5 Bonds 3,246,540,000 3,283,790,000 £ Bl Finance 1,538,642,473 5%
=) ,

Rz 2 Interest recevable 7,561,612 785011 {EFFE Sl Accommodation and catering 1,206,711,997 3%
B REEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (353,251) (2,383,587) e SR B AT Telecommunication, software and information 487562 530 »
&t Total 3,253,748 361 3,289,256,524 R o z management service o ’
F19ERANAR20BER AN H, AATBLBINEESHME  As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Bank included all reverse RBIEW. SHEMEREL Transportation, storage and post 384,427,303 1%
PANME—, RERK 2 ADPANTHERRRITEREES, repurchase financial assets in Stage I, and measured the impairment losses based

on expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL). EHAl Construction 363,348,566 1%
™ T4, HEREMLSIFER AL Health, social security and social welfare 361,613,033 1%
7. KT AN (7) Loans and advances to customers = = Y
. . B, #h. MERKEFEFER Electricity, heat, gas and water suppl 303,478,969 1%
71 AN AF 57 (71) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and corporate o PR % § PPy
Rkt Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 200,000,000 1%
31-12-2019 31-12-2018
e it e A EMESRS W Leasi d ial i 119,722,949 0%
PLBE R R AR T E Loans and advances to customers at amortised AR SRS L €asing and commerciat services
BRI cost FZF R AR S W Scientific research and technical services 93,299,689 0%
NGk Retail loans and advances:
HE A Education 26,693,265 0%

ERERIE Mortgages 6,829,629,559 6,871,291,788

st oth 1842190 5783637 BERRE. BEMEMARSL Residents services, repair and other services 6,000,000 0%

H thers 842, 783,
N . o
Nt Sub-total 6,831471,749 6,874,075,425 T ABER Retail loan 6831471749 19%
o PSR F S, Corporate loans and advances: &it Total 35,748,942,048 100%

e Loans 18931983972 17,842,022,147 EdvliEdl) s Interest receivable 176,211,396

Wi Discounted bills 258427175 436,083,536 KRB BT Total amount of loans and advances 35,925153,444

BREmA Trade finance 8,745,626,924 7/439,886,503 )

W W EEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (780,738,832)
N Sub-total 27,936,038,071 25,717,992,186
AR AMEHE B E T &G Fn A S M E A Net value of loans and advances to customers 35,144,414,612
=X
Loans and advances to customers at fair value
L\ sl 25 o A A
TN IR E K through profit and loss 981,432,228 885,500,931
sk
&t Total 35,748,942,048 33,477568,542
W W F B Interest receivable 176,211,396 158,960,378
BRSNS R Total amount of loans and advances 35,925,153,444 33,636,528,920
B REBEES Less: allowance for impairment losses (780,738,832) (714,438,660)
BRSO BEMWEMN{E Net value of loans and advances to customers 35,144,414,612 32,922,090,260
120 121

S KERT (PE ) ARAF 2019 FERE

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019 MRS s



31-12-2018
T TET SR &0 el (%)
Amount Percentage( %)
3l Manufacturing 8,080,908,618 24%
Bt =l Real estates 7,536,484,147 22%
ek FnEEN Wholesale and retail 5,210,735,566 16%
Erl Finance 1,533914,796 5%
FEFERA Accommodation and catering 1117397918 3%
S SRS B RIS Telecommunicatign, software and information 947067291 3%
management service
HEME SRS Leasing and commercial services 495,242.110 1%
ZIBIEH . CHEFIEREL Transportation, storage and post 452,006,742 1%
Al Construction 374,525,024 1%
B, # 4, MERKEF=FHRN Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 283,320,924 1%
T4, HEREMESER L Health, social security and social welfare 220,567,591 1%
R4 Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 201,000,000 1%
Rl R FF AR S Scientific research and technical services 142,322,390 0%
BRRS. 1SEMNEMARS Residents services, repair and other services 8,000,000 0%
MAR Retail loan 6,874,075,425 21%
&it Total 33,477,568,542 100%
BRBF R Interest receivable 158,960,378
KRR EEN Total amount of loans and advances 33,636,528,920
B ERBEEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (714,438,660)
BRI E N E Net value of loans and advances to customers 32,922,090,260
73 X 9% (7.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
geographical region
31-12-2019 31-12-2018
%4t North-east 904,599,526 1,030,567,899
TR East 18,625,920,703 18,244,357,381
4k North 6,689,249129 5,945112,567
ferh Central 965,661,546 703,838,787
=) South 4,436,905,184 3,929,572,630
wE South-west 2,722,592,826 2,329,286,538
[iiple North-west 312,000,000 77,000,000
TSR Overseas 1,092,013)34 1,217,832,740
ait Total 35,748,942,048 33,477,568,542
GIRR R R Interest receivable 176,211,396 158,960,378
RHEERMBIEE Total amount of loans and advances 35,925/153,444 33,636,528,920
B BRREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (780,738,832) (714,438,660)
AR M ENME Net value of loans and advances to customers 35,144,414,612 32,922,090,260
122
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74 BIBRAEXSH (7.4) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral or guarantee
31-12-2019 31-12-2018
BN Unsecured loans 4,911,545,834 6,412,734,720
RIESERK Guaranteed loans 6,601,416,899 6,234,081,650
HHE{R BRI Loans with collaterals 24,412190,71 20,989,712,550
Hef: Of which:
R GE X Secured by mortgages 19,886,982,250 16,212,600,347
R Secured by pledges 4,525,208,461 4,777112,203
y pledg
K IRERFNER B AR Total amount of loans and advances 35,925153,444 33,636,528,920
B BRRKES Less: allowance for impairment losses (780,738,832) (714,438,660)
BRI BRI ENE Net value of loans and advances to customers 35,144,414,612 32,922,090,260
7.5 B HA BE =X (7.5) Overdue Loan
31-12-2019
BHANREE BIHAEEE 34
BHNKZEIOR WHBE L ait
(&%) (&34 ) B
Overdue1day to  Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1yearto  Overdue 3 years
; ) ; ) Total
90 days 1year (inclusive) 3 years (inclusive) above
{RIERE Guaranteed loans 31,615,001 - - - 31,615,001
BRI EE X Loans with collaterals 474,932 68,490,080 100,453,288 7,800,808 177219108
He: Of which:
LR EEN Secured by mortgages 474,932 68,490,080 100,453,288 7,800,808 177219108
&it Total 32,089933 68,490,080 100,453,288 7,800,808 208,834,109
31-12-2018
EHNKE 14 B EE
EENRZEIOR EHEE L b ait
(&) (&34 ) -
Overdue 1day to  Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1yearto  Overdue 3 years
. ) ; ) Total
90 days 1 year (inclusive) 3 years (inclusive) above
RIEGETR Guaranteed loans 7,699,986 - - - 7699986
PR AR BT K Loans with collaterals 98,374,378 2,629,450 30,800,808 66,201,717 198,006,353
He. Of which:

IRt Secured by mortgages 98,374,378 2,629,450 30,800,808 66,201,717 198,006,353
&it Total 106,074,364 2,629,450 30,800,808 66,201,717 205,706,339
BN R REARSSH S 1 XA LR R,

Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related interests are overdue for one day or above.
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76 LRk R ( MEE 14)

MR ARETENR R RMERBEESRRBAQAR 2 1AM
HERBRARENFZRBTHERBRAS TR, RIEEEHNE

(7.6) Loan impairment provision Note 6.14

The allowances for loans and advances measured at
amortized cost are measured according to the 12-month

T expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss
respectively. The movement of impairment provisions is as
follows:

2019
F—ME EME EZME
Stage | Stage Il Stage IlI

Fk124 ATER BAGEH BAGEHCRERE &5

ERHK FHA(E Ak RRE&R %~ =

Credit-impaired

12-month expected  Lifetime expected financial assets Total
credit loss credit loss  (Lifetime expected
credit loss)

2019 1 B 1 HE&E At 1January 2019 605,230,793 28,985,392 80,222,475 714,438,660

2019 1H1H Opening balance on 1January

REERE 2019

—ENEZME Transfer to Stage I (12,549,336) 12,549,336 - -

—BNE=MEK Transfer to Stage IlI (359,616) - 359,616 -

—— ®EE—MEK Transfer to Stage | 880,951 (880,951) - -

AEHIESHEE Charge/(reverse) during the year 54,070,337 28,042,985 51,536,626 133,649,948

REZH Writing off during the year - - (61,580,962) (61,580,962)

- > g Recovery of loans and advances ) ) ) i

e AR R A previously written off

N [E Unwinding of discount - - (5,849,180) (5,849180)

ICERTD Exchange rate difference - - 80,366 80,366

ERFH Closing balance 647227329 68,696,762 64,768,941 780,738,832

2018

2018 F£1 B 1 BH&EM At 1January 2018 514,224,038 88,060,663 76,633,455 678,918,156

208 1H1H Opening balance

REEARH on 1January 2018

- ENEZHER Transfer to Stage Il (4,896,334) 4,896,334 - -

- BNEZME Transfer to Stage IlI (25,160,945) - 25,160,945 -

-- B[O —MEE Transfer to Stage | 2,249,949 (2,249949) - -

AEAHIE 5 E Charge/(reverse) during the year 118,814,085 (61,721,656) 1,681,481 58,773,910

ARHAZ Writing off during the year - - (22,074,873) (22,074,873)

W B LB A Recovery of loans and advances ) ) 28,020 28.020

ISR previously written off ' ’

IR [E Unwinding of discount - - (1164,272) (1164,272)

CRETE Exchange rate difference - - (42,281) (42,281)

FERRE Closing balance 605,230,793 28,985,392 80,222,475 714,438,660
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8. Hh iz &

(8) Other debt instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income

2019
Ak ‘ it
BritF 2 pEz ERRE A BRIt QAR M EES Galmp
> WA RK &
Interest  Gains from change Closing Cost Accumulated gains  Accumulated ECL
payable in fair value during balance from changes recognised in other
the year in fair value comprehensive
income
hRIRITRIBER E R
Central Bank bills and 98,746,551 20,470,708 5,405,545971 5,314,361,339 36,261,054 542913
government bonds
BURMERITHRS
Bonds issued by policy 51,781,475 11,070,338 2,517,083,825 2,478,239,415 18,148,881 449,536
banks
Rz
Negotiable certificate - 837,801 2,223,258,140 2,207,317,049 1,178,525 604,224
of deposits
&it 150,528,026 32,378,847 10,145,887,936 9,999,917,803 55,588,460 1,596,673
2018
RritF 2 I ERRE %N Rt AR MEES Lraa
= WA R &
Interest ~ Gains form change Closing Cost Accumulated gains  Accumulated ECL
payable in fair value during balance from changes recognised in other
the year in fair value comprehensive
income
R RIRITRER E R
Central Bank bills and 66,900,270 36,113,404 5157951711 5,125,060,650 18,426,957 521936
government bonds
BURMRITR S
Eonl?s issued by policy 10,699,502 7,063,757 598,7739M 588,890,270 7,078,543 109,154
anks
bz
Negotiable certificate - 2,001,750 1,213,859,310 1,210,529,522 395,902 509,800
of deposits
&it 77,599,772 4517891 6,970,584,932 6,924,480,442 25,901,402 1,140,890

F2019412831HR 2018412 B31 H, AATRELHMEMENIEHN
MrEg—, mEKREK 2 ANARNTAHERRKITERERES,

AEEEMEEREPRANETAART 32834631 5T (208 &FE: AR
45698204 7t ) , ANELIEFHIARNEMGE SRR S BHRENRSMRL
EEAANRT 2691789 7T (2018 &£: AR 9308162 T ) »

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Bank included all other debt
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income in Stage |, and
measured the impairment losses based on expected credit losses in the next 12
months (12-month ECL).

The amount recognized in other comprehensive income in 2019 was RMB
32,834,631 (2018: RMB45,698,204), and the amount transferred from other
comprehensive income to the current profit and loss was RMB2,691,789 (2018:
RMB9,308,162).
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(9) Fixed assets

BEERETY BERE DARBMNZE &it
2019 i i i

Propertlgs gnd Motor vehicles Office equipment and Total

buildings computers
R Cost:
2018 12 A3 H At 31 December 2018 5,793,690 2,538,181 119,061,110 127,392,981
EESITBERTE Changes in accounting policies (5,793,690) - - (5793,690)
200F1A1H At 1January 2019 - 2,538,181 119,061,110 121,599,291
TN Additions - - 11,669,043 11,669,043
REERIEFEAN Transfer from construction in progress
( BEFR. B2) (Note 6.13.2) 618,251 618,251

RELE Disposals - (28,54614)  (28,546,114)
2019 12 H31H At 31 December 2019 - 2,538,181 102,802,290 105,340,471
Fit#rIR: Accumulated depreciation:
2018 12 A 31H At 31 December 2018 2,027,795 2,093,920 86,787,316 90,909,031
KRELSITHRE Changes in accounting policies (2,027,795) - - (2,027795)
2094 1HA1H At 1January 2019 - 2,093,920 86,787,316 88,881,236
AEIHR Additions - 226,374 1976198 12,202,572
TERE Disposals - - (28409219)  (28,409,219)
201912 H31H At 31 December 2019 - 2,320,294 70,354,295 72,674,589
BE&R T R ER ST Net book value and net carrying amount
201912 A31H At 31 December 2019 - 217,887 32,447,995 32,665,882

BEEREHY EHRE DAKBNIEE ait
2018 i i i

Propertlgs gnd Motor vehicles Office equipment and Total

buildings computers
R Cost:
208 1H1H At 1January 2018 5,793,690 2,538,181 115,320,396 123,652,267
AN Additions - - 12,122,871 12,122,871
AEEZIEREN Transfer from construction in progress . . 3537 35371
( MtE7<, 13.2) (Note 6.13.2) : :

RELE Disposals - - (8417528)  (8,417,528)
2018 12 A31H At 31 December 2018 5,793,690 2,538,181 119,061,110 127,392,981
EitH#rI8: Accumulated depreciation:
208 1H1H At 1January 2018 1,911,921 1,722,465 80,966,897 84,601,283
AEiTHR Additions 15,874 371,455 13,766,029 14,253,358
RELRE Disposals - - (7945,610)  (7.945,610)
208 12 A31H At 31 December 2018 2,027,795 2,093,920 86,787,316 90,909,031
EE R = E R & Net book value and net carrying amount
2018412 A31H At 31 December 2018 3,765,895 444261 32,273,794 36,483,950

F2018F12 A31H, BEREAYWARAARBIENNDILAE,

As at 31 December 2018, the properties and buildings represent the office capitalised under finance lease.
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10. {8 ALE =

(10) Right-of-use asset

oo ERREZI EWiaE =
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
AR Cost:
2019F1HA1H At 1January 2019 57,611,455 5,106,611 62,718,066
ZEEE Additions 43,862,803 1,509,033 45,371,836
2019F 12 A31H At 31 December 2019 101,474,258 6,615,644 108,089,902
Kit#rIE: Accumulated depreciation:
2019 1H1H At 1January 2019 2,027,795 - 2,027,795
AEITR Additions 30,786,543 3,061,809 33,848,352
2019F 12831 H At 31 December 2019 32,814,338 3,061,809 35,876,147
WEMNE Net book value and net carrying amount
2019F1H81H At 1January 2019 55,583,660 5,106,611 60,690,271
2019F 12 A31H At 31 December 2019 68,659,920 3,553,835 72,213,755
. ERHE~ (11) Intangible assets
2019 2018
RiFigE Software
R Cost or valuation:
FEHEE Opening balance 217,984,199 202,519,588
AEME Additions 2157358 7,254,878
T 2) oo e
AELE (12,128,105) -
FEREH Closing balance 233,213,362 217,984,199
En il Accumulated amortisation:
FEHIWERE Opening balance 114,661,915 83,970,905
AEITR Additions 28,039,884 30,691,010
RELE Disposals (12,128,105) -
EREEN Closing balance 130,573,694 114,661915
TR R ER ST Net carrying amount 102,639,668 103,322,284
127
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12. B EFTERR T

(12) Deferred tax assets

AR T IRE R MBI AT SR B = A AR T 19219453 5T, EIHIE

be utilised, the Bank recognised deferred tax asset of RMB

2019 32021 &, ZAHEINSIRE2ETF 2018 & EHUR R AV E TS, 19,219,453 arising from unused tax losses of RMB76,877,811,
FEEETN As at 31 December 2017, based on the profit forecast and ~ 2MON8 which will expire in Year 2021. The unused tax losses
BT AR BT Deferred tax assets FHIRE AEIT N B ﬁﬁﬁ%;ﬂgﬁ FARREM to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit has been fully utilised in 2018.
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/(Charged) Closing will be available against which the unused tax losses can
balance to profit or loss to equity balance
BBk iAllowar:jcelfor impairment losses on 95743194 39,082,063 134825257 N
oan and placement 3. HiEr= (13) Other assets
s . Allowance for impairment losses on
+ S N N
Rt & RAFRIEES other financial assets 3,749,682 (1138,534) (399169) 221979 it
it st Provisions 6,341,061 2,946,505 - 9287566 Notes 3112-2019 3112-2018
e 4 -
Unrealised gain/(loss) on other debt KHAF 2R Long-term deferred expenses 131 84,592,813 90,572,253
A B e o S B 2 ; ; _
HENI R RS RES instrument aF fa}r value through other (6,760,573) (7136,542)  (13,897115) HRTE Construction in process B2 4590472 17651040
comprehensive income
\ = i
TTEEMTAEARMETENRIEE Changes in fair value of derivatives 10,501,776 (36,142,980) - (25,641,204) Fi R K Other receivables 133 327,810,365 256,785,707
T o o
H A RMMETEEETEIT  Changes in fair value of other financial ﬁég%;{gg%& i;‘:;‘:e\i’:;z be verified and 21,504,558 5392,834
ANLHRBMNEM TR ARN  instruments at fair value through 7,885,549 (4,880,177) - 3,005,372 =
R profit or loss Ait Total 438,498,808 370,401,834
FIRIRITEARRSE Payroll payables 3,049924 883,160 - 3933084
131 K HAfF %R (13.1) Long-term deferred expenses
iR H Accrued liabilities 8,591,374 (4137,581) - 4,453,793
o P
Hith Others 626,634 (4,558,955) - (393232) 2019 BABERHRXH Hite ait
Leasehold improvement Others Total
ait Total 129728,621 (7946,499) (7535711) 114,246,411 .
FEHEREN Opening balance 79,743,517 10,828,736 90,572,253
2018 LRGN Additions 5,462,768 1,366,071 6,828,839
. ¢ b A R oae BEITA Py REFEZEIIEFEN  Transfer from construction in
$IEFT ISR Deferred tax assets RER b 155 xE - =¥} + = -
BEMIRE FHRE AEITNG FEEis AR (BtiEos. 132)  progress (Note 6.13.2) 5,855,101 5,855,101
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/(Charged) Closing ARG Amortisation (14,081,390) (4,581,990) (18,663,380)
balance to profit or loss to equity balance
] ‘ _ Allowance for impairment losses on EREHR Closing balance 76979996 7,612,817 84,592,813
45 Eh & =} \, ]
W E R R EE loan and placement 107,400,577 (1,657,383) 95,743,194
s . Allowance for impairment losses on
H R R A= -
Rt SRR FRIERES other financial assets 703,565 (3283883) 3749682 BAAEERHMRIH Hit ait
2018
it s Provisions 455,998 2]185,063 - 6,341,061 Leasehold improvement Others Total
. T A e Unrealised gain/(loss) on available- FEYSEN Opening balance 88,169,545 1,530,194 89,699,739
4 H £ 4 2h 5 SC IR _ _ 1167, 22U, ,077,
A & SRR A SR for-sale financial assets 2492337 (2492337)
" .
Unrealised gain/{loss) on other debt NN Additions 2,114,858 10,712,726 12,827,584
HuEM S RS IR instrument at fair value through other - - (6,760,573)  (6,760,573) AEAEBETIEEN  Transfer from construction in 6,286,530 ) 6.286.530
comprehensive income ( BiiEFS. 13.2) progress (Note 6.13.2) o T
TTEESMITAEANRMETENIREE Changes in fair value of derivatives (69,224,845) 79,726,621 - 10,501,776 INEPEY Amortisation (16,827,416) (1,414,184) (18,241,600)
HftA AR METTEREZRIT  Changes in fair value of other financial EREE Closing balance 79,743,517 10,828,736 90,572,253
NLUHRBENEM TR ARN  instruments at fair value through 12,925,414 (5,039,865) - 7,885,549
BT profit or loss
FRIRIIRRES Payroll payables 2,701,787 348,137 - 3,049924
iR#E A Accrued liabilities 10,393,051 (1,801,677) - 8,591,374
AN Deductible tax losses 19,219,453 (19,219,453) - -
Hib Others 847,618 (220,984) - 626,634
&it Total 97,944,955 41,036,576 (9,252910) 129,728,621
F207F12A3NEH, FARREIREHRFTRN, RATEEERGRANRINRNS R KRN SAARBIANE AR 7687781
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B2EEIRE

(13.2) Construction in progress

2019 2018
FEVRE Opening balance 17,651,040 9414116
S Additions 18,612,694 22,768,558
BENEEE” (MENR. 9) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 6. 9) (618,251) (35,371)
BANELEEFE (MEN. ) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 6. 11) (25199,910) (8,209,733)
EENKHEIEMER (MiEsS, 131)  Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 6.13.) (5,855,101) (6,286,530)
EREE Net closing balance 4,590,472 17,651,040
13.3 H b pr =% (13.3) Other receivables

2019 2018
oA &R e el Other receivable and prepayments 329,380,814 259,174,381
BEES Allowance for impairment losses (1,569,849) (2,388,674)
FREE Net value 327,810,965 256,785,707

R R E R MEE BB A

BEREERI YR E R

Other receivable and prepayments mainly include items in

HIMER S AT FURIN T the process of clearing and settlement. The aging analysis is

as follows:
Tt Aging 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
1ERH Within 1 year 303,563,341 238,638,945
12 5 1-2 years 7926,400 2,736,149
2-3 4 2-3 years 2,646,753 14,199,637
3EME More than 3 years 15,244,320 3,599,650
Nt Sub-total 329,380,814 259174,381
B BEES Less: allowance for impairment losses (1,569,849) (2,388,674)
&it Total 327,810,965 256,785,707
130
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H b YRR R 12 N B S Bk R BN FEATHE BiRLt

RBEES, BEEENEHNT:

The impairment provisions are measured according to the

12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit
loss. The movement of allowance for impairment losses is as

follows:

2019

F—HE& EME F=ZWE

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
FKR124 B BAEEY  BAGSMERE &it

BERHK TEE R FERBESMES =

Credit-impaired
12-month expected  Lifetime expected financial assets Total

credit loss credit loss  (Lifetime expected

credit loss)
2019 £ 1 B 1 HEE Balance as at 1January 2019 1,068,674 - 1,320,000 2,388,674
AETHR Accrual during the year 501,175 - 827954 1329129
NFEIEY Writing off during the year - - (2,147,954) (2,147954)
ERREN Ending Balance 1,569,849 - - 1,569,849
2018

-k EMER =Mk

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
K121 BFH BAGEE  BOGEBERE -

BERHK MEE R FERBESMES =

Credit-impaired
12-month expected  Lifetime expected financial assets Total

credit loss credit loss  (Lifetime expected

credit loss)
ggiﬁ 1H1H Balance as at 1 January 2018 494,849 678,000 - 4,872,849
AR 7 #E Accrual/(reverse) during the year (2156,052) (678,000) 1,320,000 (1,514,052)
HAZEHE Writing off during the year (970,123) - - (970,123)
ERRT Ending Balance 1,068,674 - 1,320,000 2,388,674
131
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4. RrEBEES

(14) Allowance for impairment losses

e i’i‘?%/ LKIIEILL‘LE‘U' s e T Zl‘ﬁﬁﬁ% P
FEMRE (5@ ) % o A REZHE  HYRER EWMBEM FERKH
Recovery of
2019 loans and Writing off
advances riting o Exch t
Opening Accrual/ previously ~ duringthe  Unwinding di;c(fcerae“;gcz raans Closing
balance (Reversal) written off year of discount others balance
FHAPRFITHI  Allowance for impairment losses
;J?i%?&% | on deposit with the Central Bank 1,806,085  (1,136,108) - - - - 669977
HEZS 1 (Note 61)
Allowance for impairment losses
TFHEFIUE{E  on due from banks and other
#%& (MEA. 2) financial institutions 6309371 (54147) 6,255,224
(Note 6.2)
N N "™ Allowance for impairment losses
?ﬁﬂjﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ on placements with banks 13,697,042 (2,686,466 - - - - 1,010,576
p
( BiHEZS. 3) (Note 6.3)
FINIRES=R{E Allowance for impairment losses
e ::S;iz;/erse repurchase financial 2383587 (2,030,336) . . ) . 353,251
( HES. 6) (Note 6.6)
.t Allowance for impairment losses
S N
ﬁaTA’J—.ME'E% on loans 714,438,660 133,649,948 - (61580962) (5,849180) 80,366 780,738,832
( BiHiEFS. 76) (Note 6.7.6)
HirarmmiEes Allowance for impairment losses
. on other assets 2,388,674 1,329129 - (2,47954) - - 1,569,849
( HE7R, 133) (Note 6]13.3)
&it Total 741,023,419 129,072,020 - (63,728916)  (5,849180) 80,366 800,597,709
N R/ WEIET > e . HMNTIRE
RER A ; EY & RER
FEMFRE (BB B R REZH EAELNEIE7 =R FERFH
regorer of
Writing off
) advances ) . Exchange rate )
Opening Accrual/  previously ~— during the Unwinding  difference Closing
balance (Reversal)  written off year __ of discount  and others balance
FERHRRBEITEIT  Allowance for impairment losses
BEES on deposit with the Central Bank 1709937 96,148 - - - - 1,806,085
( HtEZS, 1) (Note 61)
Allowance for impairment losses
FHENERTURIE  on due from banks and other
#& (MHEA. 2) financial institutions 20929875 (14620,504) 6309371
(Note 6.2)
N Allowance for impairment losses
BEBIE
i f%’mﬁ&% on placements with banks 14,899,172 1167198 - - - 34,932 13,697,042
p
( BftEZS. 3) (Note 63)
FENREZZRE{E Allowance for impairm(-j:nt lo§ses
e :Snser:;/erse repurchase financial ) 2383587 ) ) ) ) 2383587
( BER. 6) (Note 6.6)
. Allowance for impairment losses
REBEY
= T“’ﬁ.‘zﬁ'ﬁﬁ on loans 678918156 58773910 28020 (22,074873) (1164272 (42,281) 714,438,660
( BiHiEFS. 76) (Note 6.7.6)
HMEFEREeES Allowance for impairment losses
L. on other assets 4,872,849 (1,514,052) - (970,123) - - 2,388,674
( BiHiES 13.3) (Note 613.3)
it Total 721,329,989 43,951,891 28,020 (23,044,996) (1164,272) (77,213) 741,023,419
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15. & ke B2 B Ath & BAALAG 7 BRI

(15) Due to banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
BRRITR A K E i & mAaTEN Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 294,889,203 401467113
EAMRITE L F Due to overseas banks 193,982,248 168,967,083
MFFE Interest payable 3198427 1297184
&it Total 492,069,878 571,731,380

16. IFANF &

(16) Placements from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
BRRITRLIFANREN Placements from domestic banks 300,000,000 1,436,320,000
EIMRITRIMIRAN R BN Placements from overseas banks 13,035,326 974 15,241,083977
MATFIE Interest payable 123,625,461 86,890,297
At Total 13,458,952,435 16,764,294,274
7. X5 &A% (17) Financial liabilities held-for-trading
31-12-2019 31-12-2018
;ég%g%g%:ﬂﬁﬁﬁ]ﬁ)\éﬁﬂ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
ENIEIN Placement from banks and other financial institutions 382,245,145 2,712,232,528
RNAFFER Interest payable 931479 8,262,687
&it Total 3,183,176,624 2,720,495,215
18. SEH B & R ==K (18) Repurchase agreements
31-12-2019 31-12-2018
HRIERWDE: Classified by collateral:
ERES Financial bond 720,000,000 270,000,000
RAFFIE Interest payable 292,241 207,863
&it Total 720,292,241 270,207,863
19. IRITTFFRK (19) Customer deposits
31-12-2019 31-12-2018
EHATE: Current deposits:
NCIES=! Corporate customers 11,288,182,352 9,291,172,885
MAERA Individual customers 902,535,028 693,077,452
it Sub-total 12190,717,380 9984,250,337
EHFR: Time deposits:
UNGIESS] Corporate customers 24,571,183,163 24,351,823,227
TAER Individual customers 2,494,319,459 2,680,015,655
it Sub-total 27,065,502,622 27,031,838,882
REfHFIE Interest payable 249,868,326 238,548,813
&it Total 39,506,088,328 37,254,638,032
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20. 74 BR T #r

(20) Payroll payables

KT & Amount unpaid 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
IH/. &, EMLFAMG Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 105,737,970 110,629,010
HERIE R Social insurance 2,306,331 3,465,737
EEARE Housing fund - 12,258
TERHBMATIHETLE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 41,282 42,597
EEREFITR Defined contribution plan 13,575,125 11,398,370
He: BEXAFEREER Of which: Pension fund 4372129 3,998,347

Pl ESHE Annuity 9,202,996 7400,023
&it Total 121,660,708 125,647.972
Fft&E Amount payable 2019 2018
T&., #&., EMEFEMY Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 567,895,413 539,525,714
SRR Social insurance 28,010,121 23,609,358
ER/AFI4 Housing fund 26,444,852 22,222,536
ISZHBNMRIHELRE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 544,278 4,868,701
BERFITR Defined contribution plan 53,708,874 50,147,618
Hrp. ERFEERKE Of which: Pension fund 40,741,899 41,015,522

Pl ELHE Annuity 12,966,975 9,132,096
Htt5RITHAXMNER Other staff related expenses 19,654,508 12,472,191
&it Total 700,858,046 652,846,118
21, Rz 3 Fi %% (21) Tax payables

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
HER Value added tax 25,259,946 22,830,299
Bt N Tax surcharges 3,045,477 2,592,948
Ml 5% Corporate income tax 3,404,468 59,534,467
R HBLI Withholding tax 30,808,148 31715526
Hib Others 334,043 243,512
Ait Total 62,852,082 116,916,752
22, Nt &EE (22) Debt securities issued
31-12-2019 31-12-2018

L2EE Financial bond 1,033,269,263 1,032,306,313
TR E Tier-two capital bond 1,002,668,373 -
B {FE Negotiable certificates of deposit 709,614,871 1,620,334,070
Ait Total 2,745,552,507 2,652,640,383
134

KERT (FE) FRAF 2009 FERE

F2019F 12 A31 B, HAEERTIIRNT:

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of debt securities issued listed below:

Z1THH SRR RITE&H EERIT AETHRME XEEE / ZHHE FERRE
Issue date Period Issue amount  Actual issue amount Accrued interest Repayment closing balance
BEITH SR ES:

Issued financial bond:

2018/4/13 34 (3 years) 1,000,000,000 - 49,204,419 (49,300,000) 1,033,269,263
BRITH-RENE:

Issued Tier-two capital bond:

2019/11/15 10 £ (10 years) 1,000,000,000 997,076,364 5,639,344 - 1,002,668,373

2018 £ 4 A 3 HAITHERMESA=FHEEFRGESE, mEAIAN
Rm100T, EEmAEN 493%, BEMFE—X, RFHEA 202145 4
B17 H.

2019 £ 1 A 15 BRITHE - RERGE T 10 FHEEF H K
%, HEAARM 00T, FEFEN 48%, SFHE—R. F17
EHREEXFHTENEEES s FRRAERITI—AERISE
BRI | AR5 %5

ANTTF 2019 EEELERITEATHET S HARTRELES, @
EHAHART 100 T, HEEIT,

ARFRRMARFREHIEREE ., FIE, SEERBEEAERL,

23. Fuit Stk

The fixed rate financial bond issued on 13 April 2018 has a
maturity of three years, with RMBIOO par value and interest is
paid annually at a fixed rate of 493 per cent per annum. The
redemption date is 17 April 2021.

The tier-two capital bond issued on 15 November 2019 is
a 10-year bond with RMB100 par value and interest is paid
annually at a fixed rate of 4.8 per cent per annum. The bond
is redeemable at par at the option of the Bank, in part or
in whole, at the end of the 5™ year subject to the relevant
conditions.

Eight negotiable certificates of deposit issued in 2019. The
par value was RMBI0O, the interest rate was zero.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Bank did not
default on any principal, interest or redemption amounts with
respect to its debt securities issued.

(23) Provisions

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
ERARERMFHER Allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments
bEAERAF and financial guarantee contracts:
EMRE Opening balance 25,364,243 16,623,992
A EEIE TN Increase 11,786,023 8,740,251
FRRE Closing balance 37150,266 25,364,243

FERAERMESHEFAZR 12 N ATHERRARENFEHTHE
RfKIHRBEES, BEEEHNEHNT:

The allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts are measured according to the 12-month expected
credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss. The movement of allowance
for impairment losses are as follows:
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ot & S S 28, Hitzz &l (28) Other comprehensive income

Stage | Stage Il Stage IIl BERERh RS s R, Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the
N2 balance sheet:
K3 121 AT # r . s SN
= g = (= F e EREERABESRME ait p—
(=i EES FEE RiRR Credit-i ired fi al " Total R T T
12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected credit loss oo - ' Pa/eC TINANCIA 45€Ts ot 1-1-2019 Increase/[decrease) 31-12-2019
(Lifetime expected credit loss)
. . Credit impairment losses of other debt investments at
% - AR A S B RER
2019 £ 1 A 1 B Opening balance 24,459,649 904,594 25,364,243 H AR A 1S R E R & fair value through ofher comprehensive income 1140,890 56,615 1197,505
AHAITR /8B Accrued/(Reversed) 8,747,581 (441729) 3480171  11786,023 ~ , ~
spmRELenEED O e b pioms  asons asis
FREE Closing balance 33,207,230 462,865 3,480,171  37150,266 € P
ait Total 20,281,719 22,607131 42,888,850
E—ME EME E=HE R
2018 -1- B S< 12-
Stage | Stagell Stage Il H208creases (decrease) 3112-2018
3k 12 4 BT AL L g’l\i?ﬁ% s H A AR 1S R Credit impairment losses of other debt investments at 621597 519293 1140.890
ERRE W= Bk BREFARES M ait T IE IR R FRIR TR fair value through other comprehensive income ’ ’ e
12-month expected c'r:edit loss  Lifetime ex ect;d c'r:ledit lzjss Credit-impaired financial assets Total Fair value ch f other debt i fair val
p P (Lifetime expected credit loss) H AR A A S I ETR air value changes of other debt instrument at fair value (7477,010) 26,617839 19140.829
through other comprehensive income
2018 &£ 1 1 B} Opening balance 15,836,529 787463 - 16623992
Hit Others 316,140 (316,140) -
AEITHR 7 #0 Accrued/(Reversed) 8,623,120 17131 - 8,740,251
ait Total 6,539,273 26,820,992 20,281,719
ERRE Closing balance 24,459,649 904,594 - 25364243 - ( )
24, HERE (24) Lease liabilities FMiERPEMESR YR ER: Other comprehensive income in the income statement:
. =LA 7]
e BTN
31-12-2019 AT ﬁﬂi’,??\é'llﬁifﬁ W BiEs  BEE:
2019 B PN T
FRREHY Properties and buildings 67,256,297 Less: Transfer to the  Less: Income
Before tax rofit or loss tax After tax
EWMIA Motor vehicles 3,681,409 P
R HMENEE Credit impairment losses of other debt investments
ait Total 70,937,706 EREERX at fair value through other comprehensive income 455,784 399169 26615
HENEE Fair value changes of other debt instrument at fair
- e
25, Hfhfafk (25) Other liabilities NRMETH value through other comprehensive income 32,378,847 2,691,789 7136542 22,550,516
3112-2019 31122018 &it Total 32,834,631 2,691,789 753571 22607131
SEE R FEEHM Settlement and clearing 238,609,616 590,281,591
, . A BETTA
VAR Z5REE IT syst f 3,461,446 42,789,323 s ! s y y
RS IT #4085 52 system service fee ’ 8 BRI L Hipealas B FER  RESH
Wi E A Accured expense 16,819138 20,424,479 2018 ELL PN
Less: Transfer to the  Less: Income
dE g 25!1 H N
FEERHR Renovation payable 3,049,081 5,299,638 Before tax profit or loss tax After tax
Hit Others 43,536,969 39,510,769 HbEMEE Credit impairment losses of other debt investments at 519293 ) : 519293
& Total 335 476,250 698 305.800 ERB{ERX fair value through other comprehensive income ’ ’
TR . ! .
;%f&ﬁ%#ﬂi,v;:@ Fair value changes of other debt {nstrument at fair 45178911 9308162 9252010 26617839
26. LB AR (26) Paid-up capital NRMMET S value through other comprehensive income
Hith Others - 316,40 - (316140)
FEM R SRR A Paid-up capital 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
&it Total 45,698,204 9,624,302 9252910 26,820,992
ZEART % EEART %
RMB equivalent RMB equivalent 29, BE/NR (29) Surplus reserves
KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 5,500,000,000 100 5,500,000,000 100
2019 2018
27, BARAT (27) Capital reserve FERE Opening balance 115,075,958 100,026,507
BANRRANT AR TIRE, SHUBRGZAITRT, (i In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share- AN Increase 12436395 15,049,451
EENBMN SR NS A AR, based compensation programme which is equity settled with a
corresponding charge to the capital reserve. ERRE Closing balance 127,512,353 115,075,958
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RFEABREMARRERMME, 42020 3 A 6 HEFIRIY,
AR AREFEN 0% REGEERRLRE, EEBRAMRRITEH
AT EMEA 50% KL LR, ATARERE,

AARERIEERFARER, TRREZERARE, £#E,

EBBERARETRATIRIABIEESHRSUEMR A, RIBALATE
SRWHRIY, FEETRBERRALRE,

30. — AR RUR HE &

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank's Articles
of Association, accompanied with resolution passed by the Board
of Directors on 6 March 2020, the Bank has appropriated 10 per
cent of its net profit to the statutory surplus reserves. The Bank
should appropriate until the reserve balance reaches 50 per cent
of its registered capital or above.

After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated, the Bank
may appropriate discretionary surplus reserves. Discretionary
surplus reserves can be used to compensate for the accumulated
losses of previous years or convert to capital upon approval. It
has been determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank that
no discretionary surplus reserves are to be appropriated this year.

(30) General reserves

2019 2018
FEHIREN Openning balance 826,398,940 708,458,438
A/ (R ) Increase/(decrease) (9,723,448) 117,940,502
FERER Closing balance 816,675,492 826,398,940

RATKREBITE [2012]20 SX (£ AEFESITHREETIEME) MM
E, MBLEFIERREN _EAMEF R E=HRRE 1.5% BILLGlitR
—RXEES, EATESBELIE, A ATIRIE20204£3 A6 HY
EEORIY, HE—RREEEART 9723448 T, —MENEEES
A BN XU 33 = HA R R E 1.5%

31. RS BELFE

According to the regulation Caijin [2012] No. 20 Financial
institution provision measurement Guideline, the Bank is
required to set aside general reserves of at least 1.5 per cent
of its total risk assets at year end from net profit. The Bank
reversed general reserve amounting to RMB9,723,448 according
to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 6 March
2020 and the amount has been up to 1.5 per cent of its total
risk assets.

(31) Retained earnings

2019 2018

SRR | 4 4 S sk 4V ERF Reltalned earnings brought forward before 361573277 482534898
adjustment

V= Adjustment - (138,466,186)

. . N Retained earnings brought forward after

TEERENAR S EFE 361,573,277 344,068,712
adjustment

HFE Net profit for the year 124,363,947 150,494,518

B REGEEBRRAR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (12,436,395) (15,049,451)

IREL/ (EE ) — R AEE Appropriation /(reverse) to general reserves 9,723,448 (117940,502)

ERRSEFE Closing balance of retained earnings 483,224,277 361,573,277

RSP EARKFEAREIRAARNRAFER, KARFEE()
WEMABRSSEE (2)RMIEIFEESIR (3 )IREERERARE
(4) REL—EREEE; (5) REEEZEKARERE, TUMNES
BREXSBREREF. —RRAREERERESHRMLLGERSEX
EMHETRT, HARRAERSRE, FEAHNREHEALRES
SRE, HEEXEEER, WSKAREMEXNREAMERE.
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According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles
of Association of the Bank, the profit of the Bank can only
be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfilling all tax
responsibilities; (2) compensating any accumulated losses; (3)
making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves; (4) making
appropriation to the general reserves; (5) making appropriation
to discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios
of the general reserves and surplus reserves are decided by
the Bank's Board of Directors in compliance with relevant
regulations. The profit appropriation is decided by the Board
of Directors of the Bank, with reference to the operating
performance, financial positions, and other relevant factors.

32. FIS N

(32) Net interest income

2019 2018
RN : Interest income:

TR R 3R AR ol Due from banks and placement with banks and other financial institutions 384,352,555 521,990,866

FRhRIRIT Deposit with the Central Bank 60,959,267 73,924,642

V) G/ € Loans and advances to customers 1,584,624,820 1,349,367,270

TINIBEES Reverse repurchase financial assets-bonds 86,581,585 80,918,426

HEHEERFE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 255,487,627 211,793,895
N Sub-total 2,372,005,854 2,237,995,099
FEZH: Interest expense:

[E) Ml B E b & B AT Due to banks and other financial institutions 23,411,257 7015144

R TE =k Customer deposits 942,691,931 762,906,554

IwANEERHM Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 448,134,220 443,666,176

EEEEFE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 120,774,249 45,208,110

HERRK Lease liabilities 2925162 .
N Sub-total 1,537,936,819 1,258,795,984
FIE&EBN Net interest income 834,069,035 979199115
3B, FEHBRAEEBN (33) Net fees and commission income

2019 2018
FHEHERELEWN: Fees and commission income:

HESEEFER Settlement and clearing fees 23,519994 24,384,262

RIBA EZFEHE Agency brokerage fees 19137796 9,630,443

ERRIETFESR Credit commitment fees 50,043,342 38,726,866

5 E=F5xIgN Credit related income 89,746,712 57923,979

B FR35 16 28 Consulting fees 19,379,287 22,135,888

REREMZFRILSEE Commissions of trusteeship and others 34,015,104 23927395

Hiftr Others 3,636,273 1972779
INT Sub-total 239,478,508 188,701,612
FEHEREETH: Fees and commission expense:

FEHETH Fee expenses 67,569,057 58,388,023
N Sub-total 67,569,057 58,388,023
FEHRAEERN Net fees and commission income 171,909,451 130,313,589
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34, B WS

(34) Investment income

2019 2018
TS T EC SIS Net realised gain on derivatives 18,485,058 101,724,294
(EEEEIFEIEE S Net realised gain on bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 35,390,592 62,670,376
Hith Others (2,889363) (26,819,631)
&it Total 50,986,287 137,575,039
35. A RARMET S (35) Gains/(loss) from changes in fair values

2019 2018
FTHEFRLFWN - ARMETIHIHE  Changes of fair value of derivatives 148,957308 (295,312,733)
ZHMERAL - BAES Financial liabilities held-for-trading-gold borrowing 60,897160 (50,970922)
EMBERRER - EHES Loans and advances to customers-gold lending (24,975,903) 44,626,109
RHAEEREF Financial assets held-for-trading (16,705,598) 5,994,749
Hith Others 53,653 2,176,954
&it Total 168,226,620  (293,485,843)

39. (S RRER %

(39) Credit impairment losses

36. LR

CRRE SRR RS EICRE M~ ERRE U RINCITE ST
B iR,

(36) Foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Foreign exchange gain/(loss) includes gain/(loss) of foreign
business related to the changes of exchange rate and gain/
(loss) arising from derivative financial instruments.

2019 2018
R RRITRER K Impairment losses for deposit with the Central Bank (1136,108) 96,148
FHEEER K Impairment losses for due from banks and other financial institutions (54,147) (14,620,504)
A E) iR fE #R 5k Impairment losses for placements with banks (2,686,466) (1167198)
e EAEERES Impairment losses for loans 133,649,948 58773910
ERFKERERK Impairment losses for credit commitment 11,786,023 8,740,251
H A A A RIE R Icnowsja;:?;:r;fsliszsii:;;)ther debt instrument at fair value through other 455784 519293
INBRESRIERERK Impairment losses for reverse repurchase financial assets (2,030,336) 2,383,587
HiZ = B{ERK Impairment losses for other assets 1,329129 (1,514,052)
At Total 141,313,827 53,211,435
40. Frf5Hi#H (40) Income tax expenses
2019 2018
LRSS Current income tax 4,418,246 59,534,465
BRIEFTISHE Deferred income tax expenses 7,946,499 (41,036,576)
Ait Total 12,364,745 18,497,889

S8 #EASHEBHHXRITMT:

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax
is as follows:

37. Hftb iz

(37) Other income

2019 2018
558 < I BUF £ B Income-related on government subsidies 1,961,460 2,073,449
38 W R B (38) General and administrative expenses

2019 2018
RI%A Staff costs 700,858,046 649,703,118
Ik Depreciation 46,050,924 14,253,358
i A i3 Amortisation of intangible assets 28,039,884 30,691,010
K HAfEr I 20 PR RS 28 Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses 18,663,380 18,241,600
&3 A Other operating expenses 275,349,554 284,117,640
&it Total 1,068,961,788 997,006,726
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2019 2018

FETFE Profit before tax 136,728,692 168,992,407
BEEBE 5% TERFHIN Tax charge on a tax rate at 25 per cent 34,182,173 42,248101
XiF AR HA (8] Fi IR g R B Adjustment in respect of prior periods 6,351,106 (1,205,952)
EEHHEEN BN Tax-free Interest income of government bonds (34,422,270) (26,647,629)
AAHRE BT 2R Non-deductible items 6,253,736 4,103,369
Fri5FiZ A Income tax expenses 12,364,745 18,497,889
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4. WERERMFTEN (41) Supplementary information for the statement of cash flows
2019 2018
1. BEFEBATAZRERINIAERE: 1 Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:
HFE Net profit 124,363,947 150,494,518
ERBERE Credit impairment loss 141,313,827 53,211,435
EE &R = IH Fixed assets depreciation 12,202,572 14,253,358
ERME A Right-of-use assets depreciation 33,848,352 -
b v A i3] Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 28,039,884 30,691,010
JCHA I 2R PR B Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 18,663,380 18,241,600
%EEE%F | BAARIART Losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets 110,890 460,909
s FlGEBAERENESH :Zzigelsi;s:[i?er;ses of bond, negotiable certificates of deposit and 123,6994T1 45208110
NRMETIHEIREE Gain/(loss) from changes in fair value (168,226,620) 293,485,843
BE R Investment income (431,484,935)  (411955,319)
LRz Foreign exchange losses/(gain) 235,031,807  (687,078,808)
IR SR TOR D / (3 ) Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets/liabilities 7.946,499 (41,036,576)
ZE MR I B a9 D /(15 ) Decrease/(increase) in operating receivables 3,686,623,434 (10,721,593,519)
ZEMMNMAER (D) B (Decrease)/ increase in operating payables (456,098,313)  7436,945144
ZEENTFENUNERESE Net cash flows from operating activities 3,356,034,135 (3,818,672,295)
2. RERMEENWETIER: 2. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
MERFERST Cash on hand at end of year 6,161,298 9,105,977
Bl: MEHEVIRE Less: Cash on hand at the beginning of year 905,977 13,235,129
n: MEENYRHERRER Add: Cash equivalents at the end of year 10,961925974  10,543,710,893
Bl REEMNMNESE Less: Cash equivalents at the beginning of year 10,543,710,893  14,313,497,802
MERIMEEMNYEIEM /(D) 5 Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 415,270,402 (3,773,916,061)
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2. P& RMEENY

(42) Cash and cash equivalents

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
£ Cash 6,161,298 9105977
REEN: Cash equivalents:
FEHRE=NA AR With original maturity less than three months
- TER R Al FR T - Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,609,585,664  1346,403,873
-ifHEE - Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3787085371  3,358,841446
- INBEERE - Reverse repurchase financial assets 3,246,540,000 3,283,790,000
-iFHES - Gold lending - 14,249,317
RERENFRIEE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposit investments 148681450 988378170

(MHZAR=/ANEIH)
TP RIRITH AR

N Sub-total
&t Total

(tenor within three months from purchase date)

Other deposits with the Central Bank

1,570,033,489  1,552,048,087

10,961,925,974 10,543,710,893

10,968,087,272 10,552,816,870

43, IR 1

AT RIRE AR 24T 4 %1 €245 BR M AR 22 0 h 1 %1 A0 AR ZE 1 {E B b
&l X RS RN R RERITHRM F2019F12 A3
H & 177 5D RO BR &M AR Z i Bh it RIBI AR 10 25k 217,565 147, RIRAE
HARRSEE N 1 & 2 5 F 2019 12 A 31 BAM{TAAI AR ZHE{EA 0 1

(43) Share-based compensation plans

Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise the
Restricted Share Plan and the Share Appreciation Rights Plan.
All shares involved are the shares of UOB. As at 31 December
2019, the number of outstanding grants of Restricted Shares
was 217,565, the remaining contractual period of 1-2 years. As
at 31 December 2019, the number of outstanding grants of
Share Appreciation Rights was zero.
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t. SEbRE

ARFRBABARLEN, EEERRNBRETEBHE THER
1TRB. FERITHR. RSB REMLYSZRARSETE £ 4 MR
HEIE. BMRESEALMMN S SE, REARM RIS,
AAREERERSEPRFARRDSMEMSERURE REGRE T
B s,

AARRESRBHEZLFINT

A& IRITED
A&EEEMRHUEIFRR. BHRME. FRRS., FEEE, SMC
EEREEFEMARS

FERITH
AN AERRBEFENAER. ERRS. RITFRS. PAEY
MRS FICRER S

IREK & RRER
BRTFRITETHHTERS W SHXHENIFERS. BMEZ 5.
RETIEERR, URMNLCREEETR. FRTEFRHZS,

HAthlle 55 K Ak 53 Bl B 5388
EAGERAE LRENSMHAREGESEMIOAT, k. A
KXo

ATENEN DBV EREOEEERERE, A EABEESTEHF
RPABETFESEBBES. AR, BN, ZHRLERR, XLEEEN
BREIEMMT:

SBRAFEZCARABRTESBNIMEMAT, ARES. LIF
REMEMKBES, 2HBAGERARETES BRI NER 56,
BREETER. FARE. ETREAHRE,

SWMEERREZEET ST ERBN (EFXIIZZBNR S
BEZHEN ), ABRETFBRENEEER (BRFABTES
BRI R ERITIRAMES ) . MBEZHFENHSMEMEZEER
UEEZFBERK, 2 ERNNEBENRREEMINIILZS
ML R E
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7. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating segments,

namely Wholesale Banking, Retail Banking, Global Markets,
and others and unallocated based on internal organisational
structure, management requirement and internal reporting
system. Every reporting segment, which is individual
business segment, provides different products and services.
Management periodically reviews the financial information
of the segments to determine resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:

Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and
services such as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-
taking activities, fund management, foreign exchange
services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services
such as retail loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards,
wealth management and remittance services, etc.

Global Markets (GM)

The GM segment is responsible for conducting inter-bank
placements, repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
and bond investments in the inter-bank market and dealing
foreign exchanges, precious metals and interest rate related
derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses that are not directly attributable or cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any of the above
segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and
allocate resources, management will periodically review the
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and financial performance
of the segments, and such information is prepared on the
following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets which are
attributable to the segments, while segment liabilities mainly
include deposits, borrowings and other payables which are
attributable to the segments.

Segment financial performance refer to income generated
by each segment (including external and inter-segment
income), deducted by direct cost (including depreciation
and amortisation pertaining to the assets allocated to the
segments), indirect cost allocated based on occupation of
resources and asset impairment losses. Transactions between
segments are priced at similar terms as external transactions.

1. aEpl s, HiERR

——
ST

(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2019
HERTLS TERTLE PREBUSE LN &t
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total

Banking Banking unallocated
—. Bl 1. Operating income 917514497 144724904 168,451,843 129,872,983 1360,564,227
IS ON Net interest income 650,439,299 87817800  (12,380,269) 108192,205 834,069,035
Hr: IMFIESUEN  Of which: External interest income 660,956,301 217937402 382,203,449 (427,028117) 834,069,035
5 EBIEIF S B YEN Internal interest income (10,517,002) (130119,602)  (394,583,718) 535,220,322 -
FHEHERAEEWN  Net fee and commission income 173,185,716 45477227 (59,462,084) 12708592 171909451
HethUgN Other net income 93,889,482 429877 240294196 8972186 354,585,741
—.BlEH 2. Operating expenses (477490,856)  (266,346,668)  (108,598,488) (371913,969) (1,224,349981)
B, (ZARELES Of which: Credit impairment losses (27,360,896) 1,597,871 (1,209,072) (M4,341730)  (141,313,827)
=. #E MG 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) (10,319) (4,877) 320,033 209,609 514,446
M. FEETRNE 4. Profit before tax 440,013322  (121,626,641) 60,173,388 (241,831377) 136,728,692
&, IASMHESEA 5. Depreciation and amortisation 14,996,641 29167,231 1,720,608 46,869,708 92,75488
N BEAXH 6. Capital expenditure 1,254,612 9,313,052 2,667,527 26,032,743 39,267,934
31-12-2019
. HFEEM 7. Total assets 31562710242 6,822,552,630  33]189,731,010 281,294,535 71,856,288 417
I\, AEERE 8.Total liabilities 36,322,324,029 3457602726 13791163024  11,300,334,836 64,871424,615
2018
HERTLS BERTLE AREMUS L oo &t
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total

Banking Banking unallocated
—. BN 1. Operating income 895,873,258 112,725,778 135,317,211 85,553,857  1,229,470,104
FIISEET PN Net interest income 677,092,121 78,342,560 98,328,205 125,436,229 979199115
Her: ISFIESBUAN  Of which: External interest income 666202178 221208500 422,163,098 (330,374,661) 979199115
5 EBIE]F 2 E N Internal interest income 10,889943  (142,865940)  (323,834,893) 455,810,890 -
FEHRBALSEIIN Net fee and commission income 136,763,516 27,046,367 (43,197,071) 9,700,777 130,313,589
HethagN Other net income 82,017,621 7,336,851 80,186,077 (49583149) 119957400
—.BlEH 2. Operating expenses (485125385)  (249997,873)  (97.925,082) (229,638,126) (1,062,686,466)
Bor: (SAREES OF which: Credit impairment losses (89,678,006) (4,529202)  (4,886,074) 45881847  (53,211,435)
=. &FEWSMEZ 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) (7,651) 471 369993 1,841,716 2,208,769
/., FERTHE 4. Profit before tax 410740222 (137,267,384) 3776222 (142,242,553) 168,992,407
E. HBEMHEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 6,225,330 12,482,915 1,944,870 42,532,853 6385968
N, BEAZH 6. Capital expenditure 572,896 17,206,328 620,045 36,574,622 54,973,891
31-12-2018
+. BEREM 7. Total assets 36787526349  6,838,292,783 30,223,576,493 357,284,909 74,206,680,534
I\, EEE 8.Total liabilities 34183871564 3418428223 14252923056 15516936100 67372158943
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() HIBEE

IANEWBMN R ERBERREMAEMOEEENMIERSHK,
AR FRAE MR S RHEXINBHITMELEN 7 (ZH) BE
BT

(2) Other information

(1) External operation income by geography

External operation income is distributed to respective
countries and regions by their geography locations. The
external operation income/(expense) which divided by
different geography locations is shown as follows:

SFAME AN / (ZH ) External operation income/(expense) 2019 2018
BH Domestic 2,323,841125 1399328181
BE5h Overseas (963,276,898) (169,858,077)
&it Total 1,360,564,227 1,229,470,104

FHREAGRRE, AARREHREEMIFERIE,
Q) XEEFRER
EUMREFITENERP, ARARETERTREUERER

HFBEBMANAANRTARM1.681ZIT (2018 FEE: ARM1.061Z7T ),
AT R BUWNEI 1% (2018 £ E: 8% ) o

I\, KERBBERE
1. W& A&

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside
Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customer’s information

Among loans and advances to customers measured at
amortised cost, interest income of the Bank amounting to
RMB 168 million comes from top ten largest corporate loan
customers (2018: RMB106 million), which contributed 11 per
cent of the total interest income for the year (2018: eight per
cent).

8. Commitments and contingent liabilities

(1) Commitments

A ST kg Capital commitments

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
BHEEREYN Approved but not contracted 33,788 4,185,791
BZ& A8 kLT Contracted but not provided for 47112,848 796,573
&it Total 4,146,636 4,982,364

ZLEMHEERKE - AEA

KARMEAFRBASHBERET TEEMEEHATHEEE
HEAR., TEHAFHAERA, F2RAMARUTHEHMHKKE
HEH:

Operating lease commitments-Lessee

The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease
arrangements. The total future minimum payments in respect
of non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

31-12-2018
—ENN (&—%F) Within 1year 84384486
—EPEZEYRN (EZF) 1to 2 years (contains 2 years) 23,101,259
ZHEYUE=FEURA (E=F) 2 to 3 years (contains 3 years) 12,806,128
=FE After 3 years 10,046,547
&it Total 130,338,420
146
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AATMEARBARAT -yl BHiEE, ERESENT,
DEHIZEUEE, AT T 209 F1 B 1 BRAFHFASENF,
REFHESENNERESAZFHASARTNAERASEE
ffE (ERMHEM, 26 FAMEN. 24) o

2. e AiE

As a lessee, the Bank leased some properties and motor
vehicles, which were classified as operating leases under
the original lease standard. The Bank adopted the new lease
standard on 1 January 2019, and measured the lease liabilities
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. (Note 4.26 and Note
6.24).

(2) Credit commitments

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
W EHEREE: Financial guarantee contracts:

RITERRICE Banker's acceptance 955,060,198 830,845,770

R B 3RI0 Letter of guarantee 1,055,760,782 669,177,618

gRERIE Standby letter of credit 5,673,456,735 5,697,341,746

FrH B RS AIE Letter of credit, at sight 470,790,885 248,314,222

FrHIZHA(E AIE Letter of credit, usance 913,714,888 442,882,609
it Sub-total 9,068,783,488 7,888,561965
AT Y SRR - Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:

FEEBAE 1 F U E More than one year 2,465109,612 2,967904,638
N7y Sub-total 2,465109,612 2,967904,638
&it Total 11,533,893,100 10,856,466,603
ERAERES XN L5 Weighted credit risk of credit commitments 4,239,864,309 3,530,586,357

MEEREREFERLER, — EERREESZHEAZITHERE
EESHEITAEXSH, RITRBITEASRE,

RRAERIEA R RMEHMTERF AT FREAE LT ETRARIE,
RRAE—RMA AR LI RN, THREPINETRET, ¥&
BAEMEHRRIE BETA R —ERRRRHMTHAAL R,

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee,
require the Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers’
responsibility as guarantor in case that the customers fail to
repay the contracted amount or fail to fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that
the Bank may not need to fulfil such commitment on the
maturity date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments
does not necessarily represent the future expected cash
outflow.
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(3) Entrusted Business

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
EREE Entrusted deposits 2,212,509,270 2,488,874,783
FHEER Entrusted loans 2,212,509,270 2,488,874,783
31-12-2019 31-12-2018
ZREVES Entrusted fund 1760,126,753 1,444,434,674
FREME~ Entrusted asset 1760,126,753 1,444,434,674

ZRAEREGHEFTERRANED, XATREREEENE=
FAERMBERZ M. FHREXNERNEHTEREAKE,

ZREVISZRIEANRZEREEAREAAENRATRIFAK, U
BERXMHASHTREMATEE, RERHRBALTRAKE,
MRYRLRE SN SERR IR B 38 0 & 2 i s e 55

4. FHERE

BEEEER, 7209 £, KATRBRMEN, BERFERMS
HERBEBENSRE AR, HEEMEERK,

. BREE

AR FRARBREBIEAAREE I KK EH KK H 5T A EE
%, FEMTREFNEERSEELRNER, FATELFEENE
BRRTHEEELSBNERZIN, ELRRFEBREZENTLT
REMERFNHER AL, WFEFRERELMEIGH R EHE,
b S/NSIRE T ke S

AARRR (AASRITAAEEME (K17 ) ) BINE, HITHEAFR
REGERBLEAREZERREENS RAKSERBIIRT
B —RRATRERBET 5%, —RRERBERFRET 6%, &
ARBERERT 8% EFEAIEE 2.5%,
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Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
product according to the agreed investing plan with the
clients. The investment principal is paid by the customers,
which would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would
receive the investment profit on behalf of the customers
and pay the profit to the customers based on the agreed
conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, according to the management, there
was no other contingent liabilities except for items that have
been disclosed in Note 6.23.

9. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method
to mitigate the inherent risk in the business operation and
complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities
on capital management. The Bank also targets to maintain
sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations and
optimising shareholders’ value. The Bank may adjust its
capital structure actively to adapt with the change of
economic environment and related risk characteristics.

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy ratio
according to Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional). CBIRC requires that a commercial bank’s
core tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital
adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio should not be
lower than five per cent, six per cent, and eight per cent
respectively, and reserve capital ratio should reach 2.5 per
cent.

ARRMSMAZHEAMBHITER, B —REXEEIYE
A, BARRXBAGTANES. HtGSWEATASS. BFAR,
— MBS A TR EFE; AARTEHM—RELR; —RHFE
EARE_ZARTAREGEN A SHMBEARTREES,

ARARR (BEURITHEAEEDZE (R1T) ) HANE, HEHH
ARBEERMAT:

The Finance Department is responsible for managing
the capital of the Bank. Core tier-one capital includes
paid-up capital, qualified capital reserve, qualified other
comprehensive income, surplus reserves, general reserves
and retained earnings. The Bank has no other tier-one capital.
Tier-two capital mainly includes surplus provision for loan
impairment, qualified Tier-two capital instruments and their
premium.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank in
accordance with Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional) are as follows:

31-12-2019 31-12-2018

ZI— R Core tier-one capital 6,984,863,802 6,834,521,591
SLi AR Paid-up capital 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
FERLRATAES Qualified capital reserve 14,562,830 11191,697
Bz Szt A\E5 Qualified other comprehensive income 42,888,850 20,281,719
BRIR Surplus reserves 127,512,353 115,075,958

— AR B General reserves 816,675,492 826,398,940
K5 EEFNE Retained earnings 483,224,277 361,573,277
Zih— R A MBI Core tier-one capital deductions 102,639,668 103,322,284
Hh L HF~ Other intangible assets 102,639,668 103,322,284
ZID— R AR ER Net core tier-one capital 6,882,224 134 6,731199,307
— R AEER Net tier-one capital 6,882,224134 6,731199,307
ZHERR Tier-two capital 1,538,173,594 473,567,800
;ﬁfigﬁgﬁ R th Qualified tier-two capital instruments and their premium 997,076,364 -
BEIE R EES Surplus provision for loan impairment 541,097,230 473,567,800
BRAREE Net capital 8,420,397,728 7,204,767]07
UG NS 7= Risk-weighted assets 51,044,400,217 51,416,343,306
Hh. {sHXBRMIGEFE Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets 43,828,875,640 42,832,067993
A% XU FE It 5 7 Market risk-weighted assets 4,881,780,577 6,502,870,500
FRIEX L AP F 7= Operational risk- weighted assets 2,333,744,000 2,081,404,813
ZILh— R BT RR Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 13.5% 131%
—HRATRER Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 13.5% 131%
BARFERE Capital adequacy ratio 16.5% 14.0%

KARRRATERREXEIEZ URPE (DAl STHAEN ) &HHE
HEEMSRRABMBITIHEN ZEE, KXARETTHEBITR
EHHEEER,

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of
the Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial
statements prepared under the Chinese Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises. During the period, the Bank has
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
regulator.
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o, AATRBHRERFRESHGH (ELRITIIAFRERDE)
(SRESSL20NEFEIS) HEHEBEIHERFEE, Bk 2019 F12
A 318, AATMIIFEH 77%, HERIK 4% BERER, BEES
BT

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage
ratio according to Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio of
Commercial Banks (CBIRC Ordinance [2011] No. 3). As at 31
December 2019, the Bank’s leverage ratio was 7.7 per cent
which was higher than the minimum regulatory requirement
of four per cent. The relevant information is as follows:

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
Zbh—RE A Core tier-one capital 6,984,863,802 6,834,521,591
W B —RBRBRIE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions (102,639,668) (103322,284)
I — R A EER Net core tier-one capital 6,882,224134 6,731199,307
BEERANEZTLRA Adjusted on balance sheet items 64,373,330,860 64,723,654,456
BB S RINTBE REN Adjusted off balance sheet items 11,896,614,965 10,941,078,210
TEFREAFTRE Balance of derivatives 9,558,746,200 12,035,558,882
EEMBRXS BRI Balance of assets in securities financing transactions 3,327,016,400 3,283,790,000
ait Total 89155,708,425 90,984,081,548
ATFFZR Leverage ratio 77% 74%

+. ERXEEE

TR T RN

ARREREENTEHEEMESHIENRE, TEGFEERARNE.
FEERE R TR (SFCERRE., FIRRE ), AARNEE
EMTAGREMAS ERPRBITHRI. FREFRBLIFHE S
ITESMAT INBEERBE KM ERIRR E AU HEE,
Sixte &R T RAXAIRE, RN T A RERX LR REXE R
M IR R RE AN T AT id

AARNEMTESENEIERNBRE AR, RINERE R TER
Mo ARNRIXILH RS E R REA N T,

1. 15 FXUBE

11 fE AR EE

FERRERES ARG FEANRE, EZHERITHERARIEZ
S FARIRF AR BITEX SRIBETREN, FAFNE
AR EERE TEHERMER, RIMENERRKREZRET
FHERIE. STHERARTIAGERRE,

FERRKNEPREE: S—EHNENTPERITHRNEE RS,
A THRAMEME P ETUREFRMNEFFEEERITEY
HEEH S ZER—EF U, FRARBRHMEPREERBRTRIT
WS R —FrE T SR A BENSREE,
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10. Financial Risk Management

Risk of Financial Instruments

The Bank is exposed to different types of risks. The most
significant types of risk related to financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk(including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk). The Bank’s financial
instruments mainly include cash, deposit with the Central
Bank, due from banks and other financial institutions,
placements with banks and other financial institutions,
derivative financial assets, reverse repurchase financial assets,
Loans and advances to customers, other debt instrument
at fair value through other comprehensive income, and etc.
These risks and the Banks strategy to minimize the negative
impacts of the underlying financial risks are described below.

The most significant types of risks to the Bank are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. The Bank's risk management
strategy is outlined below.

(1) Credit risk
(11) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations as and when
they fall due. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly arises from
loans and advances to customers. Credit risk of off balance
sheet items mainly arises from the letters of credit/guarantees
issued as well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby
there is a concentration of customers in the same business
activities, geographical location, or industry sector with
similar economic characteristics such that their repayment
ability would be affected by the same economic fluctuations.
Credit risk concentration reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s
performance to such customer concentration.

AAREREREETRE G E, RAHER G E R RERF IR
HEBCEREMPSE TERARK, AARERNEANEERRET
KE, ¥ERREHITISHTHRINECHERIRKESES,

T S5 R B STk AR T E R TESK B 5GP AR SR KU B UL
Hitt, ZEZZHBE. FEEEUARRHFEREREEESHX
ol S8R,

RIFBEANEEETLEREEMURRECRERFRRME, ARAN
AEBHEFZ L2 > ARNBENFEHNTSERRK T EEER
& THIFERMAITENXBESHER/EAME, FHRKENEH
R A, &AAREBRALGEITERE (WXSHHFITL, HRARE
HREAR R ERAXE ) WEES TR AIEEER, DS L%,
BAMRKE R BRI A,

EXREXIT:

- FAMEREGZSAERR L NCANERENFRESH, TEE
ITEEM XSRS, AARMEIRRLEREARER 2 EAE
RHHEITIHE, MABEMERESR, MRMHTMTERNEFHETHREAE
“E;

o FAMKREZERATIFAREREL ERKEEMEHNTE,
RIFZ ST FHEE, BENARIMLES, URBREBARRER, &
AWM RN EMAE, FAMEKEDTAL ERNEHORENE S
tE;

- FARE AR, ERE 2 PASEBIMRKREFEEH P, £FD
RER, RAFNFEMHEH,

= AR B 28 a4 K BUE R ARt ES T RATEEE S,
KARIEIHATHRBARA, RAHZMEITL, ZlSEEER
R K A FHR R B K BT8R

XEZFER A E ARG AMREHZME, MARTL, A%
RBFRAE, FARNERERETEAT ERBERERHGHARS
W, RTNEREURSER, SEERRITHBNGIE, Fi
RACEEEEREW, BOEERRERTEAMEMEARKLEN
EEEH,

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures which effectively mitigate and control credit
risk. The procedures cover credit evaluation, credit approval,
credit monitoring as well as reporting. The Bank reviews the
borrowers’ business operations periodically, analyses the
quality of credit portfolio and ensures adequacy of loan loss
provisions.

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments
is similar with that from loans and advances to customers.
Hence, the Bank adopts the same policies and procedures
for managing credit contingencies which cover application,
follow-up monitoring and collateral requirements, etc.

Depending on whether the credit risk has significantly
increased and whether the asset is credit-impaired, the Bank
measures the impairment provision for different assets with
expected credit loss of 12 months or lifetime, respectively.
The key parameters of expected credit loss measurement
include probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and
exposure at default (EAD). The Bank takes into account the
quantitative analysis of historical statistics (such as ratings of
counterparties, manners of guarantees and types of collaterals,
repayments, etc.) and forward-looking information in order to
establish the models for estimating PD, LGD and EAD.

Relative definitions are listed as below:

* The probability of default refers to the possibility that
the debtor will not be able to fulfil its obligation of
repayment in the next 12 months or the whole remaining
lifetime. The Bank’s PD is adjusted based on the credit
cycle index Z and forward-looking information to reflect
the default probability of the debtor under the current
macroeconomic environment;

o The loss given default refers to the Bank’s expectation of
the extent of the loss resulting from the default exposure.
Depending on the type of counterparty, the method and
priority of the recourse, and the type of collaterals, the
LGD varies. The loss given default is the percentage of risk
exposure loss when default occurs;

* The exposure at default is the amount that the Bank
should be reimbursed in the next 12 months or throughout
the remaining lifetime when the default occurs.

The assessment of significant increases in credit risk and the
calculation of expected credit losses both involve forward-
looking information. Through the analysis of historical data,
the Bank identifies the key macroeconomic indicators that
affect the credit risk and expected credit loss of various
industries and business types.

The impact of these economic indicators on probability of
default and loss given default varies according to different
types of industries and business types. The Bank applies
experts’ judgement in this analysis, according to the result
of experts’ judgement, the Bank predicts these economic
indicators on a quarterly basis and determines the impact of
these economic indicators on the probability of default and
the loss given default by conducting regression analysis.
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TFHREAGERE, FEREMERYEEMERIBRIEENRXER
R AEENT:

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk
exposure of the Bank without taking into consideration of
collateral and other risk mitigation are set out below:

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
TR AP RIBITERIN Deposits with the Central Bank 6,471381,952 6,295,131,421
=tE Precious metals 1162,708,344 470,469,280
TERE) Ml FRIm Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,852,438.902 1,834,782,799
FH&EE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 7,499,846,222 13,970,656,375
SRR Financial assets held-for-trading 1,425,658,377 1,472,009,402
TEERAF Derivative financial assets 4133777889 6,332,656,875
INBRESRMAT Reverse repurchase financial assets 3,253,748 361 3,289,256,524
KRR Loans and advances to customers 35,144,414,612 32,922,090,260
HA AR S gr:i)rr;febr:siir\w/sgri:znoer:?t fair value through other 10145887936 6970,584.932
Hib &&= Other financial assets 323,164,553 251,382,732
&it Total 71,413,027148 73,809,020,600
EREIEEARNBRO ( BE/N, 2)  Credit commitments (Note 8.2) 11,533,893,100 10,856,466,603
A ARERO Maximum credit risk exposure 82,946,920,248 84,665,487,203
12 RS E (1.2) Risk concentration

WZSMFEPTE-TUSHE, IAREEFLEFHE, HiE
ARKEEESHEMRS. i, FRITEFSRKNEFLREEGEM
R, B ARREETIL R0 XS A RXBE TR AEE

AAREEZAENEFRBEFTREMFERER, KARRBEHMN
BRBTAEFEFE, BESEMER. 72

13 B4R

AAFRER BN FHE ARG TSR EFELIERMEMR LR,
EARFEZERYEIL T HXNIEE, SFEERDITEMEET
AAFERIE R,

RIPMEZEFUT /LA

— X FELSER, ERUTEARERER. RITHER., SUEHF
— WFAAER, HRYAERMEE,

B RER W SAKER T R R BTN EF R BRI ILER
BMEEY, FERTRAEENEREFENTS ZRERMET

&L,
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The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar
economic characteristics would tend to pose higher credit
risk to the Bank. On the other hand, the level of credit risk
may be varied from each industry or geographical location in
view of their unique economic development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/
guarantees to domestic customers. Analysis on industry
sector concentration for the Bank’s loans and advances can
be found at Note 6.7.2.

(13) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would
depend on the credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties
as assessed by the Bank. The Bank has established a guideline
on taking collateral including the frequency of collateral
valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

- For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken
include cash deposits, bank guarantee and properties; and

- For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential
properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor
the market value of the collaterals and follow up with the
borrowers/counterparties to top up collaterals in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the loan agreement. The
change in market value of the collateral would also be taken
into consideration when reviewing the adequacy of loan loss
provisions.

15 ERRE

AAREREMAT ( RNKEELES ) HERRESTNT:

(1.5) Credit quality

provisions) is analysed as follows:

The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank (excluding

EREHtEREE CEBEREE 2RE Ait
3112-2019 Neither overdue nor  Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
& RIFERHB BT Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 6,478,213,227 6,478,213,227
=EE Precious metals 162,708,344 - - 1162,708344
. Due from Banks and other financial
=R
TR ] Al TR nstitutions 1,858,694,126 1,858,694,126
N Placements with banks and other financial
FHEE stitutions 7,510,856,798 7,510,856,798
LA Financial assets held-for-trading 1,425,658,377 1,425,658,377
fTHEERE~ Derivative financial assets 433,777,889 - - 4)133777,889
FINRESREFT Reverse repurchase financial assets 3,254,101,612 3,254,101,612
B FnE e Loans and advances to customers 35,700,541,353 600,783 224,011,308 35925153444
N Other debt instrument at fair value through
B A Ay e _ _
HAEANR R other comprehensive income 10145,887,936 10,145,887,936
Hip&ehsre Other financial assets 323,164,553 - - 323,164,553
&it Total 71,993,604,215 600,783 224,011,308 72,218,216,306
ARGt REE CEBEREE 2RE &it
3112-2018 Neither overdue nor ~ Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
& N1FEM B RIRITEIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 6,306,043,483 - - 6,306,043,483
=ERE Precious metals 470,469,280 470,469,280
. Due from Banks and other financial
=1 \[[; 2 - -
TFRE LRI institutions 1,841,092,170 1,841,092,170
N Placements with banks and other financial
FHRE institutions 13,984,353,417 - - 13984,353,417
RHEERER Financial assets held-for-trading 1,472,009,402 - - 1,472,009402
T ERAF Derivative financial assets 6,332,656,875 - - 6,332,656,875
FINRESRE~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 3,291,640,111 - - 3,291,640,
V. B/ € Loans and advances to customers 33,380,672,581 8,228,759 247627580 33,636,528920
N Other debt instrument at fair value through
H (=475 % - -
HAREANR R other comprehensive income 6.970,584,932 6,970,584,932
Hih &R~ Other financial assets 250,062,732 - 1,320,000 251,382,732
&it Total 74,299,584,983 8228759 248947580  74,556,761322
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BRAREHA B RBENR SRR
THREFEERAXIRT AT L ERBREREHERRERNER:

Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor impaired
The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor
impaired by collateral arrangement as at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

31-12-2019 31-12-2018

E AT Unsecured loans 4.911,545,834 6,412,734,720
R oans secured by guarantees ,554,023, ,226,38],

{RIESE R L dby g 6,554,023916 6,226,381,664

IMGER Loans secured by mortgage 19,709,763,142 15,964,443,994

RGN Loans secured by pledges 4,525,208,461 4,777112,203

&it Total 35,700,541,353 33,380,672,581

EEHRERBENLZBERREER
FTHREAGERA, SERERRENRHRTRRBRKE SN T:

Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired
Aging analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as
at the balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2019

TNAMA 14AEI2AA 24A23140A

BT &Y

Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than Total Fair value of
3 months collaterals
. Loans and advances
A TT B 2R R -
R B B to customers 403,445 197,338 600,783 121,947,000
31-12-2018
N FEH#
14 ABK 14AE 24 24 A3 A8 sABBE &t Gkt
NSRRI
Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than Total Fair value of
3 months collaterals
ey Loans and advances 8,228,759 - - 8228759 167365200

to customers

ERENEZ BT R ER
REENIEERPEBMERRERENRBAETE -SSR
EERRE, BB ERBTARAERER B XD
&M, NZEBERARERFIAARTHERR, XEHERS
WIFEA “RE” . AR B WK %Ko

FHRFGERE, FARNFAENSRERRNKEMNERESEE
BRHERVEALNEIRET:

Impaired loans and advances

Where there are objective evidences that a single or multiple
negative events have occurred after the initial recognition of
the loans and the impact from the events on the expected
future cash flows can be estimated reliably, the relevant
loans should be recognised as impaired loans. These loans
are classified as “Substandard’, “Doubtful” or “Loss"

As at the balance sheet date, the carry amount of impaired
loans and the fair value of collateral of impaired loans held
by the Bank are as follows:

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
BEEK Impaired loans
— R - Substandard 224,011,308 186,046,618
— A5E - Doubtful - 61,580,962
— %k - Loss - -
&it Total 224,011,308 247,627,580
BERHHIEERY The collateral value of impaired loans 357,376,740 319,800,000
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LR 2 R M EA R R FRE B ATRAY L BEEE TR
DL BT AR RSB ITE A M E BT IR BB LHE,

SEANEHETREER
EARANTRATHEBERGARERENXR, BT HAESL
BK, DEEFREHFEEGRFN.

THRFRERE, RARRFAREZERENS,

2. XU
AARARBERCHRIEURERITHESENTR, #BRERH
MR EZN, |EFHME ARSI FRHENER. Bk, &zh
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The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined
from the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment
made after considering the Bank’s own experience in
collateral disposal as well as the current market conditions.

Restructured loans and advances

The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies
to renegotiate the contractual terms with customers in order
to maximise the recovery of impaired loans as well as to
manage customer relationships.

No transactions were conducted by the Bank as at the
balance sheet date.

(2) Liquidity risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund day-to-
day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner
to address both anticipated and unanticipated cash funding
needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a complete
framework of risk management, including-policies, controls
and limits approved by the Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO). These policies, controls and limits are established
to ensure that the Bank has sufficient funding to manage
liquidity risk over a range of market conditions. These include
minimising excessive funding concentrations by diversifying
the sources and terms of funding as well as maintaining
a portfolio of debt securities with high quality and good
liquidity.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in liquidity management
by continuing to gather core deposits, strictly complying
with liquidity limits and retaining adequate liquid assets to
prevent any possible cash shortfall.

The Bank actively dispersed the sources of deposits to
maintain a balance of cost efficiency, continued availability
of funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing, proactive
management of the Bank core deposits and the maintenance
of customer confidence.

Liquidity risk is measured and managed on projected cash
flow basis. Cash flow projection is monitored under both
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the Bank liquidity exposure.
The Bank has also employed liquidity early warning
indicators and trigger points to signal possible contingency
situations. Contingency funding plans have been set up
to identify potential liquidity crises by using a series of
warning indicators. Crisis management processes and various
strategies including funding and communication have been
developed to minimise the negative impact of any liquidity
crunch.
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(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from foreign
exchange rate and interest rate related products arising from
trading as well as non-trading businesses. The objective of
market risk management is to avoid the excessive loss due to
market risk and minimise the negative impact of volatility of
financial instruments on the Bank’s earnings and equity.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank’s market
risk exposure and formulates market risk policies for
approval by the Asset Liability Committee and the Executive
Committee. Risk profile reports are submitted to the Asset
Liability Committee and Board Risk Management Committee
on a regular basis.

The Bank measures and manages its market risk in accordance
with a framework of policies and practices which include
sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk measure, stress testing
etc. In addition, the market risk associated with any new
product/business is required to be identified and addressed
prior to launch.

The Bank divides the balance sheet assets and liabilities
into the trading book or banking book according to the
characteristics of different accounts. Trading book mainly
includes free trading financial instruments and commodity
positions held for the purpose of trading or for avoiding the
risk of other items in the transaction account. The market
risk in trading book depends on the tools of the transactions,
including interest rates, exchange rates, credit spreads,
commodity prices and foreign exchange volatility, etc.
Banking book includes other financial instruments outside
the trading book. The main risk in the banking book is the risk
of interest rates and credit spreads.

(3.1) Currency risk

The Bank’s currency risk arises mainly from currency
mismatches of assets and liabilities as well as foreign
exchange trading business whereby the open positions are
subject to exchange rate fluctuations.

F209F 12 A3 H, ARFAMNEXREFARAFRZRTMHIROT:

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency are as follows:

31-12-2019
E AR Hit &it
usbD RMB Others Total
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)
HiE Assets:
MERFHFRBITEHRI Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 1260954,034  5212,572,417 4,016,799 6,477,543,250
=R Precious metals - 162,708,344 - 1162,708,344
FRUE Al ER IR Due from banks and other financial institutions 845,841112 849,748,279 156,849,511 1,852,438,902
FHAE m‘:;fﬂfggz with banks and other financial 6371849316 1102,036934 25950972 7499,846,222
LA Financial Assets held-for-trading - 1,425,658,377 - 1,425,658,377
TEEREF Derivative financial assets 246,252,270 3,887,525,619 - 433,777,889
INBREEHA Reverse repurchase financial assets - 3,253,748,361 - 3,253,748,361
iR Loans and advances to customers 4768,459,646 29403144366 972,810,600 35144,414,612
HA AR ggi::ﬁ:;si::r;?:nqzat fair value through other - 10145887936 ) 10145,887936
Htt&mEr= Other financial assets 63,043364 258,083,480 2,037,709 323)164,553
EREAFEIT Total financial assets 13,556,399,742 56,701,114,113 1,161,674,591 71,419,188,446
fafs: Liabilities:
g%z%ﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ Due to banks and other financial institutions 14,027,319 478,042,559 - 492,069,878
N :Z‘;fﬁ;: from banks and other financial 10858156430 2,354,453,493 246342512 13458952435
ZHEER AR Financial liabilities held-for-trading 1,545,047 3,181,631,577 - 3,183176,624
TEEMAE Derivative financial liabilities 255,635,979 3,881,579,611 - 4,137,215,590
ST g ey Customer deposits 5958,865125  33,183,078,325 364,144,878 39,506,088,328
MRS Debt securities issued - 2,745552,507 - 2,745,552,507
Sz H A & B R Pk Repurchase agreements - 720,292,241 - 720,292,241
Hib ek Other financial liabilities 77,250,939 224,726,614 33,498,697 335,476,250
ERBAESIT Total financial liabilities 17165,480,839  46,769,356,927 643,986,087 64,578,823,853
BrEfESESST Net position (3,609,081,097) 9,931,757)86 517,688,504 6,840,364,593
ITESRMTERNEH m‘s’ttrijﬂnir:o“”“ of derivative financial 205397564415 405,088300,624 4077731796  614,563596,835
SRKIE Commitments 3,008,815,476 5,160,895,789 3,364,181,835 11,533,893,100
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F2018F12 A31H, ARAMNEXERAFKEDHIIROT:

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2018
ET ARM Hfth it
usD RMB Others Total

(RMB equivalent)

(RMB equivalent)

(RMB equivalent)

&= Assets:

WERFMHRIFITEIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 908,618,609  5,394193,399 1,425,390 6,304,237398
=8B Precious metals - 470,469,280 - 470,469,280
Fy s ENER Due from banks and other financial institutions 692,998,538 1,000,674,252 141,110,009 1,834,782,799
FHES mj;fﬂleggz with banks and other financial 10757664926 2974071498 238919951 13970,656,375
o EEEEE Financial Assets held-for-trading 138,237,636 1,333,771,766 - 1,472,009,402
TSRS~ Derivative financial assets 45,790,112  6,286,866,763 - 6,332,656,875
INBEESRAF Reverse repurchase financial assets - 3,289,256,524 - 3,289,256,524
ERURER AN Loans and advances to customers 5342135210 26,748,541753 831,413,297  32,922,090,260
HA AR i)(;f:;rrs::r‘isi:/setria?:n:';at fair value through other - 6970584932 ) 6970584932
Hitt&mE= Other financial assets 13973811 236,300,130 1108791 251,382,732
EAFEIT Total financial assets 17,899,418,842 54,704,730,297 1,213,977438 73,818,126,577
fafk: Liabilities:

gﬁz%ﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ Due to banks and other financial institutions 417234 571,314,146 - 571,731,380
YN :‘;‘tﬁiﬁggz from banks and other financial 15093932262 750,378,333 919983679 16764,294,274
ZoMER SR Financial liabilities held-for-trading 1,013,224,623  1,707,270,592 - 2,720,495,215
TEEAE Derivative financial liabilities 81,970,145 6,089,946,884 - 6,171917,029
Sl Customer deposits 5,805,005,872 31,035,212,200 414,419,960 37,254,638,032
MRS Debt securities issued 2,652,640,383 - 2,652,640,383
SEH A& R =k Repurchase agreements - 270,207,863 - 270,207,863
Hftgrpfafk Other financial liabilities 149,675,179 513,198,871 35,431,750 698,305,800
ERHAESIT Total financial liabilities 22,144,225,315 43,590,169,272 1,369,835,389 67,104,229976
BrEftEsE st Net position (4,244,806,473)  11,114,561,025 (155,857,951) 6,713,896,601
FTESHMTEZNET mg:g;zlni:"o””ts of derivative financial 257460713790 386420316368 4,869480]63  648750,510,321
BEERiIE Commitments 1904,330,862 5,426,966,065 3,525169,676 10,856,466,603
160
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Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a
change in foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of the
Bank is as follows:

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
- ‘ . Xt B F i 5 00 X 5t B F) 8 25 00

mEar

ES L) Change in Foreign Exchange Rate Impact on profit Impact on profit

XA ME{E 1% -1% change against RMB 30,913,926 44,006,644

XA I FHE 1% +1% change against RMB (30913,926) (44,006,644)

A EHBMESRE TR MAGRARSHICERNGEE, HitE
THEMEARTER, SPHxt ARTICENSETREESHHATH
b e

BXRNDHETUATRIR:

() CEHREIEFZDHMARTFHRER S RKE (FEMN)IC
BREIME R BN 1% ERRIC R ;

(2) BEMMLCERLEHEEETHHARTICERERERK;
(3) ZCENKEHAAEE R~ HBERFMREB,

BTET ERRIR, CERENSHARTICRSHREHIHKKRE
AR S B RS TR E R AR

3.2 FIR XK

Z 5
RXEWPETEERER S BNHERA MBS WA H MBI E KK
MBEANTERZZNERMIENERLT, ZEKPRHHHR
BERTZHMNTE, GFFE, LE, RUMNE. BRNE. &
BRHEE,

ARF ERERARERTEREERTHTENERA, ERAAH
WA EMERZ 5K P TR

ARFTF2019E1A2BEKA 975% BEXE TUEB AR
% (Expected Shortfall) B [ SRR HAE AT M B8 32 5 I P 35 XU 11
EfkE, BRZERAN 9% EEXE TUNEBXEME ( vaR
Value at Risk ) B3 SBAEHLE, o EERURIN AR E, CEFR
B M &S XU B F 72 R SRS AFE AT LUE S W R L[ 52 HiE15
2, EXEME (VaR) EEMELL, FHHRK () B THBHEEE
BEXKFNRmRL, EHEEUNEEPERTEBRENS M,
RERBRE S HHIHE,

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static currency risk structure. It
shows the impact of a change in other currency rates against
RMB on the Bank’s profit before tax, given other variables
remain constant.

The analysis is based on below assumptions:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses
caused by one per cent change of the closing rate (mid
rate) of the different foreign currencies against RMB as at
the balance sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against
RMB in the same direction simultaneously; and

(3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of
exchange rate fluctuation on the Bank’s earnings may differ
from above sensitivity analysis.

(3.2) Interest rate risk

Trading Book

Trading book mainly includes freely tradable financial
instruments and commodity positions held for trading
purpose or to avoid risks of other items in the trading
account. The market risk in trading book depends on the
instrument of the transaction, including interest rates,
exchange rates, equity prices, commodity prices, and credit
spreads, etc.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for
the calculation of regulatory market risk capital but uses the
Internal Models Approach to measure and control trading
market risks.

From 2 January 2019, the Bank switched to the historical
simulation method of daily Expected Shortfall (ES) within
the 97.5 per cent confidence interval to measure and
monitor market risk of the trading book, replacing the
previous method of daily Value at Risk (VaR) within a 99 per
cent confidence interval. The historical simulation method
assumes that possible future changes in market rates such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices
may be implied by observed historical market movements.
Compared with the VaR measure, the ES includes extreme
losses that exceed a set level of confidence. The tail loss
distribution is considered in the historical simulation process,
which is the average of the tail loss distribution.
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VaR is a statistical measure of potential losses over a
certain confidence interval and time period. For backtesting
purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR within a 99 per cent
confidence interval over a one-day holding period, based
on the historical simulation method. The VaR measures are
backtested against profit and loss of the trading book to
validate the robustness of the methodology. The backtesting
process analyses whether the exceptions are due to model
deficiencies or market volatility. All backtesting exceptions
are tabled at the ALCO with recommended actions and
resolutions.

Although VaR and ES are important tools to measure market
risk, there are some restrictions on the assumptions of the
model, such as:

In most cases, the assumption that a position can be
hedged or sold within an observation period of one
trading day is reasonable, but in the case of severe
liquidity shortage in the market over a long period of
time, the assumption of an observation period of one
trading day may not be in line with the actual situation;
VaR and ES are calculated based on the day’s closing
benchmark and do not reflect the risks that positions may
face on the trading day; and

Historical data, used as a benchmark for determining the
possible range of future outcomes, may not apply to all
possible situations, especially exceptions.

To complement the ES measure, the Bank perform stress
and scenario tests to identify the vulnerability to event risk.
These tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible
extreme losses for which proactive management of market
risk is taken.

The Bank’s daily ES on 31 December 2019 was RMB6.80 million
(The Bank’s daily VaR on 31 December 2018 was RMB5.67
million).

Banking book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the
interest rate risk management structure. The Balance Sheet
Risk Management (BSRM) Division supports the ALCO in
monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to protect and to enhance capital or economic net
worth through adequate, stable and reliable growth in net
interest earnings under a broad range of possible economic
conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified using
analysis tools include repricing schedules and sensitivity
analysis. They provide indications of the potential impact of
interest rate changes on interest income and economic value
through the analysis of the sensitivity of assets and liabilities
to changes in interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies
with different repricing periods, currencies and embedded
options mismatches in the longer tenor will experience
greater impact in the price-value of interest rate positions
than similar positions in the shorter tenor.

AR FIRR AINEF BN FIE R =2 F N EEE S 7 A E# it
ITRIZERREE A, DUETE $RIT BY 3 A & B 3 [ 29 71 2 B K& O
I RITHEF REROFM. B, ZEHNKE RT3 RimER
TARER & SRR AR R ATRE R v RIT A R M B T A I 5
TR E R R,

BTHE, CEMBRMEEATERZ KA THREE TS5
M EIRIE RS TE IR MEIE,

F20019&F12 A31H, A2FARITHKPESHFENEFRAZERS
FEEHESEHEREREEN TN T:

The Bank also performs quantitative analysis method of net
interest income and economic value of net assets regularly
to determine the adequacy of capital in meeting the impact
of extreme interest rate movements on the balance sheet.
Such tests are also performed to provide early warnings
of potential extreme losses, facilitating the proactive
management of interest rate risks in an environment of rapid
financial market changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices are managed and
controlled under the market risk framework.

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank’s assets/liabilities of
banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of
maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

31-12-2019
3INAR 3NMAETE 1ZE5%F SHERME FitE &it
Within 3 3 months 1to 5 years 5 years Non-interest Total
months to 1year above bearing
L o Assets:
. ,=== Cashand deposit with the
& RIFH R RBITERIR Central Bank 6,183,916,302 - - 293626948  6,477,543,250
. Due from banks and other
ERIEN - - -
b3 ERIE Tl financial institutions 1,325,476,216 457774 1325933,990
N Placements with banks and other
B - _
KHES fimancial institutions 5,097104,878  2,381911,033 20,830311 7499846222
TNEESRET :Ses":trsse repurchase financial 3,246187571 - - - 7560790 3253748361
SR Loans and advances to customers 26,721,599,050  7,052,510,655 61345569 4,063,521 320,353110  34,159,871905
Other debt instrument at
HERIEE fair value through other 1797,653,080 2421439820  5776,267,010 - 150,528,026 10,145,887.936
comprehensive income
Hibgrhia~s Other financial assets - - - 38,800,689 38,800,689
SEETST Total financial assets 44371937097 11855861508  5837,612,579  4,063521 832157,648 62,901,632,353
fafk: Liabilities:
Eﬂk&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂffnm#ﬁi Due to banks and other financial 0 071456 580,000,000 - - 398428 492,069,878
I institutions
WANEE Placement from banks and other 3 g o1 ce1 7881005294 1995,800,000 - 123625460 13,458952,435
financial institutions
e Customer deposits 30913772759 7225059348  1,02711,683 - 340]44,538 39,506,088,328
S O &R E FE Repurchase agreements 720,000,000 - - - 292,241 720,292,241
MA{HES Debt securities issued - 709,614,871 1995411133 - 405265503  2,745552,507
Hiv&rhtafs Other financial liabilities - - - 99,349,863 99,349,863
SRR ESIT Total financial liabilities 35301165890  16,095,679,513  5018322,816 607137033 57,022,305,252
TEEmME~ () Derivative financial assets (Note) 214,885,200 224,633,640 - - - 439,518,840
FTESEAE (5F) (D,\,e;'t‘gt've financial liabilities 212901803 224981292 - - 437,883,095
FERESHRO Net position 9,072,754,604  (4,240165,657) 819289763 4,063,521 225,020,615 5880,962,846
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As at 31 December 2018, the Bank’s assets/liabilities of
banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of
maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

31-12-2018
3INAR 3NAEE 1E5%F S5HERE TitE &it
Within 3 3 months 1to 5 years 5 years Non-interest Total
months to 1year above bearing
BrE: Assets:
N BIFH B RSRITERI gzz&;z‘gaﬁpos't with the 5998412,914 - - - 305824484 6304237398
. Due from banks and other

ERITE ¢ - R -
TE U E W TR financial institutions 1,221,613,188 1322741 1,222,935929

N Placements with banks and other
FHES financial institutions 10,671,910,843 394,023,813 - - 104,721,719 13,970,656,375
ENBES TR :Sesveetr:e repurchase financial 3,281412,098 - - - 7844426 3289256524
R BER Loans and advances to customers  25,573,129,818 6,047,602,918 38,209509 428,037 369,506,466 32,032,576,748

Other debt instrument at
HMESIRE fair value through other 2103737940  2,789,405,830  1999,841,390 - 77599772  6970,584932
comprehensive income

Hih&ahw~ Other financial assets - - - - 64133115 64,133,115
£EEFTE Total financial assets 48,850,216,801  12,031,032,561 2,038,050,899 428,037 930,952,723 63,854,381,021
ff&: Liabilities:
= = = . . .
Eﬂ&,\{ﬂﬁmﬁnmﬁﬁﬁ Pug to 'banks and other financial 169434195 401,000,000 . _ 1297185 571731380
FRI institutions

N Placement from banks and other
wWANEE financial institutions 13,603,989,834 3,073,414,43 - - 86,890,297 16,764,294,274
Ry =k Customer deposits 26,253,378,816 9,581,199,099 1,139,584,346 - 280,475,771 37,254,638,032
FEHEME A Repurchase agreements 270,000,000 - - - 207,863 270,207,863
R HESH Debt securities issued 746,146,467 874,187,603 997,323,573 - 34982740 2,652,640,383
Hit &R Other financial liabilities - - - - 119,050,206 119,050,206
SriaEST Total financial liabilities 41,042,949,312  13,929,800,845 236,907,919 - 522,904,062 57,632,562,138
TEEMET (i) Derivative financial assets (Note) ~ 6,719,845,416  2,608,258,632 - - 8408129  9336,512,177
fTEERAE () '(Dl\fg'tvst've financial liabilities 6,657859983  2,634,802,951 - - 7679310 9300342244
FIER B 5O Net position 7869252922  (1925312,603)  (98,857,020) 4,128,037 408777480 6257988816

E: FAARRITRAESNITEEHET /| AGRENEAENER
EEMBSIYPEAERREEHITHN
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Note: The derivative financial assets/liabilities of banking book are analysed
based on the earlier of re-pricing date and maturity date of the nominal principal.

ARFAMNEHFNETARREENH, WMEEMNEITRZRIHAAE
ERITEEMATRITESHARHNEENER,

UTREEMEEATHELT, MRAREENAEEHNHR
. EhREWmH RS8R T E & N T ERIRE .

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities
based on maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date
for floating rate items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s net profit, other comprehensive
income after tax and equity is as follows:

31-12-2019 31-12-2018

TwEIE Change in interest rate Xt &R 28 B S0 Xt AR 28 S0
Impact on net profit Impact on net profit

FIZHEHN 100 MES +100 basis points 47,614,486 46,227,031
FZRF D 100 MES - 100 basis points (47,614,486) (46,227,031)

M ESRESHETH-NAGEGHSNAERNEEE, FXH
SHNEE—ENFZEL, ERA-—FERAXRXAFMRHRHE
HENMMEARRELHENRBANBZI, ETUTRIE:

) MBEE=ANRAR=ANREE—FRNEFRENSE B E =M
AR ER XA R EERENSHEIE;

(2) Wrae MR R TNMETES;
(3) BFEMARASHTHMEN;

4) EFEREHOFESRITESRTREMSMIR=RERRD
(EY=

BTET LR /RiE, FIREESBAR RSB HIEKERE
AT RE S L B RS AT 2 R AR o

4. AnhrE

ARMNE, RETHSEEEHTERRENEFZSY, HE—W
REMBEREIRERB —AGMEXMNNIE, EXHERZH
% (BIATESZ BT ) GENEHET, THHEMIAQ/ RN
BEZREIEH, AW, ARBAAFAEREITZHBSERMETRASR
FETH. BAit, MFizBLETHATRZEMTE, W THE
ZESEMET A EHERXANE, B2, ERREFEMITZ
NMESZEXRRASREHH, HEERE, UARARAZHY
R,

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk structure.
It reflects the impact of interest rate movement on the
Bank’s net interest income over a one-year period. The key
assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than
three months or between three months and one year are
assumed to be re-priced in the middle of the respective
time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes;
and

(4) Off-balance sheet items except derivative financial
instruments are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net
interest income from interest rate movement may differ from
above sensitivity analysis.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Subject to the existence of an active market, such as an
authorised securities exchange, the market value is the best
reflection of the fair value of financial instruments. As there
is no available market value for some of the financial assets
and liabilities held and issued by the Bank, the discounted
cash flow method or other valuation methods described
below are adopted to determine the fair value of these
assets and liabilities. However, the value determined by such
methods would depend on the amount of future cash flows,
time period assumption and discount rates used.
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EERRMERATER, BHEEREZ 0 RMRERDL
TR, NIKEERDMESER;

(iv) ERERDEARE@MERBEESFHFE, FPEFRRTLE
ERFBHZEEWPRIGEE BREME ST AR RNME,
AEEHERZERHNARNMEURSHEN W E[HE, HUE
H 5izE TE R R A IR X B LA TR &

AARWMEARNENTETVAE AL TRH:
(i) WEH: Tt RERMIARZARNTIZIRN;
(i) fEH: TN EERHERREITHEE,

HERBEASAXANEN - RAN, ERREFESFWUER,
XEZZMBHEITRABUBRL AN ERNERE, AQFBRENMGEE
REFEZBIFRANER, FlINEEMNEHEREMERGE
B, BRI EEER.

AAREILT AFMERINESRBRALNENGEE. WREXAR
BAMGE, RETHERMEAGSELEZIMIERNMNENE
WiE, S, MEHRMNE. MASH, REMGEERARTEZHS
ZABRIMEE, HtHAERFHIEEEERNATEERS,
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The following methods and assumptions are used in
estimating fair values:

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair
value by reference to the quoted market prices when
available. If quoted market prices are not available, the
fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows or
quoted price from the counter parties. The carrying
amounts of these items reflect the fair value as at the
balance sheet date;

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities
maturing within 12 months are assumed to be equal to
their carrying amounts in view of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate
at the time the loans are extended shall be determined
using prevailing market rates of similar loans. Changes
in the credit quality of loans within the portfolio are
not taken into account in determining the fair values
as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately as
impairment provision which shall be deducted from the
carrying amounts and fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or
floating rate depending on the product type. The fair
value of demand deposits and saving deposits without
specific maturity date is determined based on the amount
payable on demand. The fair value of fixed deposits are
estimated using discounted cash flows method with the
prevailing deposit rate for the remaining tenor of the
fixed deposit as the discount rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

()  Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i)  Mark to Model - where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value
process that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure
correct fair value representation. In making appropriate
valuation adjustments, the Bank follows the methodologies
that consider factors such as bid-offer spread valuation
adjustment and model valuation adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures
over the valuation process to provide assurance over the
appropriateness of the fair values applied. If fair value is
determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated
by a specialist group. In addition, price and parameter inputs,
assumptions and valuation adjustments are subject to
verification and review processes. Other valuation control
includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

ARRBFAEHITARNEREN ST RIS A=ZIER:

F—BR: RATIHME

XA ERAIEZRER R~ RENERTHRNEE G EESH
WRALBERW &M~ mERHPREGEILEEARLARSEAR
HTHMEE GRS

EBR: MERGASHTUBEIHHURGSINEERA

EHGHEAXEBEIREREHE, MANNEESHBEETT
FEENZ, XHERGBEASTITASFT. HNENER I —L
MHSE5ELBERMEZHRR, HANZMIERNEM~RE
EAHMOIEH, SNLCEHR, REBEH / EHRREEXZNITE
f (INETHHIFFE. FELGK, SMNOER. IHEWEH ) , ¥
BREAAMELRZ S FRENESHMS R (NEXE X EaE~

m) o

FZRER: SEESYIREEVUBREFIRRANBERAR
EMGEERRZAGETSHRENEM ERNEZETATRNRSH,
BRIAARZERBEXHNEM”RRANEXIE R

U EEBRIREFEDNAERRRDEFRAGZ AN ERB—FZIT
HAEN, AW, BTEMNMMSISERTRZAERRIE, &€&/
VIR A RN ER G TEREF Wb,

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to
the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
where the price represents actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm'’s length basis. Financial
instruments included in this class are bonds with the marked-
to-market prices actively made available and announced by
China Central Depository and Clearing Co. Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments
where the prices are derived from standard valuation
models, and significant inputs to these models are directly
observable. The valuation techniques include the use of
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques widely used and accepted by
market participants. The financial instruments included
in this category are mainly foreign exchange forward and
foreign exchange swaps, precious metals forward and swaps,
and OTC derivatives (namely money market deposit and
placement, interest rate swap, FX option, rediscounted
bills) and financial instruments with fair value derived from
counterparty (for structured products arranged on back-to-
back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable
inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one
significant input is not observable and reliance is placed on
reasonable assumptions made on market conditions. There is
currently no financial instrument being classified under such
category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide
a consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the
Bank’s assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may
use different assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair
values disclosed by different financial institutions may not be
entirely comparable.
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The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments measured in fair value:

ol = Precious metals
ZH SRR Financial assets held-for-trading

Derivative financial assets

TSR~
KBTI - FLFHME  Loans and advances to customers-gold loan

H AU R

comprehensive income

ERER~EIT Total financial assets

ZHER SR Financial liabilities held-for-trading
ITEERAGR Derivative financial liabilities
SRR RET Total financial liabilities

Other debt instrument at fair value through other

ARMETEERBBNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
EEUNRGNE
Significant observable inputs
(BZER)

(Level 2)

31-12-2019 31-12-2018
1162,708,344 470,469,280
1,425,658,377 1,472,009,402
433,777,889 6,332,656,875

981,432,228 885,500,931
10,145,887,936 6,970,584,932

17,849,464,774 16,131,221,420
383,176,624 2,720,495,215
4,137,215,590 6,171,917,029
7320,392,214 8,892,412,244

KEE, ARARREURANEHENE -—BERME_RRERM
ARGz B LR,

EERINA, TER, FAANEMESHASNERARNARN
BESHEEHNKENEHFTEXESR
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During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1
and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of other financial
assets and financial liabilities is not material as at the balance
sheet date.

T— KEAXERXS

1. KRER T RN E bR e

TFAEE, THEFHARARRKIKEKT:
() ZARMBAT;

(2) AR RFLE;

(3) 5N B ZE—ESARER P EM A ;
(4) AR B SEHEH EHEHIRR R T ;

(5) MALAFHEMERHIMAILET;

(6) "ARHAE Sl ;

(7) R ARINECE Sl

@) AN AHNETERRENARSEXREVHNRERS;

) FAFHRBEEARSBATAXBEEAR, URSHXERE
VIHIRER 5 ;

(10) "ARFREERHAEIA, XBEEARHEEXRETHR
BER SR, SRS H bl

M) AARRAIH BV FEESE,

PRP /NSRS YN

11. Related party transactions

(1) Criteria of identifying related parties

Details of the Bank’s major related parties in 2019 are as
follows:

(1) Parent company of the Bank;

(2) Subsidiary of the Bank;

(3) Entities under control of the same parent company;
(4) Investors exercise joint control over the Bank;

(5) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;
(6) Joint ventures of the Bank;

(7) Affiliated company of the Bank;

(8) Main individual investors of the Bank or the close family
members;

(9) Key management personnel of the Bank or parent
company, and the close family members;

(10) Other companies controlled or jointly controlled by the
Bank's major investors, key management personnel or close

family members;

(1) Annuity established by the Bank.

(2) Parent company of the Bank

B e S5t B pE g EZN AEWEHLLH]
Name Business Nature Registered Address Share Capital Shareholding
RERITAERRT RITRERMARS ESIlIEGd 7325 BT 100%

United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and Financial Service Singapore SGD 7,325 Million 100%
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(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions
during the year are as follows:

ZEARRXREEEAREXZITH L

Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s key management

—__ #7R W 25 R SR ERSA EERFA
RZBATEHHRTE Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
Company under the common control of parent company @ (E1) BESRAT pr—— ap—— = 5 RIE
. . A (E17) BEFRAF SEEHEBE =i JT 3,700 I7T RnG
= ﬂ.li% 220 Eﬂﬂ-ﬂi" ,Iﬂﬂ'ﬁﬂi ) EERRA ) Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD 37 Million Neo Soon Hup
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
KERIT (DREL ) BRAT  ROREBRS DRET SN DRELHES 20 T REH RRBABDFERFALBRER — FHEFE B X% ARMI03 T BT
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.  Banking and Financial Service Kuala Lumpur Malaysia RM 2 Billion Wong Kim Choong Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd.  Real estate development Tianjin China RMB 1.03 Billion Tan Kian Siew
= = 2. U EER
KR (RE) BRAT P = _ . B%SER. Rl
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public %E{T'&ﬁjmiﬂ'ﬁ% ) ) e R ) ik 2486 {EJE P ) Kig (L) RAERGRAT HAERAN hE i 2EJT 650 ATT H—iB
Company Limited Banking and Financial Service Bangkok Thailand THB 24.86 Billion Tan Choon Hin Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Business information consulting, = o -
q i Shanghai China USD 6.5 Million Wee Ee Chao
RERST (EREL) GRAT  RAOREHERS EERFET BNk IR/ 23884711250 ML Management Co. Lt Corporate management consulting,
PT Bank UOB Indonisia Banking and Financial Service Jakarta Indonesia IDR 2,388,471 Million Lam Sai Yoke Investment management consulting
Bl HE. BE. AENEE . S AT E E S5 ‘ _ _ L
EEEFBLERAR e T hE L AR 2259 25T s ENREEHHRAT Manufacture and sale of Chinese RE E] XL 820 7T REE
; eal estate development, operating, CChi illi Xi Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. Xi Chi UsD 8.2 Milli Goh Bee L
UOB Property China Co., Ltd. leasing and managernent Shanghai China RMB 2.259 Billion Peter Foo lamen Tiger Medicals Lo pharmaceutical products lamen (hina ition oh bee Leong
. BRHREE, AARTEHE, R HRRF BAER g T 2.66227926 17T EAAME
> T upe g 3 I\ =] N — — 3 W
RENREE (L) TRA E BN hE ki EIT 1,555 AT BHES Haw Par Corporation Limited Investment holding Singapore SGD 266.227926 Million  Wee Cho Yaw
UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) X ) R s .
Co. Ltd Consulting and investment Shanghai China USD 15.55 Million Seah Kian Wee BN L. 8. MENEE
’ management FEEH (R4 ) ERERAF v FRE XA 3T 2,400 AT ‘
1 Rt INT] P ] S S = Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd Real estate development, Chengdu China USD 24 Million Lee Neai Hon
AERFERRRAT nrER A4 #6300 77T Thio Boon Kiat "8 gau) bevelop "7 operating, leasing and management g !
UOB Asset Management Co., Ltd Investment management Singapore SGD 63,000,000
LEEEELFRAR BHFEFEREE HE tif ARM 3 12T Lim Beng Teon
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development and operation  Shanghai China RMB 2.3 Billion & &
ZEHARERYIH L A REGIMEIEF . BFE. REEE.
Company under the significant influence of the parent company BAisESE. HE, &8
2R Al &R FEMR EMEAR EERERA ERER (Rig) EBERAT Manufacturing of new construction thE X AR 2406 1Z7T iELW
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. materials, sale, lease and management Tianjin China RMB 240.6 Million Lim Hock San
HEESWEEEN (LX) of office buildings, apartment hotel,
I EE GRS - — — _ commercial facilities
HRAF fE L= EIT150 AT EME
) Business Management ) . )
InnoVenl Enter?‘jlse Management Consulting Service Beijing China USD 1.5 million Cao Ying Xue FEBE I ERAT BT EREE thiE i AR 7191 1Z5¢ Lim Bens Teon
Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development and operation ~ Shanghai China RMB 7191 Million 8 &
MEAELESKRFEE
A ERAEESRAT SEBLSERMOELRBLS 0 o £71000 H = EHME AT (L) MEERARAT EEEE RSN, tLEREE Lo £57 555 ——_
' . . Financial leasing; - ) - . Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management Hotel management, investment consulting "= - “ -H
InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. Tianjin China USD 10 million Cao Ying Xue Shanghai China USD 50,000 Neo Soon Hup
business factoring related Co.,, Ltd. and corporate management consulting
to main business
FREHIREEEAR Key management personnel
XBEHEAR, GEAANTNES. UEESREEAR, Key management personnel include directors, supervisor and
senior management.
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4. KRRAEXBRAZEERS

(4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

BT L

R TFE=R Customer deposits 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
V. 8 A Loans and advances to customers 31-12-2019 31-12-2018 RE HEIKZZREALLSG £ HERZZFREALLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
RE HEIEZSZRELLH] RE HEEZSZRELLH] - —
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%) Ligsame E A\ FRA Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd 474,882,349 120 505,017,859 136
fHEER (R ) EREMRAF UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co,, Ltd. 105,206,039 029 56,538,557 017 it E N ERAT UOB Property China Co,, Ltd. 399,860,078 101 346,130,276 093
LBRBREVERAH Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 72,215,026 020 32,470,416 010 BRI AEE (L5 ) ARAT (légfn\g/ﬁgit)ucrz N\Latr;agement 195.792,396 050 228933152 0.61
A
it Total 177,421,065 049 89008973 0.27 i
= FEEBH (H) RRERAT é’gglftr:jd (Chengdu) Development ) 77 037 127403635 0.34
S o B e 20 4 INF] i i i Ltd. ; ;
R AR R Due from and placement with banks 31-12-2019 31-12-2018 WIEFERIRAERRAF InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd 50,971,936 013 35,565,142 010
S S = s . Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel
2% EREXSRTLH 28 HRELH RG] ZATH (L5 BEEEERAH ,j;naaznif]t o8 ljz ote 15,689,446 004 10205312 003
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%) 8 M
HbEY: : ; NE IC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 11,0072 . 84694 02
RESRITERA A United Overseas Bank Limited 682,051,368 728 227486146 144 HERIK (X2 ) KRARAT UIC in Travel (Tianjin) Co, Ltd 007125 003 5846943 0.0
_ ®i\ (FE7)j G Hua Ye Xi Hotel Limit 10,079,701 4 495,032 .
KHESRIT ( B3RAET ) BBRAF United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 1,301,269 0.01 665,704 - el (B BERRAR ua Ye Xiamen Hote Limited 007970 0.03 949503 0.03
. ) ) N . = Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
142, 3 038 A VAS
K407 (EE ) SRAT EJ(r;lr;epda ri/vfirr:::dB.ank (Thai) Public 258916 i 93121 i IKBE ( b ) AEEFRAA Management Co, Ltd. 7,077,644 0.02 6865431 0.02
&t Total 683 611,553 799 298244971 144 EBIIEREABRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 6,411,811 0.02 2476826 0.01
=] ,Ol1, . ) , .
e e - = InnoVen Enterprise Management
A [7 A T /\
minFEWEREN (R) BRAFT | ting (Beijing) Co, Ltd. 5,290,313 001 1966770 0.01
Due to and placements from banks
BNRIFNZIR o ot e o 31-12-2019 31-12-2018 EH L ERAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 4,928,856 001 102797136 028
RE HEEZ S RELLG RE HREIEZFREALLG] R AR L ERAT | 2inUOL Xiwang Real Estate Co,, 105775 . 672560 i
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%) Ltd. ' '
KERITHRAH United Overseas Bank Limited 13,352,032,925 9571  15496,227923 8939 LR E L ERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 1,750 - 1,504 -
KERIT (RE ) BRAF gg:ﬁi‘ig"fﬁ: dBa”k (Thai) Public 1127972 0.01 252125 - (BEEAR Key Management Personnel 24,868312 006 2413365 0.06
&it Total 13,353,60,897 9572 15496,480,048 89.39 &it Total 1,351,593,219 343 1407511234 3.80
7 I =R — E b RZUg =R Receivables- other receivables 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
RE HEEZZREALLG RE GHEEZSZRELLG)
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 21,220919 6.44 99,928,037 3856
LB BWHR/AT  UOB Property China Co,, Ltd. 12,892,048 391 12,892,048 497
KEFEFEHEBRAT  UOB Asset Management Ltd. 375,416 on 1974154 076
&it Total 34,488,383 1046 114,794,239 4429
BRI - EftbfifE  Payables - other liabilities 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
KRE AHREEZHRELLG RE GHEEZZRELLG)
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 59909,324 17.86 120,513,922 17.26
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XM ERAT Financial assets held-for-trading 31-12-2019 31-12-2018 FlEFTH Interest expense 2019 2018

R ARREBRAMILY R ARELZBRALE $8 ARXZHEEUO S8 ARXZHLHULL
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
4 L= /\.__ . . . _ _
KERTRRAR United Overseas Bank Limited 138,237,636 o3 KESRITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 413,649144 2690 413,633,827 32.86
LR E L FRAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 10,151,597 0.66 25097788 199
Z o e G Financial liabilities held-for-trading 31-12-2019 31-12-2018 ! g g Realty
25 HEEZZLHELH) £8 HEEZBLELLA] LigtEmBELFHRAF UOB Property China Co,, Ltd. 7,396,285 048  5974,665 0.47
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%) UOB Vi M
s ko L St et s JN= enture Management
KESRITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 3183176624 10000 2720495215 100.00 BEBRARE (L&) BRAT (g ehai) Co, Ltd, 3613516 083 4BLSI8 033
EHWERAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 1,667.794 on 1,445,672 on
EE=Y N Interest income 2019 2018 N _ 4
FEEM (HEH) RRERAT z'gglf&d (Chengdu) Development oo 545 010 1317120 010
&8 GEEZZHEHLLS &8 SHREXZZEHLG o . M
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%) ZAFEE (Lig) BIEEE Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel 274551 0.0l 95 802 i
- BIRAF Management Co., Ltd. ' : '
KEERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 11,406,707 048 11,018,288 0.49
e . . il (B]) BEEBRAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 142,621 0.01 44433 -
#ERR (Xi#) &Eﬁum' Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd 3452124 015 2,915,487 013 l
BR AN E] inTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 452, ; 915, ;
G ERAHEEERAR InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 13,364 0.01 30,741 -
LigRBBEWAHR/AT  Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 3169165 013 1,394,905 0.06
s X ; FRAF  UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 110,234 0.01 99,338 0.01
&it Total 18,027996 076 15,328,680 0.68 R (X2 ) ZRERAS J (Tianjin)
N N = Kheng Leong (Shanghai)
3 Lo AS
K (b ) RREEERAT Investment Management Co., Ltd. 99379 001 85932 0.01
HIEFLWEEEE (LX) InnoVen Enterprise Management 35947 ) 4086 i
BRAHE Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. ' '
EIEREHERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 16,576 - 9702 -
L United Overseas Bank (Thai)
KERIT (RE ) FRAF , o 8,258 - 1378 -
Public Company Limited
KA TR B R AT 1C'|§nj|i$dUOL Xiwang Real Estate 967 ) 2575 )
LiERBRENFRAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 578 - 226 -
XETEAR Key Management Personnel 806,904 0.05 333,457 0.03
Ait Total 439,629,701 2858 452,238,260 3591
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FEHERASIN Fee and commission income 2019 2018 W& EEEE General and administrative expenses 2019 2018
S8 SREZZEHLLH 8 HREXZEHLLE) ¥ HEEXZEHLE) 8 SHEEZZEHELLS
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KIESRITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 15,038,752 6.28 21768348 .54 EEEARTIFEH IT support
KERFEEBFRAT UOB Asset Management Ltd. 4,599,295 192 6,970,727 3.69 - KERITHRAA -United Overseas Bank Limited 47375,200 443 37,411,868 375
Bl ERELERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 452,597 019 250,547 013 EEHRENEREE Rental and service fee
BiEERSHEEGERAR InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 180,648 0.08 90,114 0.05 - LigfkesrBWERAT -UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 47.232,480 4.42 39,931,714 4.01
KRERIT (BRFEI ) GRAF United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 122,562 0.05 - - - KERITERAR -United Overseas Bank Limited 936,841 0.09 893,303 0.09
LiERRELERAR Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 75,531 0.03 75472 0.04 -4\l (B ) iBEERAT  -Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 296,133 0.03 296,133 0.03

KERIT (FE ) BRAA gg;:epdari"fﬁ:: dBa”k (Thai) Public 14312 001 10529 0.01 &t Total 95,840,654 897 78,533,018 788
KN FZERFEMF=FLZBRAT  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co,, Ltd. 3,230 - 2,163 -
v (EI7) EEERAD Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 1584 - 3994 - FEBM Software development 2019 2018
. . 8 AHREEXZEHLLE) €8 HEEXZEELLG]
S ak NS ; _
LBEFBLHRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 1818 333 Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
RHEELWHRAR Haw Par Corporation Limited 1303 - - - KESRITHBRAT  United Overseas Bank Limited 7306387 46.81 18,802,582 7618
SATE (L) BESEERAS anﬂ Fl’lcjlﬂc (Shanghai) Hotel Management 936 . 1226 }
HEER (Ri2) REERAT UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 798 - - - SILE Fiduciary activities 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
s e e - — InnoVen Enterprise Management FERHE LHEEZSRELG FRAE LERZSZRELLG
ETE I\ _ _ A
@iEF W ERAN (IR) FRAF Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 779 1015 Entrusted deposits Contribution (%) Entrusted deposits Contribution (%)
KRR AEE (L5 ) HRAH gSBL\t/jnture Management (Shanghai) 368 ; 512 - EITEAREGHRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co, Ltd, - - 11,040,000 044
EEM (BE ) ERERAFE Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 80 - 290 -
AT S B AR Irrevocable loan commitments 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
ait Total 20,494,593 856 29178268 15.46 — —
RE HEEZZREALLG RE LHREEXZFEHLLE]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
FEBBEEETE Fee and commission expense 2019 2018 LB EWARAT  ShanghaiJin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 169,931,207 6.89 242,581,342 81
&H SRXZBLTILH &F HRXZSLHLH gfﬁ’iﬁ (RE)ER i jinTravel (Tianjin) Co, Ltd. - . 28,000,000 094
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%) RLE]
RERITHRAR United Overseas Bank Limited 1,022,834 151 7249275 1242 At Total 169,931,207 6.89 270,581,342 9.05
= = United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
i*& N _ i i
KERIT (RE ) BRAHE Company Limited 2012
_ TEEMITEEY Derivatives 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
KESRIT (BRAL ) FRAR United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 51 - - - " " ke
_ RE HREEXZZREALLG RE HEEZZRELLE]
KERIT (ENERTI ) BRAF PT Bank UOB Indonisia - - 149,260 026 Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
&t Total 1024997 151 7398535 12.68 RERITHRAR United Overseas Bank Limited 28971782,838 471 14,550,745,495 2.24
it L s Investment Income 2019 2018 1R Letter of guarantee 31-12-2019 31-12-2018
&8 GHEEZZEHLLH) &8 GHEEZZEHLLH) RE  HEIEZZREALLG] RE HEEXZRELLE]
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
RERITERAR United Overseas Bank Limited 16,282,481 3194 32,754,206 23.81 KERITHERAR United Overseas Bank Limited 50,222,117 476 269,619110 4029
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ARE S ERXKEAHITHZZRBEFTHRE LR S FMEHT, U
—MEBNEAENEM, FREFWSEFHEIT,

BRERZHN, KARZMAXBEEARFEENNOT:

The Bank's transactions with the above-mentioned related
parties are conducted in accordance with normal commercial
transaction conditions, based on general transaction prices,
and in accordance with normal business procedures.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as
follows:

2019 2018

BRHFSKREMEHAEH  Employee salaries and other short-term incentives 90,497,505 82,922,707

S5XRRAEETKINZHERMT

AARAERFRINEUFSESREZTHHERWL SN, FERE
EHMKREKRZ S

+=., A&
1. fEAATAAN

AARAENEEREREEIRPERANEEREAMMEH
IR, FEREFSVHBEEHESN 255, ERIANEAEHE
BH34 5, VHEEERESEREFEN, LIEEEFEN

Transactions between the Bank and the annuity are as
follows:

No transactions other than normal contribution to the
annuity were conducted between the Bank and the annuity
established by the Bank.

12. Lease

(1) As lessee

The leased assets of the Bank include the buildings and
vehicles used during daily operation. The lease term for
buildings is usually 2-5 years, and the lease term for vehicles
is usually 3-4 years. Few lease contracts have an option to
extend the lease or an option to terminate the lease.

2019

Cash outflow related to lease

S5HEEAXMIALRE

35,813,445

RMNERAFE BOFRBERE T
ARFRMNBE R BHRFAER S H BB T LA
T, AR A RS2 ILEFT, BRBRAME,
BAEE AT ROERSRBM,

LEFRIE IR S 25 1E T ETIE R

2019 &, AR L ELERIEFENE LR E AT 5 R KBRT
EERRETUMSHAEHEN,
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Potential cash outflow that not accounts for lease liabilities

Potential cash outflow that not accounts for lease liabilities
mainly arises from risk exposures such as variable lease
payable, option to extend the lease, option to terminate
the lease, guaranteed residual value, and committed but not
commenced leases.

Option to extend the lease, option to terminate the lease

There is no change on lease terms arose from the change
on the assessment of option to extend the lease, option to
terminate the lease or actual option exercise situation in
2019.

BAREE AR EHIAE

ARFAEEREERAFRPHBEETITRREER ST HAER
T

Committed but not commenced leases.

The expected cash outflow in future years of committed but
not commenced leases as below:

2019
1TEMR (E18) Within 1 year (include 1 year) 41,413,845
1EEZ2F (&§28) 1-2 years (include 2 years) 41,413,845
QEEIE (B3F) 2-3 years (include 3 years) 41,413,845
124,241,535

HEZRAWRER Additional information on lease expense

AR EHEEENMER~HERTELLE, REIAERK
BrEmEgfs, SHAE, BRNMESRSSBITAZRANFERNT:

The bank uses the simplified approach to account for a
short-term lease and a lease of low-value assets which are
not recognised as the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
Profit or loss recognises on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets as below:

2019

SHATREEH Expenses for short-term lease 48,992,602

RMEREER (S8 Expenses for lease of low-value assets i
HEERI) (short-term lease not included)

48,992,602

HAEER

ERRAT, SHMEN, 10; HERBENAMERH, SHMEN.
32; MEHHEENMERMNEESFEHENEHLE, SMED, 15;
MERE, SHMEM, 15 F0pEM, 26 FMEN. 24,

Additional information on lease

Right-of-use assets refers to note 6.10; Interest expense for
lease liabilities refers to note 6.32; simplified approach to
account for a short-term lease and a lease of low-value
assets refers to note 4.15; lease liabilities refers to note 4.5,
note 4.26 and note 6.24.
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13. Post balance sheet events

Due to the outbreak of pneumonia caused by the new
coronavirus (hereinafter referred to as the COVID-19 pandemic)
in January 2020, measures of prevention and control of the
COVID-19 pandemic have been carried out throughout the
country ever since. Since the COVID-19 pandemic has affected
commercial and economic activities, the development of
various types of business of the Bank may be affected to varying
degrees. The Bank will be closely monitoring the development
of the COVID-19 pandemic and actively respond to its impact
on the financial status, operating results and other relevant
aspects of the Bank.

14. Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform
with the current year’s presentation.

15. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 3 April 2020.
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